

Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company

P.147

Version 6.6

The official language of the "Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company" (Version 6.6, Moscow 2025) is Russian. This English language text is not an official translation and is provided for information purposes only.

In the event of any discrepancies between the English version and the Russian original, the Russian original shall prevail. The recipient is solely responsible for the use of the information contained herein



Moscow, 2025





Scope of Application:

Authorization | Certification | Keys and Cryptography | NIV

dunorization | Certification | Reys and Crypto,

Clearing and Settlement | Disputes and Arbitration | SEDO | Loyalty

Comments:



Audience: Issuers: For execution

Acquirers: For execution

Comments:



Contents:

The document provides terms of participation in the Loyalty Program of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company, methods and procedures of interaction between the Loyalty Program Subjects, including the settlement procedure, and defines rights, responsibilities, and roles of the Loyalty Program Subjects



Testing/Check by NSPK:

Mandatory | Optional | Not required

Comments:

(?)

Feedback:

Should you have any questions related to this document, Participant/Vendor, please create an issue on the support portal (https://support.nspk.ru) in your project in the section "NSPK Documentation (Name of the Participant/Vendor)" and specify the point



Proprietary Rights:

This document is NSPK JSC's intellectual property. Its contents will not, in whole or in part, be reproduced, duplicated, distributed, or modified without NSPK JSC's authorization

P.147 Page 2 of 170

Revision List

| P.147 | | Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company |
|-------------|------------------|--|
| Versio n | Revision Date | Revision Content |
| | | 1. Subsection 1.2 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the definitions of Promotion, Authentication, Mir Card, Customer, Partner, Operator's Platform, Regulations (Loyalty Program Regulations for Mir Cardholders), Goods, and the definitions of Bank Profile, Promotion Rules, Operator's Services were added. 2. In Subsection 1.3 of the Regulations, the period during which amendments to the Regulations are published was extended (at least thirty (30) business days prior to the effective date of the amendments). 3. Section 2 of the Regulations was supplemented with provisions regarding publication on the Website and in the Mobile Application of information about Issuers who participate in the Loyalty Program. 4. Subsection 3.1.1.1 of the Regulations clarified the Operator's obligations to calculate Rewards or other fees, to calculate Net positions in the prescribed manner; to provide Banks with the option to use the Bank Profile. 5. Subsection 3.1.2 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Operator's right to use the information about Customer's transactions when handling Requests, preparing responses. 6. Subsection 3.1.2 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) provisions regarding the Operator's Promotion arrangement, suspension. 7. Subsection 3.2.2 of Regulations clarified (supplemented) provisions regarding individual's guarantees when acceding to the Regulations. 8. In Subsection 3.2.4 of the Regulations, provisions were clarified regarding the Operator's right to restrict Customer's access to the functions of the Customer Profile (e.g., if not a single Mir Card is registered in the Customer Profile was issued by the |
| | | Bank not being a Loyalty Program Subject; in other cases at the Operator's discretion). 9. Subsection 3.2.5 of the Regulations was supplemented with the provision that a Customer registers their Mir Card when acceding to the Regulations if the registration form provides for the corresponding field for the Mir Card registration, or at any moment of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program. 10. Subsection 3.3.1.1 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the Partner's obligations: to ensure payment for Goods and settlement through the Acquirer that approved the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program; to guarantee to the Operator that the Goods meet the requirements of the laws, is not limited nor prohibited; to guarantee to the Operator the availability of all required rights / licenses / permits to sell Goods to Customers. 11. In Subsection 3.3.2 of the Regulations: one of the criteria to be met by the Merchant to accede to the Regulations was clarified: to have a contractual relationship with the Acquirer who is a Loyalty Program Subject; the Subsection clarified that, in order to accede to the Regulations, the Merchant (its authorized person) sends to the Acquirer the original copy of the corresponding application according to forms 1 and 2 given in Appendix 5 to the Regulations; it was supplemented with the provision that, in order to accede to the Regulations, the Merchant (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator) can fill out the registration form on the Website and submit the corresponding application according to forms 3 and 4, the Permit / Letter of Guarantee according to forms given in Appendix 5 to the Regulations, in the prescribed order. |

P.147 Page 3 of 170

- 12. Subsection 3.3.4 of the Regulations clarified provisions regarding the Partner Profile entry.
- 13. Subsection 3.3.5 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented): conditions under which a Partner is entitled to arrange a Promotion; general provisions of Partner Promotion arrangement, changes thereto, suspension of Promotion / Promotion period.
- 14. Subsection 3.3.6 of the Regulations was supplemented with provisions regarding notifications (of termination of Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program) to the Acquirer that approved the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program.
- 15. Subsection 3.4.1.1 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the Acquirer's obligations: to pay fees to the Operator, the Issuer; to use the login and password received under the Regulations to access the Bank Profile; to ensure the use of the Bank Profile by authorized persons; to ensure the use of antivirus protection on firmware used to access the Bank Profile.
- 16. Subsection 3.4.2 of the Regulations was supplemented with the provision that providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may constitute grounds for limiting access to the Bank Profile.
- 17. Section 3.4 of the Regulations was supplemented with new Subsection 3.4.4 *Bank Profile*; subsequent subsections were renumbered.
- 18. Subsection 3.5.1.1 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the Issuer's obligations: to credit the Reward amount to the Customer; to debit the Reward amount from a Customer (in the prescribed order).
- 19. Subsection 3.5.5 of the Regulations was supplemented with the provision that, at the Operator's request, the individual's consent for personal data processing must be provided by the Issuer to the Operator within the time frame stipulated in the request.
- 20. Section 5 of the Regulations was supplemented with the following provisions: on the Operator's right to use the corporate name of the Bank assisting in individuals' accedence to the Regulations in a corresponding text message to the individual; on the Operator providing the Bank with advertising materials about the Operator's Promotions and the procedure for their use; on the Bank Profile.
- 21. Section 6 of the Regulations was supplemented with the provision that, by acceding to the Regulations, the PD Subject agrees that the Operator is entitled to process their personal data for the purposes of processing of letters, inquiries, Requests, other communications from PD Subjects and Subjects;
- 22. Section 8 of the Regulations was supplemented with the following provisions: on the Bank Profile; on the Partner paying a fine to a Customer in case of a failure to pay a Reward to them due to non-fulfillment by the Partner of its obligations to ensure payment for Goods and settlement through the Acquirer that agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program; on the Partner's guarantee that the information posted (on the Website, in the Mobile Application etc.) complies with the laws and does not violate third party rights.
- 23.In Appendix 5 to the Regulations (*Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program*), the following was supplemented (clarified): Item 1.2 with definitions of Temporary Partner Profile, Application (Application for Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program), Registration Form; Item 1.3 with Sub-items 1.3.5 and 1.3.6 (guidance documents on how to use the Temporary Partner Profile and Bank Profile); Item 2.3.1 with Merchant drawing up the Merchant Application form 1 / form 2; Items 2.2.2, 2.13 with features of stages of Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program; Item 6.5.1 the reference to Subsection 3.3.5 of the Regulations was removed; new Section 10 *Electronic Document Management* was added; Annex 1 new forms 3 and 4 of the Application for Accedence to the Regulations (when filling out the registration form on the Website)

P.147 Page 4 of 170

| | 20.05.2021 | Subsection 3.1.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Operator's obligation to determine, in accordance with the Mir Payment System Regulations, Banks' net positions in Russian Rubles taking into account the amounts of Rewards paid when a Customer failed to comply with the terms of the Promotion. Subsection 3.1.1.2 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Operator's right, upon detecting erroneous accrual / accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions (in full or in part) of a Reward, perform |
|-------|------------|---|
| | | settlement of the Reward refund in the amount equal to the one erroneously accrued or accrued upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions. |
| | | 3. Subsection 3.2.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Customer's obligations: to ensure the availability of funds on the Customer's account in the amount required to refund the Reward in case of its erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions; to refund the Reward, including in case of its erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions. |
| 4.1 | | 4. Subsection 3.4.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Acquirer's obligation to provide the Partner with settlement services related to refund of Reward amounts by Customers, including in case of their erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions. |
| | | 5. Subsection 3.5.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Issuer's obligations: to make a provision in agreements entered into with Customers for a pre-authorization of a direct debit by the Issuer from the Customer's bank account in the amount equal to the Reward amount refundable to the Operator / Partner in accordance with the Regulations or Promotion conditions, including in case of an its erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions; debit from the Customer the Reward amount, including in case of an erroneous accrual of a Reward or its accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions (in full or in part), with the Issuer charging the Operator with generating a payment order for the Reward amount (in full or in part) on behalf of the Issuer, including in case of an erroneous accrual of a Reward or its accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions. |
| | | 6. Appendix 1 to the Regulations (<i>The Cash Back Program</i>) clarified (supplemented) the provisions of Section 4 regarding Cash Back Refund |
| | | 1. Subsection 1.2 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the definitions of Bank Profile, Customer Support. |
| | 08.07.2021 | 2. Subsection 3.3.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Partner's obligation to support the Operator in testing of the arrangement of (changes to) the Promotion. |
| 4.2. | | 3. Subsection 3.3.4 of the Regulations was supplemented with the information that the Partner Profile allows the Partner to use other services provided by the functionality of the Partner Profile. |
| | | 4. Subsection 3.4.1.1 of the Regulations was supplemented with the Acquirer's obligation to support the Partner and the Operator in testing of the arrangement of (changes to) the Promotion. |
| | | 5. Subsection 3.4.4 of the Regulations was supplemented with the information that the Bank Profile allows using other services provided to the Acquirer by the functionality of the Bank Profile. |
| P 147 | | 6. Subsection 3.5.1.1 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the Acquirer's obligations: to use the login and password received under the |

Page 5 of 170 P.147

Regulations to access the Bank Profile; to ensure the use of the Bank Profile by authorized persons; to ensure the use of antivirus protection on firmware used to access the Bank Profile. Subsection 3.5.2 of the Regulations was supplemented with the provision that providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may constitute grounds for limiting access to the Bank Profile. Section 3.5 of the Regulations (*Issuer*) was supplemented with new Subsection 3.5.5 Bank Profile; subsequent subsections were renumbered. 9. In Appendix 1 to the Regulations (*The Cash Back Program*), the wording of Item 4.1 was clarified, and provisions regarding Product-dependent Promotions were singled out as Item 5. 10. Appendix 5 to the Regulations (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program): in Item 2.13.3.1, the email address was replaced with a new one: ams support@nspk.ru; in Annex 1 to Appendix 5 to the Regulations (Form 1 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations for Mir Cardholders of Legal Entity or Sole Proprietor Established under the Laws of the Russian Federation), forms of the Permit to use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control and the Letter of Guarantee were clarified (supplemented); in Annex 5 to Appendix 5 to the Regulations (List of Merchant's Documents), the number of the reporting form (KND 1151111) was changed 1. The link to https://super.mironline.ru was excluded from the definition of the Customer Support in Section 1.2 of the Regulations. 2. Subsection 3.2.2 of the Regulations clarified (supplemented) the wording of individual's guarantees when acceding to the Regulations. 3. Subsection 3.3.5 of the Regulations: provisions regarding the publication on the Website of the Promotion page generated / modified by the third party (authorized by the Partner) only after its approval by the authorizing Partner, were excluded; the Subsection was supplemented with provisions stating that the Promotion can be arranged / modified / suspended on behalf of the Partner by the third party (authorized by the Partner), but the third party (authorized by the Partner) performing these actions does not release the Partner from liability to Subjects from the execution of these Regulations. 4. Section 8 of the Regulations clarified the wording on liability upon detection (after the Loyalty Program Participant accedes to the Regulations) of noncompliance / invalidity / unreliability of the provided guarantees 20.08.2021 4.3. (representations) entailing adverse consequences for the Operator: the Loyalty Program Participant shall be obliged to pay a fine to the Operator at the Operator's request in the amount of fines and/or costs and/or losses incurred by the Operator due to such violation (non-compliance / invalidity / unreliability of guarantees (representations)). 5. Appendix 5 to the Regulations (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty *Program*): in Items 2.3.2 and 2.4.2, the link to the list of Merchant's documents given in Section 1 of Annex 5 to Appendix 5 of the Regulations was clarified; in Item 2.5.1, the period of the Operator's approval of Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program was changed to ten business days; Item 2.13.3.1 was supplemented with regard to cases where the Merchant charges the Authorized Partner with Promotion arrangement / change / suspension: the Application must contain certain information about the Authorized Partner; in Item 2.13.4.4, the link to the list of Merchant's documents given in Section 2 of Annex 5 to Appendix 5 of the Regulations was clarified; Section 5 Promotion Arrangement, Changes to its Conditions (Description), Promotion Suspension was supplemented with corresponding footnotes, provisions regarding the approval

P.147 Page 6 of 170

| | | of the specified actions of the Authorized Partner by the authorizing Partner were removed; in Item 10.1, the link to the list of Merchant's documents given in Section 2 of Annex 5 to Appendix 5 of the Regulations was clarified; Annex 5 to Appendix 5 of the Regulations was supplemented with new Section 2 <i>List of Merchant's Documents</i> - for cases of Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program in accordance with Item 2.13 of Annex 5 to the Regulations |
|------|------------|---|
| 4.4. | 12.10.2021 | Subsection 3.2.4 of the Regulations was supplemented with a provision (bullet) regarding the Customer Profile allowing the Customer to receive information about prizes and/or bonus points and/or amounts accrued and received by the Customer within their participation in any marketing activities and promotions for Mir Cardholders |
| | 10.02.2022 | 1. Subsection 3.2.3 of the Regulations clarified provisions regarding the change of the date of birth registered in the Loyalty Program; it was supplemented with provisions stipulating that, when making changes to the credentials in accordance with this Subsection, the Customer guarantees that the information provided is comprehensive, relevant, and reliable; the Customer is responsible for reliability, relevance, and completeness of information they provide. |
| 4.5. | | 2. Appendix 5 to the Regulations (<i>Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program</i>): Item 2.13.3.1 and Forms 1 and 2 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations (Annex 1 to Appendix 5 to the Regulations) clarified the information about the Authorized Partner to be provided; forms of the Permit to use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / the Letter of Guarantee (Annex 1 to Appendix 5 to the Regulations) were supplemented with provisions regarding the Authorized Partner |
| | 18.04.2022 | Subsection 3.3.4 was supplemented with the functionality of the Partner Profile. Appendix 2 (The <i>Bonus</i> Program) was revised with regard to the conditions of Bonus Points provision, use and cancellation. |
| | | 3. The term 'Temporary Partner Profile' was removed from Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program), the list of documents and guidelines was amended. |
| | | 4. Section 2.13 of Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was amended to include the option to submit the Application for registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner via the Website. |
| 4.6. | | 5. Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was supplemented with Item 3.7, defining the procedure for registration of an Additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program when using the Partner Profile. The numbering of Section 3 items was changed. |
| | | 6. Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was supplemented with Annex 2.1 (Form of Application for registration of an Additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program when using the Partner Profile). |
| | | 7. Section 2 of Annex 5 to Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was changed with regard to the set of documents provided for registration |

Page 7 of 170 P.147

| | 05.07.2022 | 1. Subsection 3.2.1.1 was changed with regards to the Customer's liabilities in terms of the content of Applications. |
|------|------------|--|
| | | 2. Subsection 3.2.8.2 was changed with regards to the Operator's right to terminate the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program upon submission of Requests containing profanities, made in blunt terms. |
| | | 3. Subsection 3.3.1.2 was changed with regards to the Partner's right to independently debit the Reward from the Customer. |
| 4.7. | | 4. Subsection 3.5.1.1 was changed with regards to the Issuer's liability to credit the Reward amount to the Customer by a certain deadline. |
| ,. | 03.07.2022 | 5. Section 6 was adjusted with regards to the scope of personal data. |
| | | 6. Section 8 was supplemented with the procedure and conditions for imposing fines on Issuers, Acquirers, and Partners. |
| | | 7. Section 10. Anti-corruption Clause was added. |
| | | 8. Item 4.1 of Appendix 2 was changed with regards to the Bonus Account and use of Bonus Points. |
| | | 9. Appendix 3.1. Access to Business Lounges in Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals in the Russian Federation was added |
| | | 1. The name of the document was changed. |
| | | 2. A number of changes regarding SBP was made throughout the Regulations, notably, in Sections 1 <i>General Provisions</i> , 2 <i>Introduction to the Regulations</i> , 3 <i>Loyalty Program Subjects</i> , 6 <i>Personal Data</i> , Appendix 4 (The <i>Prize</i> Program) to the Regulations. |
| | | 3. The term 'Third Party Services' was added to Subsection 1.2. |
| | | 4. Subsection 3.2.2 was amended with regard to ways of entering into the Regulations accession agreement. |
| | 10.09.2022 | 5. Subsection 3.2.3 was amended with regard to the Customer making changes to the Customer credentials (date of birth). |
| | | 6. Subsection 3.2.4 was amended with regard to access to the Customer Profile. |
| | | 7. Subsection 3.2.8.1 was amended with regard to the provision of responses to Customer Requests regarding personal data. |
| 5.0 | | 8. Subsection 3.2.10 was added to define the procedure for using Third Party Services for the purpose of an individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) and provision of access to the Customer Profile; subsequent subsections were renumbered. |
| | | 9. Subsection 3.3.5 was amended with regard to notifications on Partner Promotions suspension (suspension cancellation). |
| | | 10. Section 6 was amended with regard to the list of personal data provided by an individual as part of the registration in the Loyalty Program, and the terms of personal data deletion. |
| | | 11. The Merchant Questionnaire in Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was changed. |
| | | 12. Item 2.13 of Appendix 5 (Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program) was amended with regards to the Acquirer's approval of |

P.147 Page 8 of 170

the Merchant Application

the Loyalty Program) was amended with regards to the Acquirer's approval of

| | | 1. Subsection 3.1.1.2 was amended with regard to the Operator's rights. |
|------|------------|---|
| | | 2. Subsection 3.1.2 was amended with regard to the conditions (description) of the Operator's Promotion. |
| | | 3. Subsection 3.2.1.1 was amended with regard to the Customer's liabilities. |
| | | 4. Subsections 3.2.2.3 and 3.2.4 were amended with regard to the procedure of an individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program. |
| | | 5. Subsections 3.2.2.2 and 3.2.5 were amended with regard to sending text messages to a Customer. |
| | | 6. Subsection 3.2.7 was amended with regard to a Customer's acquaintance with changes in Promotion conditions. |
| 5.1. | 10.01.2023 | 7. Subsection 3.3.1.2 was amended with regard to the Partner's rights. |
| | | 8. Section 6 was amended with regard to the scope and objectives of personal data processing. |
| | | 9. Appendix 3.1. <i>The Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals Program</i> was updated in accordance with the implementation. |
| | | 10. Form 3 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company of Legal Entity or Sole Proprietor Established under the Laws of the Russian Federation (when Filling out the Registration Form on the Website) and Form 4 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company of Organization Established under the Laws of Foreign States, Located outside the Russian Federation (when Filling out the Registration Form on the Website) of Appendix 5 were updated |
| 5.2 | 01.03.2023 | The document was revised with regard to the SBP Cash Back payment under the Operator's Promotions in Subsections 1.2 <i>Terms and Definitions</i> , 3.2 <i>Customer</i> , Section 6 <i>Responsibilities</i> . Appendix 2. <i>The Cash Back for SBP Users Program</i> was added (renumbering all subsequent appendices, including throughout the text of the Regulations) |
| | | 1. Subsection 1.1 <i>Document Purpose and Scope</i> was supplemented regarding the compliance with Article 437 of the Civil Code of the Russian Federation. |
| | | 2. Subsection 3.2.4 was supplemented regarding the information posted in the Customer Profile. |
| | | 3. Section 6 was amended with regards to the scope and purposes of personal data processing. |
| 5.3. | 01.06.2023 | 4. Appendix 2. <i>The Cash Back for SBP Users Program</i> was amended with regards to the Customer consent. |
| 3.3. | 01.00.2023 | 5. Appendix 4.1. <i>The Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals Program</i> was amended in accordance with the implementation. |
| | | 6. Appendix 6. Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program was amended with regards to the stages of registration of an additional partner trademark in the Loyalty Program (when using the Partner Profile). |

P.147 Page 9 of 170

7. In Appendix 6, Forms of the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee and Annex 2 to Merchant

| | | Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program were amended, and Annex 2.1 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program (<i>Using Item 3.12 of Annex 6 to the Registrations</i>) was removed |
|-----|------------|--|
| | | 1. Subsection 3.2.2.3 was amended with regard to the procedure of an individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program. |
| 5.4 | 28.06.2023 | 2. Appendix 4.1. <i>The Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals Program</i> was amended in accordance with the implementation. |
| | | 3. Appendix 6. Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program was amended with regard to the Promotion arrangement |
| | | 1. The term 'Promotion' was changed (Subsection 1.2). |
| | | 2. Subsection 3.2.2 was amended with regard to the provision of the Customer's consent and with regard to the Customer's refusal to receive informational and advertising messages. |
| 5.5 | 04.10.2023 | 3. Subsection 3.2.2.3 was amended with regard to the individual's refusal to receive informational and advertising messages. |
| | | 4. Subsection 3.5.6 was amended with regard to individuals' consents. |
| | | 5. Section 8 was amended with regard to the Issuer's responsibility for failure to obtain the individual's consent or failure to provide it at the Operator's request |
| | | 1. Subsection 3.2.6 was clarified regarding Customer notification of the Mir Card exclusion from the Loyalty Program. |
| | 24.10.2023 | 2. Subsection 3.3.1.2 is amended with regard to the Partner's rights to post the information about Promotions and the Loyalty Program. |
| 5.6 | | 3. Subsection 3.5.6 was amended with regard to the Issuer's guarantees. |
| | | 4. Section 5 was amended with regard to the Bank posting information materials. |
| | | 5. Appendix 4.1. <i>The Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals Program</i> was clarified with regard to the Service name and Personal Data transfer |
| 6.0 | 15.11.2023 | The document was fully revised |
| | | 1. Section 3.4 was clarified as regards the accedence of a credit institution to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as an Acquirer. |
| 6.1 | 02.05.2024 | 2. Some technical typos were corrected in Appendix 2 and Appendix 6. |
| | | 3. Information about the option to access Lounges using the USIA ID was added to Appendix 4.1 |
| | | 1. Subsection 3.2.2 clarified the warranties that the Customer provides when registering in the Loyalty Program. |
| 6.2 | 09.08.2024 | 2. Subsection 3.2.6 clarified the grounds for excluding a Customer's Mir Card from the Loyalty Program at the initiative of the Operator. |
| | | 3. Section 8 clarified the Issuer's liability in case of violation of Subsection 3.5.6 hereof. |

P.147 Page 10 of 170

| | | 4. Appendix 4.1 was clarified |
|-----|------------|---|
| 6.3 | 16.08.2024 | Section 6 was amended with regard to the list of personal data and the purposes of their processing |
| 6.4 | 17.02.2025 | The definition of the term <i>Customer</i> in Subsection 1.2 was clarified. Subsection 3.1.1.1 was amended with regard to the Operator's obligations. Subsections 3.2.2, 3.2.2.1, 3.2.4 were amended. Appendix 4.1 was clarified |
| 6.5 | 30.04.2025 | Section 6 of the Regulations was amended with regard to the purposes of Personal Data processing. Changes were made throughout the Regulations with regard to the Website address and the name of the Loyalty Program. Appendix 4.1 was clarified. Changes were made to Sub-item 3.3.6 |
| 6.6 | 23.07.2025 | Changes were made throughout the Regulations with regard to Cash Back for transactions using e-money. Appendix 5. The Discount Program was added. Appendix 6.1 was clarified with regards to the terms of access to Lounges. Forms of the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee were updated. Changes were made to Annex 6 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program. The sequence of the Program Appendices was changed |

Page 11 of 170 P.147

Contents

| 1. | General | Provisions | 15 | |
|----|--|--|----|--|
| | 1.1. Doc | cument Purpose and Scope | 15 | |
| | 1.2. Ter | ms and Definitions | 15 | |
| | 1.3. Reg | gulations Change Procedure | 20 | |
| | 1.4. Not | ice | 20 | |
| 2. | Introdu | ction to the Regulations | 21 | |
| 3. | Loyalty | Program Subjects | 23 | |
| | 3.1. Ope | erator | 23 | |
| | 3.1.1. | Operator's Rights and Obligations | 23 | |
| | 3.1.2. | Operator's Promotion | 27 | |
| | 3.2. Cus | stomer | 28 | |
| | 3.2.1. | Customer's Rights and Obligations | 28 | |
| | 3.2.2. Accedence of Individual to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Progr Customer29 | | | |
| | 3.2.3. | Changing Customer Credentials | 35 | |
| | 3.2.4. | Customer Profile | 36 | |
| | 3.2.5. | Mir Card Registration in the Loyalty Program | 38 | |
| | 3.2.6. | Excluding Mir Card From the Loyalty Program | 40 | |
| | 3.2.7. | Conditions of Participation in Promotions | 42 | |
| | 3.2.8. | Receipt and Review of Customer Requests | 42 | |
| | 3.2.9. | Enabling Customers to Receive Sales Receipts in Electronic Form | 44 | |
| | 3.2.10. Regulat Profile | Using Third Party Services for the Purpose of Individual's Accedence to the ions (Registration in the Loyalty Program) and Provision of Access to the Custome 45 | er | |
| | 3.2.11. | Termination of Customer's Participation in the Loyalty Program | 47 | |
| | 3.3. Par | tner | 48 | |
| | 3.3.1. | Partner's Rights and Obligations | 48 | |
| | 3.3.2. Partner | Merchant's Accedence to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) 51 | as | |
| | 3.3.3. | Changing Partner Credentials | 53 | |
| | 3.3.4. | Partner Profile | 53 | |
| | 3.3.5. | Partner Promotion | 54 | |
| | 3.3.6. | Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program | 56 | |
| | 3.4. Acc | quirer | 58 | |
| | 3.4.1. | Acquirer's Rights and Obligations | 58 | |
| | 3.4.2. | Accedence of Credit Institution to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty | | |
| | Ū | n) as Acquirer | | |
| | 3.4.3. | Changing Acquirer Credentials | | |
| | 3.4.4. | Bank Profile | 63 | |

| | 3.4.5. (Partner) | Acquirer's Participation in Certain Procedures of Interaction Between Merchant and Operator | . 64 |
|----------------------|--------------------------|---|-------------|
| | 3.4.6. | Termination of Acquirer's Participation in the Loyalty Program | |
| 3 | 3.5. Issue | er | |
| | 3.5.1. | Issuer's Rights and Obligations | .65 |
| Program) as 3.5.3. A | | Accedence of Credit Institution to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty) as Issuer | . 68 |
| | | Accedence of the Bank of Russia to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty) as Issuer | . 69 |
| | 3.5.4. | Changing Issuer Credentials | .70 |
| | 3.5.5. | Bank Profile | .70 |
| | 3.5.6. Registrat | Issuer's Assistance in Individuals' Accedence to the Regulations and Mir Cards tion in the Loyalty Program | .71 |
| | 3.5.7. | Termination of Issuer's Participation in the Loyalty Program | .72 |
| 4. | Confider | ntiality | .74 |
| 5. | | e Rights to Intellectual Property and Their Use Rules | |
| 6. | Personal | Oata | |
| 7. | Force M | ajeure | .82 |
| 8. | Responsi | ibilities | .83 |
| 9. | Governi | ng Law. Dispute Resolution Under the Loyalty Program | ,90 |
| 10. | Anti-cor | ruption Clause | .91 |
| Ap | pendix 1. | The Cash Back for Mir Cardholders Program | .92 |
| Ap | pendix 2. | The Cash Back for SBP Users Program | ,98 |
| Ap | pendix 3. | The Bonus Program | 103 |
| Ap | pendix 4. | The Prize Program | 107 |
| Ap | pendix 5. | The Discount Program | 111 |
| Ap | pendix 6. | The Service Program | 113 |
| Appendix 6.1. Pass) | | 1. The Mir Pass Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations Program (A 114 | Mir |
| _ | pendix 7. Interaction | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Tern Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program | |
| | | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program | |
| Pa | yment Ca | of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations of National System Joint-Stock Company of Legal Entity or Sole Proprietor Establishmus of the Russian Federation | ied |
| Pa | yment Cai | of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations of National System Joint-Stock Company of Organization Established Under the Lawses, Located Outside the Russian Federation | of |
| | Form of | the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Contro | ol / 158 |

Page 13 of 170 P.147

| | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program | |
|------------|---|---|
| Annex 3 to | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program | f |
| Annex 4 to | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program16 | f |
| | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program16 | |
| | Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program | |

Page 14 of 170 P.147

1. General Provisions

1.1. Document Purpose and Scope

The Loyalty Program regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company (hereinafter, the 'Regulations') provide terms of participation in the Loyalty Program of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company (hereinafter, the 'Loyalty Program'), methods and procedures of interaction between the Loyalty Program Subjects, including the settlement procedure, and define rights, responsibilities, and roles of the Loyalty Program Subjects.

The Regulations are deemed a contract of affiliation under Article 428 of the Civil Code of the Russian Federation. Accedence to the Regulations is done in accordance with the procedure defined in the Regulations.

Under Article 437 of the Civil Code of the Russian Federation, this document is the official written public offer to accede to the Regulations. These Regulations are intended for any individual, Bank or Merchant willing to enter into the Regulations accession agreement under the terms set forth in the Regulations; an individual must also meet the requirements set forth in Item 3.2.2 hereof, a Merchant – the requirements set forth in Item 3.3.2 hereof, an Acquirer – the requirements set forth in Item 3.4.2 hereof, an Issuer – the requirements set forth in Item 3.5.2 hereof.

Accedence to the Regulations means acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards without any exceptions and/or limitations.

The Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards are binding for all Loyalty Program Subjects.

The Operator posts the Regulations on information resources on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru (hereinafter, the 'Website'), https://sbp.nspk.ru/, h

1.2. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used herein shall have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Promotion – a marketing event of a Partner / Operator addressed to the general public as a public offer, initiated by the Partner / Operator, aimed at stimulating demand and increasing sales of Goods through the active use of Mir Cards by Customers when purchasing Goods, and/or at boosting transactional activity with Mir Cards, at popularizing the purchase of Goods via SBP, followed by payment / accrual of a Reward by the Partner / Operator to a Customer.

P.147 Page 15 of 170

Authentication – a verification of the identifier presented by a person, including their password and/or access code to enter Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, the person's pseudonym, codeword, phone number, other information or a set of information about the person, which uniquely identifies them among others.

Bank – a credit institution that meets the criteria defined in the Regulations, having acceded to the Regulations as an Acquirer and/or Issuer, or the Bank of Russia issuing bank cards under MIR trademark.

Partner ID in SBP (**Legal ID**) – a unique identifier assigned to a Partner by the Operator when the Partner implements the option to pay for Goods using SBP involving a certain Acquirer.

Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID) – a unique identifier assigned to a Partner's POS by the Operator when the option to pay for Goods using SBP is implemented in it.

Mir Card – a bank card issued by the Bank of Russia or provided to a Customer by an Issuer in accordance with the Mir Payment System Regulations, registered in the Loyalty Program, including a Mir Co-badged card, except as otherwise provided by the Promotion Rules.

Customer – an individual over the age of eighteen, having acceded to the Regulations as a Customer with an assigned individual identifier (a Cumulative card) and purchasing Goods. Minors over the age of fourteen may participate in the Loyalty Program only with the consent of their lawful guardians.

Partner ID (**PID**) – an individual digital code assigned by the Operator, allowing an unambiguous identification of the Partner under the Loyalty Program, in cases where the Partner arranges Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards.

Card Acceptor ID Code – an identifier assigned by an Acquirer to a Partner's POS under a separate agreement between the Acquirer and the Partner, that is used in addition to a Partner ID for an unambiguous identification of the Partner's POS under the Loyalty Program, information about which is provided by the Partner in the manner prescribed by the Regulations for the purpose of arranging a Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards / changing the conditions (description) of the Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards.

Card Acceptor Terminal ID – an identifier assigned by an Acquirer to a Point-of-Sale terminal under a separate agreement between the Acquirer and the Partner, that is used in addition to a Partner ID and Card Acceptor ID Code for an unambiguous identification of the Partner's POS under the Loyalty Program, information about which is provided by the Partner in the manner prescribed by the Regulations for the purpose of arranging a Promotion / changing the conditions (description) of the Promotion.

P.147 Page 16 of 170

Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions – a refund of Reward amounts for SBP transactions erroneously debited from Loyalty Program Subjects, debiting of Reward amounts for SBP transactions erroneously credited to Loyalty Program Subjects, debiting (refund) of Reward amounts erroneously paid upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions for SBP transactions.

Bank Profile – a web-service hosted on the Operator's server used for organizing information exchange between the Bank and the Operator in the manner prescribed by the Regulations or the Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution Registration in the Loyalty Program as Acquirer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Acquirer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program or the Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution or the Bank of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program.

Customer Profile – a web-service hosted on the Operator's server that a Customer uses to obtain and enter Customer data, information about Promotions held, transactions performed, Rewards accrued / paid / provided / refunded, other information as determined by the Operator, as well as to perform actions through which the Customer participates in the Loyalty Program.

Partner Profile – a web-service hosted on the Operator's server that a Partner uses to obtain and enter Partner data, information about Promotions it holds, transactions performed, Rewards, and other fees, accrued / paid / provided / refunded, other information as determined by the Operator, as well as for the purposes of using software to create the Promotion page and changing the conditions (description) of the Promotion, to organize information exchange between the Partner and the Operator and to perform other actions through which the Partner participates in the Loyalty Program.

Mobile Application – the Operator's software installed on a Customer's mobile device (smartphone, tablet) using which the Customer can access the Customer Profile. The Operator posts the link to download the latest version of the Mobile Application on the Website. Internet connection is required to use the Mobile Application.

Cumulative Card – a Loyalty Program card without physical medium issued by the Operator in digital form and identifying the Customer in the Loyalty Program.

Request – any written or oral Customer's request about matters related to the Regulations or their execution, accedence thereto, Loyalty Program participation, participation in Promotions and fulfillment of conditions of Promotions.

Operator – an organization defining the Regulations and exercising rights and obligations provided for by the Regulations. National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company (NSPK JSC) is the Operator.

P.147 Page 17 of 170

Partner – a legal entity (organization) or a sole proprietor (**Merchant**) matching the criteria determined by the Regulations, having acceded to the Regulations as a Partner.

Operator's Platform – the Operator's hardware and software system that provides Operator Services and/or ensures calculation (provision) of Rewards and other fees, including but not limited to: Website, Customer Profile, Partner Profile, Bank Profile, Portal, Mobile Application.

Portal – an information resource of the Internet at: https://support.nspk.ru, designed, among other things, to ensure information exchange and technical interaction with the Bank.

Regulations (Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company, NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Regulations) – a document (documents) regulating the general terms of participation in the Loyalty Program that includes, among other programs, the *Bonus* Program, the Cash Back for Mir Cardholders Program, the Cash Back for SBP Users Program, the Service Program, the Prize Program, provided for by appendices hereto, and other conditions defined by the Operator in accordance with the laws of the Russian Federation.

Promotion Rules – a document regulating the terms of the Promotion, as well as conditions under which a Customer is paid / provided a Reward, which is a public offer and is an integral part of the Loyalty Program Regulations.

Reward – a form of Customer incentive in the Loyalty Program (bonus points, reward points, other items, financial incentive, incentive in kind and other kinds of incentive) under the Promotion held by a Partner / Operator. The type of Reward is determined based on the type of the Loyalty Program.

Loyalty Program of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company (NSPK JSC Loyalty Program, Loyalty Program) – a set of measures aimed at strengthening the appeal of Mir Cards, Operator's Services, as well as encouraging the active use of Mir Cards when purchasing Goods and popularizing the purchase of Goods via SBP, including by creating a network of Partners providing Customers with Rewards. Loyalty Program types include, among others, the Bonus Program, the Cash Back Program, the Service Program, the Prize Program and other programs provided for by appendices hereto.

Website – an information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru designed, among other things, to ensure information exchange and technical interaction with Customer, Partner.

SBP Website – information resources on the Internet at: https://sbp.nspk.ru/, https://быстрыеплатежи.рф/, aimed, among other things, at information and technical interaction with the Customer on Promotions held within SBP.

Third Party Services – tools owned by third parties that provide a simplified quick accession of individuals to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) and/or authentication in the Customer Profile and/or allow keeping the Customer information up to date. The information about

P.147 Page 18 of 170 Third Party Services and the list thereof are posted on the information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru.

Faster Payments System (SBP) – a service for fast payments of the Bank of Russia payment system.

Loyalty Program Standards – a document(s) which is an integral part of the Regulations, establishing the rights and obligations of the Loyalty Program Subjects, necessary for the Loyalty Program functioning.

Loyalty Program Subject (Subject) – a Customer, Partner, Bank (hereinafter also referred to as **Loyalty Program Participant(s)**) and the Operator.

Fees – a document which is an integral part of the Regulations, determining, subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the amount and terms of payment (charging) / provision of a Reward and other fees under the Loyalty Program.

Good – a good / work / service sold to a Customer under conditions of the Partner's Promotion, paid for by the Customer using a Mir Card or via SBP, and/or Operator's Services.

Product-dependent Promotion – a Promotion containing terms of payment / provision of a Reward when a Customer pays for certain types, groups (and the like) of Goods.

Point of Sale (POS) – a separate subdivision and/or separate facility (store) of a Partner (Merchant) and/or an Internet resource (Website) where Goods of the Partner (Merchant) are sold.

Operator's Services – services related to the use of the Operator's Platform, including services of information exchange between Loyalty Program Subjects, as well as services related to the execution of Federal Law No.161-FZ dd. 27.06.2011 On the National Payment System, including Operator's Services rendered directly or indirectly (as part of services provided to third parties), without which a Customer cannot participate in the Loyalty Program and receive Rewards.

Customer Support – a set of equipment, software, processes, ensuring collection and processing of requests from Customers and other persons by phone and/or via other communication channels determined by the Operator.

For individuals: Customer Support phone number: 8 (800) 100 – 54 – 64; Customer Support email address: info@nspk.ru; Customer Support online chat and feedback form on the Website https://vamprivet.ru and in the Mobile Application; Mir Pay Mobile Application feedback form.

For legal entities and sole proprietors (Merchants): Customer Support phone number: 8 (495) 705 – 99 – 99; Customer Support email address: ams_support@nspk.ru.

Acquirer – a credit institution that acceded to the Regulations, services a Partner and implements the option of paying for Goods with Mir Cards and/or via SBP.

Issuer – a credit institution that acceded to the Regulations, implemented Mir Cards issuance and/or the option of paying for Goods via SBP for individuals.

P.147 Page 19 of 170 Other terms and definitions used herein shall have the meanings as defined in appendices to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards, Mir Payment System Regulations, the laws of the Russian Federation.

1.3. Regulations Change Procedure

The Operator may unilaterally and at any time amend the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards.

The Operator posts the amended Regulations on the Website, the SBP Website and/or the Portal, as well as Customer Profile / Partner Profile (if technically feasible).

The Operator posts the Regulations amended with respect to the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees on the Website and/or Portal, and/or Partner Profile (if technically feasible).

Amendments to the Regulations, including with respect to the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, are posted at least thirty (30) business days prior to the effective date of the amendments. The effective date of the amendments is indicated in the upper right corner of the first page of the Regulations / Loyalty Program Standards / Fees.

1.4. Notice

Translation of Documents

A third party shall not do translation of any document developed by NSPK JSC unless authorized in writing by NSPK JSC. NSPK JSC does not control and is not responsible for the content of the translated document.

The translated texts of documents devised by NSPK JSC shall only be used by a third party to establish the content and meaning of such documents and shall not be legally binding.

The texts of documents compiled in Russian shall prevail over those in another language.

P.147 Page 20 of 170

2. Introduction to the Regulations

The Loyalty Program is aimed at strengthening the appeal of the Operator's Platform, Operator's Services, Mir Cards and the Faster Payments System, as well as encouraging their active use, including when purchasing Goods.

A Customer is entitled to receive a Reward subject to compliance with the requirements herein.

The amount and type of the Reward, the terms, procedure, methods of its accrual, payment / provision and refund are determined by the Regulations, including appendices thereto, and Promotion conditions. The Partner / Operator convey the amount of the Reward, its type and terms of accrual to a Customer by posting the Promotion information in the Customer Profile.

For Promotions involving purchase of Goods via SBP, payment of Reward amounts accrued and paid as Cash Back, refund of such Reward amounts, Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, payment of interchange fee amounts under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transactions, NSPK JSC fee amounts for informational and technical interaction services under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transactions, provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees, are made by the Bank of Russia as an off-us funds transfer to correspondent accounts (subsidiary accounts) of Banks with the Bank of Russia:

- for payment and refund of Reward amounts for SBP transactions, Loyalty Program
 Adjustments for SBP Transactions: against orders for SBP made by the Bank of
 Russia based on messages containing information about Reward amounts sent by
 NSPK JSC to the Bank of Russia on behalf of a Bank;
- for payment of interchange fee amounts under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transactions, NSPK JSC fee amounts for informational and technical interaction services under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transactions, provided for by the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Fees (hereinafter, other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions): based on messages containing net position logs of these amounts sent by NSPK JSC to the Bank of Russia on behalf of a Bank, in the urgent funds transfers service of the Bank of Russia Payment System.

The Bank's orders are deemed given once the Bank sends to NSPK JSC the necessary and sufficient information for NSPK JSC to generate the above-mentioned messages.

Under the Loyalty Program, a Customer purchases Goods solely for personal, family, household and other use not related to business activities. Goods purchased under the Loyalty Program must be fully paid for with a Mir Card or using SBP.

P.147 Page 21 of 170

Relations between Subjects are governed by these Regulations, the Mir Payment System Regulations, the Faster Payments System Operational and Clearing Regulations, the Bank of Russia Payment System regulations¹, separately concluded agreements, and the laws of the Russian Federation. The Issuer who is an Indirect Participant must settle under the Regulations via bank accounts opened with the Issuer who is a Direct Participant – Sponsor (hereinafter, the 'Sponsor') pursuant to the procedure set forth in the agreements concluded between the Direct Participant and Indirect Participants, as well as the Mir Payment System Regulations. The Sponsor is liable to Subjects for financial obligations arising from the payment / provision / refund of Rewards of sponsored Issuers who are Indirect Participants.

The information about credit institutions that acceded to the Regulations as Issuers and implemented Mir Cards issuance and/or the option of paying for Goods via SBP for individuals is posted on the Website (https://vamprivet.ru), in the Mobile Application.

The Operator's Platform provides for differentiation of access to information depending on the Loyalty Program Participants' level. Each Loyalty Program Participant only has access to the information related to its activities under the Loyalty Program, and information that it has entered on his own into the Operator's Platform. When entering information, the Loyalty Program Participant warrants that it has full power to use and post such information on the Operator's Platform.

Loyalty Program Participant is liable for accuracy and reliability of information it enters into the Operator's Platform.

The terms Loyalty Program of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company, NSPK JSC Loyalty Program, Loyalty Program for Mir Payment System, Cash Back Service for Mir Cardholders, Loyalty Program for Mir Cardholders, Privet! Loyalty Program, as well as Loyalty Program Regulations for Mir Payment System, Cash Back Service Regulations for Mir Cardholders, and Loyalty Program Regulations for Mir Cardholders are similar in meanings. No agreements shall be entered into due to the change in the program name.

P.147 Page 22 of 170

¹ The Bank of Russia Payment System regulations are posted on the Internet at https://www.cbr.ru/PSystem/payment_system/.

3. Loyalty Program Subjects

3.1. Operator

3.1.1. Operator's Rights and Obligations

3.1.1.1. The Operator shall:

- Determine the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, organize and supervise the execution thereof by Loyalty Program Participants;
- determine the procedure for informational and technical interaction between Subjects;
- perform administration and maintenance of the Operator's Platform at his own expense;
- notify Loyalty Program Participants of scheduled preventive maintenance or failure recovery, error recovery or other remedial work on the Operator's Platform;
- calculate Rewards, other fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees;
- determine, in accordance with the Mir Payment System Regulations, net positions in Russian Rubles of Acquirers and Issuers performing settlement of Promotions providing for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, taking into account the amounts of Rewards, other fees, calculated in accordance with the Regulations and Fees, adjustment amounts, Reward amounts erroneously debited from / credited to Subjects, Reward amounts paid when a Customer failed to comply with the terms of the Promotion;
- determine, in accordance with the Faster Payments System Operational and Clearing Regulations on a bilateral basis net positions of Acquirers and Issuers in the amount of the interchange rate under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transaction, the amount of NSPK JSC fee for informational and technical interaction services under the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program for SBP transactions, provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions;
- on behalf of Banks, send to the Bank of Russia messages containing information on Reward amounts for SBP transactions, amounts of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, net position logs of other fee amounts provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions, for the Bank of Russia to perform off-us funds transfers to correspondent accounts (subsidiary accounts) of Acquirers and Issuers performing settlement of Promotions providing for purchase of Goods via SBP, for the purposes of payment or refund of Reward amounts for SBP transactions, for the purposes of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP

P.147 Page 23 of 170

Transactions, settlement of other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions;

- send information, including information about Reward amounts and other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees, information about amounts of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions to Acquirers and Issuers performing settlement of Promotions providing for purchase of Goods via SBP, to debit and credit Reward amounts to accounts of its Customers, individuals and legal entities (Partners), to pay or refund Rewards and to perform settlement of other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions, to perform settlement for the purposes of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions;
- provide Loyalty Program Participants with reports addressed to them on the payment / provision of Rewards, other fees, and transactions performed under the Loyalty Program;
- maintain a list of Issuers and post it on the Website, the SBP Website;
- when a Customer contacts the Customer Support, identify them using the information previously provided by the Customer, allowing their unambiguous identification;
- enable Banks to use the Portal, Bank Profile in order to interact under the Loyalty Program;
- conduct inquiries of disputes;
- provide informational, technological, and organizational support to Participants under the Loyalty Program, ensure the Customer Support operation;
- notify of changes to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, as well
 as the Operator's Platform operating conditions by posting information on the
 Website, the SBP Website and/or the Portal, and/or Customer Profile / Partner
 Profile (if technically feasible);
- in case the Operator arranges (holds) a Promotion:
 - pay / provide a Reward to a Customer in accordance with Promotion conditions, the Regulations and Fees;
- perform other obligations of the Operator as determined by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.1.1.2. The Operator shall have the right to:

P.147 Page 24 of 170

- determine requirements to Promotion conditions, including the lower limit of Rewards:
- make amendments (at its sole discretion) to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees;
- make amendments (at its sole discretion) to the Operator's Platform operating conditions;
- suspend the operation of the Operator's Platform to perform preventive maintenance when errors, failures and other malfunctions are detected, as well as to prevent unauthorized access to the Operator Platform (part thereof);
- receive fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees;
- initiate on behalf of the Acquirer a payment order for fees provided for by the Regulations in the amount established by the Fees, include this payment order in the Net position in the manner prescribed by the Mir Payment System Regulations;
- request from Banks servicing a Customer and/or a Partner information on the possibility of off-us funds transfers to correspondent accounts (subsidiary accounts) of Banks for the purposes of payment and/or refund of Rewards for SBP transactions, other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions, settlement for the purposes of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions;
- request from Banks information about crediting/debiting to/from the account of a
 Customer and/or a Partner the Reward amount, the amount of Loyalty Program
 Adjustments for SBP Transactions, debiting of other fees provided for by the
 Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions;
- request from Banks and Partners information and documents related to their activities under the Loyalty Program, including related to Requests from Customers;
- when processing Requests from Customers and preparing responses to them, use the information on Customer's transactions of purchase of Goods with a Mir Card and/or using SBP, as well as prepare responses to Customer Requests using this information;
- fulfill the Partner's / Acquirer's obligation to pay a fine to a Customer provided for by the Regulations in case of delay in fulfillment of the obligation by Partner / Acquirer. The Customer's income in the form of a fine received as a result of the Operator fulfilling the obligation to pay the fine on behalf of the Partner / Acquirer is taxable based on Articles 41, 209 of the Tax Code of the Russian Federation;

P.147 Page 25 of 170

- if fulfilling the obligation to pay a fine to a Customer for a Partner / Acquirer, recover the funds used to secure the performance of obligations of the Partner / Acquirer in the manner prescribed by the laws of the Russian Federation;
- pay Rewards provided for by a Partner Promotion to a Customer on behalf of a Partner, if the Partner is unable to pay such Rewards independently;
- require a Partner to refund the Reward amount paid on behalf of the Partner under the Partner Promotion;
- terminate the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program on the grounds and in the manner provided for hereby;
- deny a Customer the registration of their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program if the Mir Card is invalid, or the performance of transactions with this Mir Card is restricted;
- unilaterally deny the accrual and payment / provision of a Reward if a Customer performs act contrary to the Regulations and/or aimed at receiving Rewards, including without the actual purchase of Goods for personal use (hereinafter, fraud);
- upon detecting non-accrual / inaccurate accrual / erroneous accrual / accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions (in full or in part) of a Reward, other fees, and/or cases of improper debiting of the Reward amount from a Customer by an Issuer in accordance with information received from the Operator, perform settlement / payment / provision of the Reward to the Customer or perform settlement of a refund of the Reward to the Customer in the amount equal to the one erroneously accrued or accrued upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, other feed in accordance with the Promotion conditions, Regulations and Fees;
- organize marketing activities to promote and implement the Loyalty Program, activities to provide the Loyalty Program Participants with the necessary promotional and informational materials, as well as activities related to conducting statistical, marketing and other studies and surveys;
- engage third parties to promote, implement and support the Loyalty Program, as
 well as to conduct statistical, marketing and other studies and surveys, provide the
 engaged parties with the information about the Loyalty Program, the Operator,
 Banks, Partners, Promotions and with other information necessary to perform the
 tasks provided for in this Section;

P.147 Page 26 of 170

- suspend or terminate the Loyalty Program at any time with ninety (90) calendar days' notice to Loyalty Program Participants before the date of suspension (termination) of the Loyalty Program;
- post on the Website the information about the Merchant's intent to accede to the Regulations;
- arrange Promotions in accordance with the Promotion Rules and the laws of the Russian Federation, change the Rules of such Promotions;
- request that a Customer refunds a Reward in accordance herewith;
- send to an individual for whom an individual account and the Loyalty Program Customer Profile were generated and who has not acceded to the Regulations (registered in the Loyalty Program) as provided for by Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof, text / MMS messages to their mobile phone number, messages via the Internet, including to the email address of the individual, push notifications regarding the Loyalty Program, the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes to the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners, information about any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users;
- exercise other rights provided for by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.1.2. Operator's Promotion

An Operator's Promotion is arranged in accordance with the Operator's Promotion Rules.

The Operator completes the Promotion arrangement by posting the Promotion page on the Website. From the moment the Promotion page is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

The Operator is entitled to change the conditions (description) of the Promotion posted on the Website.

The Operator posts the Promotion page (as amended) on the Web-site. From the moment the Promotion page (as amended) is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

The Operator is entitled to suspend the Promotion if such suspension is due to valid reasons (including technical). The Operator enters the relevant information about the suspension of the Promotion on the Promotion page on the Web-site. In this case,

• the suspension does not entail the reduction of the Promotion term;

P.147 Page 27 of 170

 upon expiration / cancellation of the suspension, the Promotion must remain in force on terms not less favorable than those specified by the Operator when arranging the Promotion or changing the Promotion conditions prior to the suspension.

No Rewards (including Rewards for Goods purchased by a Customer with a Mir Card or using SBP under Promotions) shall be accrued / payable / provided under a suspended Promotion.

An expired Promotion becomes unavailable to Customers.

The conditions (description) of the Promotion can be additionally posted on the SBP Website at the Operator's discretion, e.g., in cases where an SBP Promotion is generated.

3.2. Customer

3.2.1. Customer's Rights and Obligations

3.2.1.1. The Customer shall:

- act in accordance with the Regulations, conditions of a Promotion, as well as under agreements concluded with a Partner and Issuer;
- ensure the availability of funds on the Customer's account or e-money balance in
 the amount required to refund the Reward in accordance with the Regulations or
 conditions of a Promotion, including to refund the Reward in case of its erroneous
 accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion
 conditions:
- refund the Reward in accordance with the Regulations, including in case of its erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions;
- ensure storage of Customer data in a manner that prevents third parties from accessing it;
- ensure the use of antivirus protection on devices used to access the Customer Profile;
- independently monitor changes made by the Operator to the Rules, changes made to the procedure and terms of the Operator's or Partner's Promotion, and visit the Website and/or the SBP Website to obtain the latest information about the Rules, the procedure and terms of the Operator's or Partner's Promotion;
- notify the Operator of changes in information registered in the Loyalty Program (Customer credentials) in accordance with Subsection 3.2.3 hereof;

P.147 Page 28 of 170

- store documentary evidence of the purchase of Goods with a Mir Card or using SBP under the Loyalty Program;
- provide other Subjects with documentary evidence of the purchase of Goods with a Mir Card or using SBP (including sales receipts, warranty certificates, and other documents supporting the purchase of Goods with a Mir Card or using SBP), in the manner and within the time limits specified in Customer requests to resolve disputes over debiting and/or crediting and/or provision of a Reward to the Customer;
- when making Requests via any channel available under the Loyalty Program, not use obscene or abusive language, profanities, threats to life, health and property of the Operator's employees and third parties;
- perform other obligations of the Customer as determined by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.2.1.2. The Customer shall have the right to:

- obtain a Reward in accordance with the Regulations and Promotion conditions;
- use additional services and facilities provided for by the Loyalty Program;
- receive information about purchase of Goods transactions performed with a Mir Card or using SBP under a Promotion, the amounts of Rewards, the purchase history, and other information about the Loyalty Program;
- terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with the Regulations;
- exercise other rights provided for by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.2.2. Accedence of Individual to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) as Customer

Any individual can participate in the Loyalty Program.

In order to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), an individual shall:

- receive a Mir Card / be a Mir Cardholder or use SBP to purchase Goods;
- enter into the Regulations accession agreement as a Customer;

The Regulations accession agreement is entered into in one of the following ways:

P.147 Page 29 of 170

- by filling out a registration form on the Website / in the Mobile Application / other information resources of the Operator on the Internet in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.1 hereof;
- by filling out a registration form on the Operator's Platform in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.2 hereof;
- by performing, as an individual, other acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program, in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof;
- by using, as an individual, Third Party Services, in accordance with Subsection 3.2.10 hereof.

By acceding to the Regulations, an individual:

- warrants that the information provided when registering in the Loyalty Program is comprehensive, relevant, and reliable; an individual is responsible for reliability, relevance, and completeness of information they provide;
- warrants that they are legally capable, and act in their name and on their behalf, unless such acts are performed in the name and on behalf of another person, or warrants that the consent of a lawful guardian for the individual's accedence to the Regulations and participation in Promotions under the Loyalty Program in the form and manner provided for by the laws of the Russian Federation has been obtained and is valid (for when minors over the age of fourteen accede to the Regulations);
- certifies that at the time of accedence to the Regulations they have read the Regulations and found no circumstances that prevent them from participating in the Loyalty Program;
- warrants that they are the holder of the mobile phone number, information about which is provided by the Customer for the purposes of registration in the Loyalty Program;
- warrants that they are the holder of the Mir Card, information about which is provided by the Customer for the purposes of registration in the Loyalty Program;
- warrants that the Mir Card, information about which is provided by the Customer for the purposes of registration in the Loyalty Program, is valid (enabled and not expired);
- warrants a connection to SBP and a consent to receiving and/or withdrawing funds from their settlement account opened with an Issuer or the account to record emoney and used for transfers via SBP;
- consents to participating in SBP Promotions using all their settlement accounts opened with Issuers or accounts to record e-money and used for transfers via SBP;

P.147 Page 30 of 170

- warrants that they fully accept all provisions of the Regulations without any exceptions and/or limitations;
- undertakes to comply with the Regulations;
- confirms the provision of a prior consent to receive Operator's messages regarding the Loyalty Program, the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes to the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners, information about any marketing events and third party promos for Mir Cardholders, information about any marketing events and third party promos within SBP, by sending text / MMS messages to a mobile phone number and via the Internet, including to the email address provided in the registration form, push notifications (messages transmitted via the Internet to the Customer's device via the Mobile Application), messages in mobile applications / web-services for instant messaging (instant messengers), messages in social media accounts, notifications in a Customer Profile and/or otherwise as set forth hereby;
- certifies that they have given consent to the Bank to provide the Operator with information on purchase of Goods transactions performed with a Mir Card or using SBP under the Promotion;
- certifies that they have given consent to audio recording of their requests to the
 Customer Support, telephone conversations between the Customer and the
 Operator, and also acknowledges that such recordings can be used as evidence in
 accordance with Article 55 of the Civil Procedure Code of the Russian Federation;
- instructs the Partner to provide the Operator with digital information required to calculate and accrue a Reward for Product-dependent Promotions, including information contained in a sales receipt or accountable form generated by the Partner for a purchase of Goods transaction.

Providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may prevent an individual from registering in the Loyalty Program, participating in the Loyalty Program and/or Promotions, receipt / provision of a Reward, and may also constitute grounds for limiting access to the Customer Profile.

The Operator is entitled to refuse an individual who intends to accede to the Regulations subject to at least one of the following conditions:

- a registration form is filled out improperly (mandatory data is missing etc.);
- data provided by an individual matches the credentials of a Customer registered in the Loyalty Program earlier;
- an individual does not confirm the registration in the Loyalty Program in accordance with the Regulations;

P.147 Page 31 of 170

on other grounds as determined by the Operator.

When an individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer, the Operator issues a Cumulative Card to them. The Cumulative Card is deemed activated upon its issue. The Cumulative Card remains unchanged throughout the entire period of a Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program. The Operator cancels the Cumulative Card upon termination of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program. When a Customer performs Purchase of Goods transactions provided for by the conditions of the Operator's Promotions, they have the opportunity to do so with simultaneous accrual of reward points at the Customer's Cumulative Card.

A Customer is entitled to notify the Operator of their refusal to receive messages regarding the Promotions held by the Operator and / or Partner, changes to the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners for Mir Cardholders, information about any marketing events and third party promos for Mir Cardholders, information about any marketing events and third party promos within SBP distributed via the Internet to the email address provided by the individual in the registration form and other means of communication, including by sending text / MMS messages to the individual's mobile phone number by contacting the Customer Support. The Operator fulfills the Customer's request not later than the next business day from the date of its receipt and, if necessary, notifies the Customer thereof in the manner specified in the request.

3.2.2.1. Individual's Accedence to the Regulations (Loyalty Program Registration) by Filling out Registration Form on Website / in Mobile Application / Other Information Resources of the Operator on the Internet

An individual properly fills out the registration form:

- on the Website;
- in the Mobile Application;
- using other information resources of the Operator on the Internet.

When an individual fills out a registration form on the Website, they complete the registration in the Loyalty Program by clicking *Register* or another button confirming registration (hereinafter, the 'Button') in the registration form. Clicking the Button, as indicated above, is the moment when an individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer. At the same time the Operator may send to the Customer a message with an email confirmation link to the address indicated in the registration form, and/or a text message containing a password to access the Customer Profile on the Website, to the mobile phone number indicated in the registration form.

P.147 Page 32 of 170

An individual can register in the Loyalty Program via the Mobile Application by filling out the registration form in the Mobile Application and clicking *Next* or another button confirming registration (hereinafter, the 'Button') on the Mobile Application's *Profile Data* page. Clicking the Button, as indicated above, is the moment when an individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer.

An individual can register in the Loyalty Program using other information resources of the Operator on the Internet by filling out the registration form and clicking *Next* or another button confirming registration (hereinafter, the 'Button') on the page of such an information resource of the Operator on the Internet. Clicking the Button, as indicated above, is the moment when an individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer.

3.2.2.2. Individual's Accedence to the Regulations (Loyalty Program Registration) by Filling out Registration Form on Operator's Platform

In cases where an Issuer/Partner assists the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations, the Issuer/Partner can, at an individual's request, ensure that the registration form is filled out in accordance with the terms of this Subsection.

The Issuer, in the presence of the individual, based on the provided information, enters the individual's mobile phone number into the registration form. The Operator verifies the individual's registration in the Loyalty Program. To confirm the individual's consent to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program) and to register their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program, the Operator sends to the individual a validation code in a text / MMS message to the mobile phone number indicated in the registration form. The individual conveys to the Issuer the validation code received from the Operator in a text / MMS message. The Issuer fills out the registration form and completes the registration of the individual in the Loyalty Program by entering the validation code into the registration form. Entering the validation code, as indicated above, is the moment when an individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer.

The Partner provides the individual with a link to the information resource on the Internet (Website) / in the Partner's mobile application to a registration form on the Operator's Platform. The individual properly fills out the registration form. The Operator verifies the individual's registration in the Loyalty Program and sends to the individual a validation code in a text / MMS message to the mobile phone number indicated in the registration form. An individual entering the validation code in the registration form is the moment when the individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer.

P.147 Page 33 of 170

3.2.2.3. Individual's Accedence to the Regulations (Loyalty Program Registration) by Performing Acts Aimed at Participation in the Loyalty Program

In cases where an Issuer assists the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations under Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution or the Bank of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program, NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Standard. Loyalty Program Technologies, including when individuals use other products, services or facilities of the Operator, the individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with provision of this Subsection.

Based on the information provided by the Issuer, the Operator performs acts required to generate an individual account, the Customer Profile and to register their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program when the individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program). The Operator, after performing actions specified in this paragraph and before an individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program), is entitled to send to such an individual text / MMS messages to their mobile phone number, messages via the Internet, including to the email address of the individual, push notifications regarding the Loyalty Program, the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes to the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners, information about any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users.

The individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by:

• accessing the Customer Profile on the Website by properly filling out the registration form on the Website;

or

• purchasing Goods in accordance with conditions set forth in the Promotion;

or

• using the Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations, Ports Terminals, Bus Terminals Program.

The individual performing one of the acts described above (the first performed) is the moment when the individual accedes to the Regulations as Customer.

The individual is entitled to notify the Operator of their refusal to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program) before performing the acts described above by contacting the Customer Support or the Issuer. Within three (3) business days from the receipt of the notification, the Operator notifies the individual about fulfilling their request by sending them a text message.

P.147 Page 34 of 170

An individual is entitled to notify the Operator of their refusal to receive messages regarding the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes in the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners for Mir Cardholders, information about any marketing events and third party promos for Mir Cardholders, information about any marketing events and third party promos within SBP distributed via the Internet to the email address provided by the individual in the registration form and other means of communication, including by sending text / MMS messages to the individual's mobile phone number, before the accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program), by contacting the Customer Support. The Operator fulfills the individual's request not later than the next business day from the date of its receipt and, if necessary, notifies the individual thereof in the manner specified in the request.

3.2.3. Changing Customer Credentials

In case of changes in the credentials registered in the Loyalty Program, as well as any other changes that may significantly affect the Customer's or Operator's execution of the Regulations, the Customer must make the appropriate changes to the registration form in the Customer Profile.

To correct errors in the date of birth registered in the Loyalty Program, the Customer can make the appropriate changes to the registration form in the Customer Profile once (to the extent technically feasible) or by contacting the Customer Support (if changes via the Customer Profile are not technically feasible).

If the Customer changes the password and mobile phone number in the Customer Profile, the Operator, in order to confirm changes made by the Customer to the registration form, sends to the Customer the validation code(s) in a text message to the mobile phone number specified in the registration form. The Customer completes changes to the registration form by entering the validation code received from the Operator in the text message in the Customer Profile.

If the Customer changes the email address in the Customer Profile, the Operator, in order to confirm changes made by the Customer to the registration form, sends to the Customer a message comprising a confirmation link to the new email address specified in the registration form. The Customer completes changes to the registration form by following a link from the message received from the Operator.

Making changes to the credentials in accordance with the provisions of this Subsection, the Customer guarantees that the information provided is comprehensive, relevant, and reliable; the Customer is responsible for reliability, relevance, and completeness of information they provide.

Moreover, Customer credentials can be amended or changed when using a Third Party Service subject to the provisions of Subsection 3.2.10 hereof.

P.147 Page 35 of 170

3.2.4. Customer Profile

Access to the Customer Profile is granted by the Operator.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations by filling out a registration form on the Website / in the Mobile Application / other information resources of the Operator on the Internet in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.1 hereof, the Customer Profile is accessed:

- when logging into the Customer Profile on the Website, using the password independently created by the Customer or the password sent by the Operator to the Customer's mobile phone number;
- when logging into the Customer Profile via the Mobile Application, using a four-digit access code set by the Customer themselves,

and based on successful Authentication.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations by filling out a registration form on the Operator's Platform in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.2 hereof, the Customer Profile is accessed:

- when logging into the Customer Profile on the Website, using the password sent by the Operator to the individual's mobile phone number;
- if the password send by the Operator to the individual's mobile phone number is lost, when logging into the Customer Profile on the Website, using the password independently created by the Customer;
- when logging into the Customer Profile via the Mobile Application, using a fourdigit access code set by the Customer themselves,

and based on successful Authentication.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof, the Customer Profile is accessed:

- when logging into the Customer Profile via the Website, using the password created by the Customer themselves;
- when logging into the Customer Profile via the Mobile Application, using a fourdigit access code set by the Customer themselves,

and based on successful Authentication.

The Customer also has the right to access the Customer Profile in accordance with Subsection 3.2.10 hereof.

In case of unauthorized access by third parties to the information about the password / access code and/or to the Customer Profile, the Customer must immediately notify the Customer Support.

P.147 Page 36 of 170

The Customer must use the Customer Profile themselves. They must not give their password / access code to the Customer Profile to third parties.

If the Customer loses the password, the Customer can request a password change by filling out a corresponding form on the Website.

If the Customer loses the access code to the Customer Profile, the Customer can set a new access code via the Mobile Application by filling out a corresponding form in the Mobile Application.

The Customer Profile allows the Customer to:

- generate a request to the Operator to confirm the email address specified when the individual acceded to the Regulations (registered in the Loyalty Program) by filling out the registration form on the Website in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.1 hereof. The Operator then sends to the Customer a message with a link to confirm the email address to the address specified in the registration form. The Customer confirms the email address by following the link from the message received from the Operator;
- make changes to the Customer credentials;
- apply for registration and register Mir Cards in the Loyalty Program / delete information about Mir Cards registered in the Loyalty Program;
- receive relevant information about Promotions and any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users;
- receive information for the last twelve (12) months about the number and amount of the performed purchase of Goods transactions that participate in Promotions, as well as amounts of Rewards accrued and received by the Customer under Promotions under the Loyalty Program (if technically feasible);
- receive information for the last twelve (12) months about prizes and/or bonus points and/or amounts accrued and received by the Customer within their participation in any marketing activities and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users;
- receive information for the last twelve (12) months about the number and amount of purchase return transactions, as well as amounts of Rewards to be refunded to the Partner / Operator;
- exchange information under the Loyalty Program;
- delete the account (profile);
- receive additional information regarding the option to participate in Promotions,
 e.g., the information regarding whether a particular Mir Card is a 'region's card'. A 'region's card' is a Mir Card with the information uploaded to it, provided for by regulatory legal acts of the appropriate region of the Russian Federation. The

P.147 Page 37 of 170

information regarding a Customer's Mir Card being a 'region's card' is added, as well as removed, solely based on the data received by the Operator from the third parties having entered into the appropriate contracts or agreements with the Operator. The Operator shall not be liable for the relevance of such information;

• use other services provided by the functionality of the Customer Profile.

The Operator shall have the right to:

- deny a Customer access to the Customer Profile if the Customer violates the Regulations;
- restrict Customer's access to all or some of the functions of the Customer Profile (e.g., if not a single Mir Card is registered in the Customer Profile (not added during registration, deleted by the Customer, including due to its expiry); if the Customer's Mir Card registered in the Customer Profile was issued by the Bank not being a Loyalty Program Subject or having terminated its participation in the Loyalty Program; in other cases at the Operator's discretion);
- make changes to the Customer Profile without prior notice to the Customer;
- provide in the Customer Profile the information about the number and amounts of transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP under any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders or SBP users, respectively, the amounts of fees accrued and received by the Customer under these marketing events and promos, and other information, including about the purchase history (if technically feasible).

If the Customer ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will block the Customer's access to the Customer Profile from the date the Customer ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program.

3.2.5. Mir Card Registration in the Loyalty Program

A Mir Card can be registered in the Loyalty Program under the following conditions:

- The Issuer who issued the Mir Card is a participant of the Loyalty Program;
- BIN used to issue the Mir Card is enabled under the Loyalty Program;
- The Mir Card is not a corporate electronic payment instrument;
- The Mir Card is valid (enabled and not expired);
- The Mir Card was issued to the Customer's name.

One mobile phone number of the Customer can be used to register in the Loyalty Program several Mir Cards issued by the Issuer(s) to the Customer.

P.147 Page 38 of 170

The Customer registers their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program when acceding to the Regulations (registering in the Loyalty Program) if the registration form provides for the corresponding field for the Mir Card registration, or at any moment of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program.

When an individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by filling out the registration form on the Website / in the Mobile Application in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.1 hereof, to register a Mir Card in the Loyalty Program, the Customer fills out the corresponding registration form. The Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program and informs the Customer of successful registration of a Mir Card via the Customer Profile.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by filling out the registration form on the Operator's Platform in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.2 hereof, the Issuer, in order to register the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program upon the individual's request, is entitled to fill out the registration form on the Operator's Platform. The Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program and informs the Customer of successful registration of a Mir Card via the Customer Profile.

In cases where the Issuer assists the Operator in registering the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program, the Issuer, at the request of the individual, is entitled to fill out the registration form on the Operator's Platform under the following conditions. The Issuer, in the presence of the individual, based on the provided information, enters the individual's mobile phone number and Mir Card PAN into the registration form. The Operator verifies the individual's registration in the Loyalty Program / absence of the Mir Card registration in the Loyalty Program. To confirm the Customer's acceptance to register their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program, the Operator sends to the individual a validation code in a text / MMS message to the mobile phone number indicated in the registration form. The Customer conveys to the Issuer the validation code received from the Operator in a text / MMS message. After the Issuer fills out the registration form and enters the validation code into it, the Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program and informs the Customer of its successful registration via the Customer Profile.

In cases where the Partner assists the Operator in the individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) by filling out the registration form on the Operator's Platform in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.2 hereof, the Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program upon the individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer.

In cases where the Partner assists the Operator in registering the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program, the Issuer, at the request of the individual, is entitled to fill out the registration form on the Operator's Platform under the following conditions. The Partner provides the individual with a link to the information resource on the Internet (Website) / in the Partner's mobile application to a

P.147 Page 39 of 170

registration form on the Operator's Platform. The individual properly fills out the registration form. The Operator verifies the individual's registration in the Loyalty Program / absence of the Mir Card registration in the Loyalty Program, registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program and informs the Customer of its successful registration via the Customer Profile.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program provided for by Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof, the Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program upon the individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer.

If the Issuer does not participate in the Loyalty Program, the Customer can apply for Mir Card registration in the Loyalty Program by filling out the corresponding registration form on the Website. The Operator registers the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program upon the Issuer's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program). The Operator informs the Customer of successful Mir Card registration in the Loyalty Program via the Customer Profile.

The Operator is entitled to deny the Customer the registration of their Mir Card in the Loyalty Program subject to at least one of the following conditions:

- The Issuer who issued the Mir Card does not participate in the Loyalty Program;
- BIN used to issue the Mir Card is not enabled under the Loyalty Program;
- The Mir Card is a corporate electronic payment instrument;
- The Mir Card is invalid;
- There are restrictions on transactions with the Mir Card;
- There is no technical capability to register the Mir Card on the Operator's Platform;
- the information provided for the purpose of registering the Mir Card in the Loyalty Program matches (in full or in part) the Mir Card data previously registered in the Loyalty Program.

In accordance with the procedure defined in this subsection of the Regulations, Mir Cards issued by the Issuer to individuals (Customers) previously registered in the Loyalty Program with (or without) Mir Cards registered in the Loyalty Program can be registered in the Loyalty Program.

3.2.6. **Excluding Mir Card From the Loyalty Program**

A Mir Card can be excluded from the Loyalty Program:

at the initiative of the Operator. The Operator is entitled to exclude a Mir Card from the Loyalty Program, including in the following cases:

P.147 Page 40 of 170

- if information is received from the Issuer about the invalidity of the Mir Card via the Portal / communication channels as defined by the Operator;
- if there are restrictions on transactions with the Mir Card;
- if information is received from the Issuer about the exclusion of the Mir Card from the Loyalty Program via the Portal / communication channels as defined by the Operator;
- if information is received that the Mir Card is a corporate electronic payment instrument;
- if the Operator decides to terminate the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program;
- if the Issuer who issued the Mir Card notifies the Operator of the termination of the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program;
- if the Operator receives information about the absence of transaction activity with a Mir Card for more than eight (8) consecutive months;
- if Customer fraud is detected.

If technically feasible, the Operator notifies the Customer about excluding the Mir Card from the Loyalty Program by any means available to the Operator. The Mir Card is deemed excluded from the Loyalty Program from the moment it is deleted from the Customer Profile.

• at the initiative of the Customer. A Customer is entitled to exclude a Mir Card from the Loyalty Program at any time by deleting the Mir Card data in the Customer Profile. A Mir Card is deemed excluded from the Loyalty Program from the moment the Mir Card data is deleted in the Customer Profile.

When an individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program provided for by Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof, if the individual notifies the Customer Support or the Issuer of their refusal to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), the Operator, within three (3) business from receipt of the notification, informs the individual about excluding the Mir Card from the Loyalty Program by sending a text message.

Rewards for Goods purchased with a Mir Card under the Promotion before the Mir Card exclusion from the Loyalty Program are accrued and paid / provided in the manner defined by the Regulations. Rewards for Goods purchased with a Mir Card after its exclusion from the Loyalty Program are not accrued and not paid / provided.

P.147 Page 41 of 170

3.2.7. Conditions of Participation in Promotions

A Customer can participate in Promotions, the information about which (including their procedure and conditions) is posted on the Website, the SBP Website and/or in the Customer Profile, as set out by the Promotion conditions.

For a Customer to participate in a Promotion:

- for the Customer to participate in Promotions for Mir Cardholders, the Mir Card used for purchasing Goods under the Promotion must be registered in the Loyalty Program in accordance with Subsection 3.2.5 hereof, unless otherwise provided for by the Operator's Promotion Rules. If the Mir Card is registered in the Loyalty Program, re-registration of the Mir Card for the Customer to participate in the Promotion is not required;
- for the Customer to participate in Promotions for SBP users, before purchasing Goods and before the date of the Reward receipt, in accordance with the Promotion conditions, the Customer must be an SBP user and must enable their Issuer (the bank with which the Customer's account is opened and using which they access SBP) to credit funds (Cash Back) via SBP to their bank account opened with this Issuer.

The Customer joins the Promotion by purchasing Goods and/or performing other acts in accordance with terms of the Promotion. The Customer joining the Promotion means the Customer's acceptance in full of all terms and conditions of the Promotion without any exceptions and/or limitations.

In cases where the Partner assists the Operator in the individual's accedence to the Regulations in accordance with Subsection 3.2.2.2 hereof and/or the Mir Card registration in the Loyalty Program in accordance with Subsection 3.2.5 hereof, the individual joins the Promotion when acceding to the Loyalty Program Regulations. The individual joining the Promotion means their acceptance in full of all terms and conditions of the Promotion without any exceptions and/or limitations.

In case of changes in the procedure and conditions of the Promotion, the information about such changes is posted on the Website, the SBP Website and/or in the Customer Profile. The Customer purchasing Goods and/or performing other acts in accordance with the new procedure and conditions of the Promotion mean the Customer's acceptance of all the changes in the procedure and conditions of the Promotion without any exceptions and/or limitations.

3.2.8. Receipt and Review of Customer Requests

A Customer can send a Request under these Regulations as follows:

P.147 Page 42 of 170

- in electronic format via the Customer Profile on the Website and in the Mobile Application or to the email address of the Operator info@nspk.ru;
- in writing via Russian Post;
- orally when contacting the Customer Support by phone.

A Request must contain the following:

- Customer's mobile phone number registered in the Loyalty Program;
- the description of circumstances that led to the Request;
- other information pertinent to the Request. To prove the circumstances the Request
 is based on, the Customer is entitled to enclose documentary evidence or copies
 thereof to the Request.

3.2.8.1. Request Processing

When receiving a written Request via post, Customer Profile or Operator's email address info@nspk.ru:

- the Operator identifies the Customer using the information provided earlier by the Customer, allowing their unambiguous identification. The Customer's email address does not constitute the information allowing for the Customer identification.
- the Request is documented within one (1) business day;
- the Request response is provided to the Customer via the Customer Profile / other communication channels within thirty (30) calendar days from the Request registration. If a Request review required additional information and documents from a Customer, Partner, Bank or third parties, the Request processing may be extended, but not more than for thirty (30) calendar days;
- the Request response regarding personal data processing is provided to the Customer within ten business days upon receipt of the Customer's Request, in accordance with the NSPK JSC Policy of Personal Data Processing and Protection. This period can be extended, but by no more than five (5) business days, if the Operator sends a justified notification to the Customer, specifying the reasons for extending the period for providing the requested information.

When receiving an oral Request by phone via the Customer Support:

• the Customer Support employee identifies the Customer using the information provided earlier by the Customer, allowing their unambiguous identification;

P.147 Page 43 of 170

- the Customer Support employee enquires into the reasons behind the Customer's Request and registers it;
- the Request response is provided to the Customer during the phone call with the Customer Support employee or, if it is not possible, via the Customer Profile / other communication channels within thirty (30) calendar days from the Request registration. If a Request review required additional information and documents from a Customer, Partner, Bank or third parties, the Request processing may be extended, but not more than for thirty (30) calendar days.

In order to process a Request, the Operator may request from the Customer the information and documents provided for by the laws of the Russian Federation, these Regulations and the Operator's internal documents and required to settle the Customer's Request (including sales receipts, warranty certificates, and other documents supporting the purchase of Goods with a Mir Card or using SBP). If the Customer fails to provide the requested information and documents, the Operator may deny the Customer's Request. The Operator can also request additional information and documents required to settle the Customer's Request from Partner, Bank or third parties.

If it is not possible to settle the Request in the above manner, the Customer is entitled to seek redress under the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.2.8.2. Grounds for Dismissing a Request

A Request is dismissed in the following cases:

- the Request is unreadable;
- the Customer failed to undergo the stipulated identification procedure;
- the Request was resubmitted, and a response had been previously given to a similar Request;
- the Customer sought legal redress under the laws of the Russian Federation and/or a judgment on this Request was delivered in court;
- the Request contained profanities, was made in blunt terms. If there are such Requests, the Operator reserves the right to terminate the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program, with mandatory prior notification of the Customer by posting the information in the Customer Profile;
- the retention period for the documents required for Request processing has expired.

3.2.9. Enabling Customers to Receive Sales Receipts in Electronic Form

P.147 Page 44 of 170

For the implementation of Federal Law 54-FZ dd. 22.05.2003 *On the Use of Cash Registers for Settlement in the Russian Federation* to enable the Customer to receive sales receipts in electronic form generated when settling with Merchants, organizations or sole proprietors who use cash registers, the Operator is entitled to request and receive electronic sales receipts from third parties on the Customer's behalf, for the Customer to receive them via the Customer Profile and/or Banks' / Partners' / third parties' resources, including on the Internet, the list of which is posted on the Website, as well as perform all other actions necessary to fulfill the Customer's request.

The Customer's accedence to these Regulations is a duly executed instruction from the Customer to the Operator enabling the Customer to receive sales receipts in electronic form generated when settling with Merchants, organizations or sole proprietors who use cash registers.

In order to execute such instruction, the Customer accepts that:

- the Customer can be provided with electronic sales receipts containing the date of settlement with the Customer earlier and/or later than the date of Customer's instruction;
- electronic sales receipts are provided to the extent technically feasible by the
 Operator and third parties involved. Otherwise, an electronic sales receipt is not
 provided to the Customer, which cannot be deemed a failure to execute the
 instruction and be the grounds for claims;
- the instruction applies to the provision of electronic sales receipts to the Customer generated at the moment when the Customer performed the purchase of Goods; no additional instructions or consents for the provision of sales receipts for a single purchase of Goods is required from the Customer;
- the instruction is provided for the entire period of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program;
- the Operator is entitled to engage third parties to fulfill the instruction without obtaining additional Customer consent.

The information obtained by the Operator while fulfilling the instruction can be used for the purpose of implementing the Loyalty Program, conducting statistical, marketing and other studies.

3.2.10. Using Third Party Services for the Purpose of Individual's Accedence to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) and Provision of Access to the Customer Profile

P.147 Page 45 of 170

Individuals and Customers are granted the right to use Third Party Services to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), perform Authentication in the Customer Profile, as well as make amendments or change Customer credentials.

An individual can accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program) using Third Party Services. In cases where an individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) using Third Party Services, the registration form is pre-filled out based on information on such an individual stored in Third Party Services. Therewith, the individual, using Third Party Services to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), confirms that the information stored in Third Party Services and transferred to the Operator to pre-fill out the registration form is comprehensive, relevant, and reliable. The completion of the individual's registration in the Loyalty Program and the moment of accedence of the individual to the Regulations as a Customer using Third Party Services are similar to conditions set out in Subsection 3.2.2.1 of the Regulations.

A Customer has the right to access the Customer Profile following a successful Authentication performed using Third Party Services. The Customer using this right is the confirmation of the Customer's proper acquaintance with and consent to these Regulations.

When the Customer uses Third Party Services, Customer credentials can be supplemented or changed based on the information stored in Third Party Services.

The information about an individual is transferred from Third Party Services to the Operator subject to the individual granting these Services their consent to personal data processing, including the transfer of personal data to the Operator for the purposes of ensuring the individual's participation in the Loyalty Program, including by pre-filling out the information about the individual in the registration form on the Website and in the Mobile Application (if technically feasible) for the purposes of Authentication in the Customer Profile and additions and changes to Customer credentials.

Incomprehensive, irrelevant, or unreliable information about an individual stored in Third Party Services and used to pre-fill out the registration form can make it impossible for the individual to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), participate in the Loyalty Program and/or Promotions, be paid / provided a Reward, as well as constitute grounds for limiting access to the Customer Profile.

The Operator shall not be liable for unauthorized access of any third parties to Customer credentials stored in Third Party Services or to the Customer Profile during Authentication using Third Party Services, in cases where such access resulted from the Customer's actions, e.g., conveying passwords or codes to third parties or the Customer violating the terms of use of Third Party Services.

P.147 Page 46 of 170

The information about Third Party Services and the list thereof are posted on the information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru.

3.2.11. Termination of Customer's Participation in the Loyalty Program

The Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program can be terminated on the following grounds:

- at the initiative of the Operator. The Operator is entitled to terminate the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program without prior notice for any reason, including if the Customer fails to comply with the Regulations and/or commits fraud aimed at obtaining Rewards, and/or provides misleading information or misrepresentations about themselves.
 - Should the Operator decide to terminate the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Operator notifies the Customer thereof via the Customer Profile. The Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program terminates the moment the information is posted in the Customer Profile;
- at the initiative of the Customer. The Customer is entitled to terminate their participation in the Loyalty Program at any time by deleting their profile (account) in the Customer Profile on the Website. The Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program terminates the moment their profile (account) is deleted from the Customer Profile.

When the individual accedes to the Regulations (registers in the Loyalty Program) by performing acts aimed at participation in the Loyalty Program provided for by Subsection 3.2.2.3 hereof, if the individual notifies the Customer Support or the Issuer of their refusal to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program), the Operator, within three (3) business days from receipt of this notification, informs the individual of the termination of Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program by sending a text message.

When the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program terminates:

• Rewards (including Rewards for Goods purchased by the Customer with a Mir Card or using SBP under a Promotion) to be accrued and paid / provided to the Customer are accrued and paid / provided in the manner set forth in the Regulations and appendices thereto, provided that the Customer performs acts that meet the Promotion conditions before the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program terminates. After termination of Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program Rewards are not accrued and are not paid / provided;

P.147 Page 47 of 170

the Reward for Goods purchased by the Customer with a Mir Card or using SBP under the Promotion before the termination of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program and returned by the Customer to the Partner / Operator after the termination of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program is refunded under the Regulations.

The termination of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program does not release the Customer from obligations arising in connection with their participation in the Loyalty Program, including those related to the refund of the Reward and other settlement.

3.3. Partner

3.3.1. Partner's Rights and Obligations

3.3.1.1. The Partner shall:

- perform its activities in accordance with the Regulations, Loyalty Program
 Standards and Fees, as well as under agreements with the Acquirer;
- coordinate with the Acquirer, Operator the participation in the Loyalty Program;
- pay to the Acquirer fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees;
- pay / provide a Reward to a Customer in accordance with Promotion conditions, the Regulations and Fees;
- fulfill the Operator's requirement to refund the Reward amount paid by the Operator on behalf of the Partner under the Partner Promotion within the time period specified by the Operator;
- ensure payment for Goods and settlement related to payment / provision of the Reward through the Acquirer that approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program / agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program;
- arrange Promotions in accordance with the Promotion Rules and the laws of the Russian Federation;
- provide the Operator, for the purposes of arranging a Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards / changing the conditions (description) of the Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, with the Card Acceptor ID Code and the Card Acceptor Terminal ID in the manner stipulated hereby;
- provide the Operator, for the purposes of arranging a Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods using SBP / changing the conditions

P.147 Page 48 of 170

- (description) of the Promotion providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods using SBP, with the Partner ID in SBP (Legal ID) and the Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID) in the manner stipulated hereby;
- update the information about the Card Acceptor ID Code and Card Acceptor
 Terminal ID registered in the Loyalty Program;
- support the Operator in testing of the Promotion arrangement, changes in conditions (description) of the Promotion, in the manner determined by the Operator or specified by the Operator in the relevant request;
- enforce all rights of Customers as consumers provided for by the laws of the Russian Federation when transferring Goods to Customers under Promotions performed under the Loyalty Program;
- guarantee to Customers that the Goods they purchase under a Promotion with a Mir Card or using SBP comply with the Promotion conditions (including when holding Product-dependent Promotions);
- guarantee to the Operator that Goods sold to Customers under Promotions meet the requirements of the laws of the Russian Federation, that their sale is not limited nor prohibited;
- guarantee to the Operator the availability of all required rights / licenses / permits to sell Goods to Customers under Promotions;
- independently determine contractual relations associated with the purchase of Goods by Customers under Promotions under the Loyalty Program;
- provide the Operator with the information and documents related to the Partner's
 participation in the Loyalty Program, including those related to Requests received
 from Customers in the manner and within the time limits specified by the Operator
 in the corresponding request;
- notify the Operator of changes in the information contained in the registration form (application) provided for the purposes of accedence to the Regulations, as well as the information registered in the Loyalty Program (Partner registration data) not later than ten (10) business days before such changes take effect via the Partner Profile / Partner communication channels determined by the Operator;
- provide assistance to the Operator in dispute resolution;
- within the period specified in the Operator's request, reimburse in cash the expenses incurred by the Operator if fulfilling the obligation to pay a fine to a Customer for a Partner;

P.147 Page 49 of 170

- ensure the storage of data in a way that prevents unauthorized persons from accessing it, independently take all measures required to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Partner Profile from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons;
- ensure the use of antivirus protection on firmware used to access the Partner Profile;
- independently track changes made by the Operator to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and visit the Website to obtain the latest information;
- ensure integrity and invariability of any information about the Loyalty Program (including the information about Promotions and terms of participation therein, about Goods and terms of their purchase) posted on the Partner's resources, including on the Internet, the information posted on the Website or in the Mobile Application;
- ensure that funds spent by the Customer on the purchase of Goods under the Promotion are refunded if such Goods are returned, using credentials of the Mir Card that was used to pay for the Goods (if the Goods were purchased under the Promotion providing for payment of Rewards for purchasing Goods with Mir Cards), specifying all the necessary identifiers, or using the same Customer account that was used to purchase the Goods (if the Goods were purchased under the Promotion providing for payment of Rewards for purchasing Goods using SBP), specifying all the necessary identifiers;
- perform other obligations of the Partner, as determined by the Regulations, Loyalty
 Program Standards and Fees, and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.3.1.2. The Partner shall have the right to:

- determine (change), as agreed upon with the Operator, the procedure and terms of the Promotion, the Reward settlement procedure;
- receive from the Customer the Reward refund in accordance herewith. If the
 Operator is unable to refund the Reward, the Partner is entitled to independently
 request the refund of the Reward from the Customer under the laws of the Russian
 Federation;
- use additional services and facilities provided for by the Loyalty Program;
- receive information about purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP, the amounts of Rewards payable to the Customer or refundable by the Customer, and other information about the Loyalty Program;

P.147 Page 50 of 170

- when detecting that Rewards were not accrued / were accrued incorrectly to
 Customers under the Promotion (including incorrect Promotion arrangement),
 independently contact the Operator to calculate Rewards, other fees under the
 Regulations and Fees and include them into settlement with Banks;
- terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with the Regulations;
- engage third parties in performing obligations defined herein. Charging third parties
 with the performance of obligations does not relieve the Partner from liability to the
 Subjects for the performance hereunder;
- assist the Operator when individuals accede to the Regulations and register Mir
 Cards in the Loyalty Program according to the procedure defined herein;
- post the information about the Loyalty Program (including the information about Promotions and terms of participation therein, about Goods and terms of their purchase) on its own resources, including on the Internet;
- exercise other rights provided for by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.3.2. Merchant's Accedence to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) as Partner

A Merchant intending to accede to the Regulations as a Partner must meet the following criteria:

- be a legal entity or a sole proprietor established under the laws of the Russian Federation, or an organization established under the laws of foreign states, located outside the Russian Federation;
- not carry out activities forbidden by the laws of the Russian Federation;
- have a contractual relationship with the Acquirer who is a Loyalty Program Subject to settle over purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards; and/or
- have a contractual relationship with the Acquirer who is a Loyalty Program Subject to settle over purchase of Goods transactions performed using SBP.

A Merchant is entitled to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program) for the purposes of arranging Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods either only with Mir Cards or only using SBP, or with Mir Card and SBP.

P.147 Page 51 of 170

Providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may prevent a Merchant from registering in the Loyalty Program, participating in the Loyalty Program, and may also constitute grounds for limiting access to the Partner Profile.

For the purposes of accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program), the Merchant or its authorized representative submits (sends) to the Operator the original copy of the application for the Merchant's accedence to the Regulations on forms given in Appendix 6 hereto, and the original copy of the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee on forms given in Appendix 6 hereto.

For the purposes of accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program), the Merchant (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator) can also fill out the registration form on the Website in the Partner Profile and submit (send) to the Operator in accordance with the procedure defined in the Regulations the application for the Merchant's accedence to the Regulations on forms given in Appendix 6 hereto, as well as the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee on forms given in Appendix 6 hereto.

The procedure for registering a Merchant in the Loyalty Program as a Partner is defined in Appendix 6 hereto, while the Operator sending a notification to the Merchant on registering the Merchant in the Loyalty Program is the moment when the Merchant accedes to the Regulations as a Partner, meaning:

- a confirmation that at the time of accedence to the Regulations the Merchant has
 read and understood the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and
 Fees, and found no obstacles to the participation in the Loyalty Program;
- Merchant's acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the Regulations, including
 Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, without any exceptions and/or limitations.

A Partner may also expand its participation in the Loyalty Program (e.g., a Partner having earlier acceded to the Loyalty Program for the purposes of arranging Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods only with Mir Cards, may expand its participation to arranging Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods only using SBP, and vice versa). The procedure for expanding the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program is defined in Appendix 6 hereto.

The procedure for registering an additional trademark and/or service mark of a Partner (hereinafter - Partner's additional trademark) in the Loyalty Program is defined in Appendix 6 hereto.

The Procedure for appointing an additional Acquirer to support the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program is defined in Appendix 6 hereto.

P.147 Page 52 of 170

3.3.3. Changing Partner Credentials

In case of changes in the information registered in the Loyalty Program, as well as any other changes that may significantly affect the Partner's or Operator's execution of the Regulations, the Partner must make the appropriate changes to the registration form in the Partner Profile / by providing the Operator with the information about changes via communication channels with the Partner determined by the Operator, including the procedure defined in Appendix 6 hereto.

3.3.4. Partner Profile

The Partner Profile is accessed based on successful Partner Authentication using login as well as password provided by the Operator / generated by the Partner to access the Partner Profile.

In case of unauthorized access of third parties to the information about password and/or the Partner Profile, the Partner must immediately notify the Customer Support or use other communication channels with the Partner determined by the Operator.

The Partner must make sure that only the Partner and/or Partner's authorized persons use the Partner Profile. The use of the Partner Profile by Partner's authorized persons does not release the Partner from liability to Subjects from the execution of these Regulations, as well as the obligation to store their data in a way that prevents access to it by unauthorized persons, from the obligation to take measures to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Partner Profile from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons.

Should the Partner loose login and/or password, the Partner can:

- contact the Customer Support or use other communication channels with the Partner determined by the Operator;
- request a new temporary password by filling out the appropriate form on the Website.

The Partner Profile allows:

- accompanying the Partner at all stages of its participation in the Loyalty Program, including at the stage of accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program);
- making a list of the Partner credentials;
- making changes to the Partner credentials;
- arranging Promotions, making changes to conditions (description) of Promotions,
 suspending Promotions in accordance with the Regulations;
- exchanging information under the Loyalty Program;

P.147 Page 53 of 170

- generating reports on the payment / provision of Rewards, other fees, and transactions performed under the Loyalty Program;
- using other services provided by the functionality of the Partner Profile.

The Operator shall have the right to:

- deny a Partner access to the Partner Profile if the Partner violates the Regulations;
- deny a Partner Promotion arrangement, making changes to conditions (description)
 of Promotions, suspending Promotions in cases where these actions of the Partner
 can harm the Operator's goodwill and/or cause financial losses and/or lead to other
 adverse consequences for the Operator, as well as in other cases provided for by the
 Regulations;
- restrict the Partner's access to all or some functions of the Partner's Profile;
- make changes to the Partner Profile without prior notice to the Partner.

If the Partner ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will block the Partner's access to the Partner Profile after ninety (90) calendar days from the date the Partner ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program.

3.3.5. Partner Promotion

The Partner is entitled to arrange a Promotion subject to the following conditions:

- the Partner is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
- the Operator assigned a Partner ID to the Partner (Partner's POS for which the Promotion is arranged);
- the Acquirer who approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program and ensures processing and settlement of purchase transactions for which the Promotion is arranged is a Loyalty Program Subject.

The Partner's Promotion is arranged in accordance with the Partner's Promotion Rules. The Partner is entitled to change the conditions (description) of the Promotion posted on the Website and on the SBP Website (if an SBP Promotion is arranged), if such changes do not cause deterioration of the existing conditions (description) of the Promotion.

The Partner is entitled to suspend the Promotion if such suspension is due to valid reasons (including technical), and:

• the suspension does not entail the reduction of the Promotion term;

P.147 Page 54 of 170

• upon expiration of the suspension, the Promotion must remain in force on terms not less favorable than those specified by the Partner when arranging the Promotion or changing the Promotion conditions in accordance with the Regulations prior to the suspension. Should the Partner violate these terms, the Operator is entitled to demand that the Partner make appropriate changes in the conditions of the Promotion, and the Partner must eliminate the identified violations within one (1) business day from the Operator's sending of such demand.

The Operator is entitled to deny the Partner the suspension of the Promotion, including if the Operator does not deem the reason for Promotion suspension valid.

A third party (authorized by the Partner) can arrange Promotions, make changes to Promotion conditions (description), suspend Promotion periods on behalf of the Partner. The third party (authorized by the Partner) performing these actions does not release the Partner from liability to Subjects from the execution of these Regulations.

The Partner arranges the Promotion, makes changes to conditions (description) of the Promotion, suspends the Promotion in accordance with the provisions of this Subsection and Appendix 6 to the Regulations.

The Operator is entitled to suspend the Promotion in the following cases:

- if the Partner fails to fulfill (improperly fulfills) or fails to ensure fulfillment of obligations provided for hereby, or if the Operator has information, including from the Partner and/or Bank, indicating the possibility of such failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment, failure to ensure fulfillment), including:
 - the Partner's obligation to pay / provide a Reward to a Customer; obligation to ensure payment for Goods and settlement related to payment / provision of a Reward, through an Acquirer who approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program / agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program; obligation to notify the Operator of changes in credentials in the registration form (application) provided for the purposes of accedence to the Regulations, information registered in the Loyalty Program (Partner's credentials), or to make the corresponding changes to the registration form in the Partner Profile in the cases, in the manner and within the time limits defined by the Regulations;
- if the Bank fails to fulfill (improperly fulfills) or fails to ensure fulfillment of obligations provided for hereby, or if the Operator has information, including from

P.147 Page 55 of 170

the Partner and/or Bank, indicating the possibility of such failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment, failure to ensure fulfillment), including:

- Acquirer's obligations to specify the Partner ID in authorization requests and clearing messages, to provide to the Partner settlement services related to payment / provision of a Reward to a Customer;
- the Issuer's obligation to credit the Reward amount to the Customer in the manner and within the time frames specified herein.

The Operator notifies the Partner of the Promotion suspension (suspension cancellation) not later than the date of the Promotion suspension (suspension cancellation), specifying the grounds (except the notice of suspension cancellation) via the Partner Profile / email address specified in the application for the Merchant's accedence to the Regulations, or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner.

If the suspension is canceled, the Promotion must remain in force on terms not less favorable than those specified by the Partner when arranging the Promotion or changing the Promotion conditions in accordance with the Regulations prior to the suspension. Should the Partner violate these terms, the Operator is entitled to demand that the Partner make appropriate changes in the conditions of the Promotion, and the Partner must eliminate the identified violations within one (1) business day from the Operator's sending of such demand.

No Rewards (including Rewards for Goods purchased by a Customer with a Mir Card or using SBP under the Promotion) shall be accrued / payable / provided under the Promotion that was suspended by the Partner / Operator.

An expired Promotion becomes unavailable to Customers.

3.3.6. Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

The Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program can be terminated on the following grounds:

- at the initiative of the Operator. The Operator is entitled to stop the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program, including in the following cases:
 - initiation of bankruptcy (insolvency) proceedings against the Partner; declaring the Partner insolvent (bankrupt); liquidation of the Partner;
 - the Partner violating the requirements of the Regulations, the laws of the Russian Federation;
 - failure to fulfill and/or improper fulfillment by the Partner of its obligations to the Subjects;

P.147 Page 56 of 170

- the Partner's discharge of a contractual relationship with the Acquirer for settlement of purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP, respectively;
- termination of Loyalty Program participation of the Acquirer who approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program;
- damage to the Operator's goodwill, including establishing facts of claims from other Loyalty Program Participants, obtaining adverse information about the Partner from competent authorities and/or publicly accessible sources;
- absence of activity on behalf of the Partner in the Loyalty Program.

Should the Operator decide to terminate the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will notify the Partner, the Acquirer who approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program / agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, specifying the reason, termination date of all Promotions (if there are ongoing Partner Promotions) and time / date of termination of the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program via the Partner Profile / email address specified in the application for the Merchant's accedence to the Regulations (or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner), and the Portal, and it unilaterally blocks the creation of new Promotions for the Partner from the date of the Operator's notification. The Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program is terminated from the moment / date specified in the Operator's notification;

• at the initiative of the Partner. The Partner is entitled to unilaterally decide to terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program. Should the Partner make such a decision, it must notify the Acquirer who approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program / agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, and the Operator by providing (submitting) to the Operator the original copy of the application for Loyalty Program participation termination at the initiative of the Partner in accordance with the terms set forth in Appendix 6 hereto. The Operator unilaterally blocks the creation of new Promotions for the Partner, and also terminates all Partner Promotions (if there are ongoing Partner Promotions). The Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program is terminated from the moment / date determined in accordance with Appendix 6 hereto.

P.147 Page 57 of 170

Before the moment / date of termination of Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Partner must perform all of its obligations, financial and otherwise, incurred towards other Subjects during the partner's participation in the Loyalty Program.

The termination of the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program does not release the Partner from obligations arising in connection with the participation in the Loyalty Program.

3.4. Acquirer

3.4.1. Acquirer's Rights and Obligations

3.4.1.1. The Acquirer shall:

- perform its activities in accordance with the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards, Mir Payment System Regulations and Fees, the Bank of Russia Payment System regulations, as well as under agreements with Partners, related to settlement of purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP;
- independently determine the contractual relationship with Partners, related to the settlement of purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP;
- provide in agreements with the Partner for the Acquirer's right to debit funds from
 the Partner's bank account in the amount of Rewards and other fees provided for
 by the Loyalty Program Fees, the amount of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP
 Transactions, against an order drawn up by the Acquirer based on the information
 received from the Operator;
- maintain liquidity for faster payments with the Bank of Russia sufficient for payment or refund of Reward amounts for transactions performed using SBP, the amount of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions;
- maintain liquidity on the correspondent account (subsidiary account) sufficient for payment of other fees provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions;
- provide the Operator with information on the possibility of off-us funds transfers to
 its correspondent account (subsidiary account) opened with the Bank of Russia for
 the purposes of payment and/or refund of Rewards for SBP transactions, amounts
 of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, other fees provided for by
 the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP transactions, within the time limits specified by
 the Operator in the corresponding request;

P.147 Page 58 of 170

- provide the Operator with information about debiting from the Partner's account of
 the Reward amount and/or crediting to the Partner's account of the Reward refund
 amount, amounts of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, about
 debiting of other fee amounts provided for by the Loyalty Program Fees for SBP
 transactions, within the time limits specified by the Operator in the corresponding
 request;
- specify in authorization requests and clearing messages the Partner ID that the Acquirer receives from the Operator in accordance with requirements of the Regulations;
- provide the Partner with settlement services related to payment / provision of Rewards to Customers and/or refund of Reward amounts by Customers, including in case of their erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, in accordance with the Regulations and separately concluded agreements between the Acquirer and the Partner;
- debit the Reward amount payable to the Customer from the Partner's bank account (unless the agreement between the Acquirer and the Partner stipulates a different settlement procedure for Rewards payment, provided that the following time limit is observed) or credit the Reward amount, the amount of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, according to the information received from the Operator, for Mir Card transactions – within one (1) business day upon receipt of this information, for SBP transactions – in real time, unless the Promotion conditions provide otherwise;
- pay the Operator, the Issuer fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees. The
 Acquirer charges the Operator with generating a payment order for fees and/or
 Rewards on behalf of the Acquirer in the amount determined by the Fess, and with
 setting the Acquirer's net position in accordance with the Mir Payment System
 Regulations, taking into account the amounts of these payments;
- provide the Operator with the information and documents related to the Acquirer's
 participation in the Loyalty Program, including those related to Requests received
 from Customers in the manner and within the time limits specified by the Operator
 in the corresponding request;
- provide assistance to the Operator in dispute resolution;
- support the Partner and the Operator in testing of the Promotion arrangement, changes in conditions (description) of the Promotion, in the manner determined by the Operator or specified by the Operator in the relevant request;

P.147 Page 59 of 170

- within the period specified in the Operator's request, reimburse in cash the expenses incurred by the Operator if fulfilling the obligation to pay a fine to a Customer for an Acquirer;
- to access the Portal to interact under the Loyalty Program, use the login and password obtained when registering access management on the Portal;
- to access the Bank Profile, use the login and password obtained in accordance with Subsection 3.4.4 of the Regulations;
- ensure the use of the Portal / Bank Profile for the purposes of interaction under the Loyalty Program by persons authorized to perform legal and physical acts determined by the Regulations;
- ensure the storage of Acquirer data in a way that prevents access to it by unauthorized persons, independently take all measures required to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Acquirer data from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons;
- ensure the use of antivirus protection on firmware used to access the Portal / the Bank Profile;
- independently track changes made by the Operator to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and visit the Website (Portal) to obtain the latest information;
- notify the Operator of changes in the information contained in the registration form (application) provided for the purposes of accedence to the Regulations, as well as the information registered in the Loyalty Program (Acquirer registration data) not later than ten (10) business days before such changes take effect via the Portal;
- perform other obligations of the Acquirer, as determined by the Regulations,
 Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.4.1.2. The Acquirer shall be entitled to:

- request the Operator to provide Partner ID, including additional one;
- receive fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees;
- initiate the termination of Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program previously approved by the Acquirer;
- initiate the termination of Partner settlement support for Promotions under the Loyalty Program, by notifying the Operator (via the Bank Profile / Portal) and the Partner (in the manner agreed upon between the Acquirer and the Partner) forty-

P.147 Page 60 of 170

five (45) calendar days prior to the actual date of termination of Partner settlement support for Promotions under the Loyalty Program;

- use additional services and facilities provided for by the Loyalty Program;
- receive information about purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir Cards or using SBP, the amounts of Rewards payable to the Customer or refundable by the Customer, and other information about the Loyalty Program;
- engage third parties (TPP) for information exchange and technical interaction with the Operator under the Loyalty Program. Charging third parties (TPP) with the performance of obligations does not relieve the Acquirer from liability to the Subjects for the performance hereunder;
- post the information about the Loyalty Program (including the information about Promotions and terms of participation therein, about Goods and terms of their purchase) on its own resources, including on the Internet;
- terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with the Regulations;
- exercise other rights provided for by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.4.2. Accedence of Credit Institution to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) as Acquirer

A credit institution intending to accede to the Regulations as Acquirer and supporting Partner's settlement of Promotions related to the purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, must match the following criteria:

- have a valid banking license of the Bank of Russia;
- be an active Direct Participant of Mir.

A credit institution intending to accede to the Regulations as Acquirer and supporting Partner's settlement of Promotions related to the purchase of Goods using SBP, must match the following criteria:

- have a valid banking license of the Bank of Russia;
- be a valid SBP participant under the Faster Payments System Operational and Clearing Regulations.

The procedure for a credit institution's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as an Acquirer is defined in the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution Registration in the Loyalty Program as Acquirer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Acquirer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program on the Portal.

P.147 Page 61 of 170

Providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may result in the inability to register in the Loyalty Program, participate in the Loyalty Program, and may also constitute grounds for limiting access to the Bank Profile.

A credit institution acceding to the Regulations as an Acquirer means:

- a confirmation that at the time of accedence to the Regulations the credit institution
 has read and understood the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and
 Fees, and found no obstacles to the participation in the Loyalty Program;
- credit institution's acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, without any exceptions and/or limitations.

Credit institutions are entitled to accede to the Regulations not only as Acquirers supporting Partner's settlement of Promotions related to the purchase of Goods either only with Mir Cards or only using SBP, but also as Acquirers supporting Partner's settlement of Promotions related to the purchase of Goods both with Mir Cards and using SBP. When registering in the Loyalty Program, a credit institution should independently determine the scope of its participation in the Loyalty Program.

Credit institutions are also allowed expanding the scope of their participation in the Loyalty Program with regards to the support of Partners' participation (settlement) subject to the credit institution's compliance with the criteria set forth in this Section of the Regulations. The procedure for a credit institution to extend the scope of its participation in the Loyalty Program with regards to the support of Partners' participation (settlement) is defined in the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution Registration in the Loyalty Program as Acquirer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Acquirer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program on the Portal.

If a credit institution has previously acceded to the Regulations as Acquirer with regards to the support of Partners' participation (settlement) of Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, then, at first instance of coordination of participation (settlement) support for any of the Partners for Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods using SBP, such an Acquirer is deemed to have confirmed in full its participation in the Loyalty Program (with regards to the support of Partners' participation (settlement) of Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods both with Mir Cards and using SBP) and its acceptance of all conditions of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards in their entirety without any exceptions or limitations.

P.147 Page 62 of 170

3.4.3. Changing Acquirer Credentials

In case of changes in the credentials registered in the Loyalty Program, as well as any other changes that may significantly affect the Acquirer's or Operator's execution of the Regulations, the Acquirer must make the appropriate changes to the registration form on the Portal.

3.4.4. Bank Profile

To gain access to the Bank Profile, the Acquirer provides the Operator with the application about contact persons in accordance with the *Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution Registration in the Loyalty Program as Acquirer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Acquirer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program on the Portal.*

The Bank Profile is accessed based on successful Acquirer Authentication using login and password for the Bank Profile provided by the Operator.

In case of unauthorized access of third parties to the information about password and/or the Bank Profile, the Acquirer must immediately signal this via the Portal / communication channels determined by the Operator.

The Acquirer must make sure that only the Acquirer and/or Acquirer's authorized persons use the Bank Profile. The use of the Bank Profile by Acquirer's authorized persons does not release the Acquirer from liability to Subjects from the execution of these Regulations, as well as the obligation to store their data in a way that prevents access to it by unauthorized persons, from the obligation to take measures to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Bank Profile from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons.

If the Acquirer loses the login and/or password, the Acquirer can request new password by filling out a corresponding form on the Website.

The Bank Profile allows for the information exchange with the Operator, including for the purposes of approval of support for the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, use of other services provided to the Acquirer by the functionality of the Bank Profile.

The Operator shall have the right to:

- deny an Acquirer access to the Bank Profile if the Acquirer violates the Regulations;
- restrict the Acquirer's access to all or some functions of the Bank Profile;
- make changes to the Bank Profile without prior notice to the Acquirer.

If the Bank ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will block access to the Bank Profile from the date the Bank ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program.

P.147 Page 63 of 170

3.4.5. Acquirer's Participation in Certain Procedures of Interaction Between Merchant (Partner) and Operator

The Acquirer's participation in certain procedures of interaction between the Merchant (Partner) and the Operator is set forth in Appendix 6 to the Regulations.

3.4.6. Termination of Acquirer's Participation in the Loyalty Program

The Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program can be terminated on the following grounds:

- at the initiative of the Operator. The Operator is entitled to stop the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program, including in the following cases:
 - the revocation of the Acquirer's banking license by the Bank of Russia;
 - the Acquirer violating the requirements of the Regulations, the laws of the Russian Federation;
 - failure to fulfill and/or improper fulfillment by the Acquirer of its obligations to the Subjects;
 - damage to the Operator's goodwill, including establishing facts of claims from other Loyalty Program Participants, obtaining adverse information about the Acquirer from competent authorities and/or publicly accessible sources;
 - suspension and/or termination of the Acquirer's participation in Mir;
 - suspension and/or termination of the Acquirer's participation in the Bank of Russia Payment System.

Should the Operator decide to terminate the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will notify the Acquirer, specifying the reason and date of termination of the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program via the Portal; the Acquirer notifies Partners whose participation in the Loyalty Program was approved by the Acquirer of the Operator's decision in a manner agreed upon by the Acquirer and its Partners. The Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program is terminated from the date specified in the Operator's notification;

• at the Acquirer's initiative. The Acquirer is entitled to unilaterally decide to terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program. If such a decision is made, the Acquirer must notify the Operator thereof via the Portal and Partners - in a manner agreed upon by the Acquirer and its Partners, not later than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the date of the potential termination of participation in the Loyalty Program.

P.147 Page 64 of 170

Starting from the date when the Operator notifies the Acquirer of the decision to terminate the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program / the Acquirer notifies the Operator of the termination of participation in the Loyalty Program, the Acquirer does not have the right to coordinate the participation of Merchants in the Loyalty Program.

Within the period specified by the Operator when making the decision to terminate the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program or not later than forty-five (45) calendar days before the date of termination of the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program at the Acquirer's initiative, the Operator unilaterally terminates all Promotions of Partners whose participation in the Loyalty Program was previously approved by the Acquirer, and also blocks the arrangement of new Promotions by these Partners. Before the date of termination of the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Acquirer must perform all of its obligations, financial and otherwise, incurred towards other Subjects during the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program.

The termination of the Acquirer's participation in the Loyalty Program does not release the Acquirer from obligations arising in connection with the participation in the Loyalty Program.

The Acquirer, simultaneously supporting the Partner's settlement of Promotions related to the purchase of Goods with Mir Cards and using SBP, is entitled both to terminate its participation in the Loyalty Program in full and to reduce the scope of its participation with regards to the support of Partners' settlement. To reduce the scope of its participation in the Loyalty Program, the Acquirer must send a corresponding notification to the Operator via the Portal. The interaction to reduce the scope of its participation is similar to the interaction provided for in this paragraph hereof.

3.5. Issuer

3.5.1. Issuer's Rights and Obligations

3.5.1.1. The Issuer shall:

- perform its activities in accordance with the Regulations, Loyalty Program
 Standards, Fees and the Mir Payment System Regulations, as well as under
 agreements with Customers;
- independently determine contractual relations with Customers related to the performance of transactions with Mir Cards and using SBP;
- make a provision in agreements entered into with Customers for the Issuer's right
 to debit funds from Customers' bank account in the amount of to the Reward
 refundable to the Operator / Partner, the amount of the Loyalty Program
 Adjustments for SBP Transactions, in accordance with the Regulations or

P.147 Page 65 of 170

- Promotion conditions, against an order drawn up by the Issuer based on the information received from the Operator;
- credit to the Customer the Reward amount accrued for Promotions providing for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards in accordance with the information received from the Operator, to the Customer's bank account, or increase the Customer's emoney balance by the Reward amount within three (3) business days from the date the Reward amount is credited to the Issuer's account, unless otherwise provided for by the agreements between the Issuer and the Customer. The Issuer charges the Operator with setting the Issuer's net position in accordance with the Mir Payment System Regulations taking into account Reward amounts to be credited to the Customer;
- debit from the Customer the Reward amount refundable to the Partner / Operator, including in case of an erroneous accrual of a Reward or its accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, in accordance with the information received from the Operator, by debiting the Reward amount (in full or in part) from the Customer's bank account or decreasing the Customer's e-money balance by the Reward amount (in full or in part) within one (1) business day from the receipt of this information. The Issuer charges the Operator with generating a payment order for the Reward amount refundable to the Partner / Operator (in full or in part) on behalf of the Issuer, including in case of an erroneous accrual of a Reward or its accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, and with setting the Issuer's net position in accordance with the Mir Payment System Regulations, taking into account the specified Reward amounts;
- ensure that funds are available to Customer in real time in the amount of Rewards accrued for Promotions providing for purchase of Goods using SBP;
- maintain liquidity for faster payments with the Bank of Russia sufficient for refund
 of Reward amounts for transactions performed using SBP, the amount of Loyalty
 Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions;
- provide the Operator with information on the possibility of off-us funds transfers to
 its correspondent account (subsidiary account) opened with the Bank of Russia for
 the purposes of Rewards crediting for SBP transactions, amounts of Loyalty
 Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions within the time limits specified by the
 Operator in the corresponding request;
- provide the Operator with information on crediting the Reward amount to the Customer's account, amounts of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP

P.147 Page 66 of 170

Transactions, erroneously debited from the Customer for SBP transactions, and/or on debiting from the Customer's account the Reward refund amount, the amount of Loyalty Program Adjustments for SBP Transactions, within the time limits specified by the Operator in the corresponding request;

- be liable to Subjects for financial obligations arising from the payment / provision / refund of Rewards of sponsored Issuers who are Indirect Participants;
- provide the Operator with the information and documents related to the Issuer's
 participation in the Loyalty Program, including those related to Requests received
 from Customers in the manner and within the time limits specified by the Operator
 in the corresponding request;
- provide assistance to the Operator in dispute resolution;
- to access the Portal to interact under the Loyalty Program, use the login and password obtained when registering access management on the Portal;
- to access the Bank Profile, use the login and password obtained in accordance with Subsection 3.5.5 of the Regulations;
- ensure the use of the Portal / Bank Profile for the purposes of interaction under the Loyalty Program by persons authorized to perform legal and physical acts determined by the Regulations;
- ensure the storage of Issuer data in a way that prevents access to it by unauthorized persons, independently take all measures required to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Issuer data from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons;
- ensure the use of antivirus protection on firmware used to access the Portal / the Bank Profile;
- independently track changes made by the Operator to the Regulations, Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and visit the Website (Portal) to obtain the latest information;
- notify the Operator of changes in the information contained in the registration form (application) provided for the purposes of accedence to the Regulations, as well as the information registered in the Loyalty Program (Issuer registration data) not later than ten (10) business days before such changes take effect via the Portal;
- perform other obligations of the Issuer, as determined by the Regulations, Loyalty
 Program Standards, Fees, and the laws of the Russian Federation.

P.147 Page 67 of 170

3.5.1.2. The Issuer shall be entitled to:

- receive fees in accordance with the Regulations and Fees;
- use additional services and facilities provided for by the Loyalty Program;
- receive information about purchase of Goods transactions performed with Mir
 Cards issued by it or using SBP (if the Issuer implemented the purchase of Goods
 using SBP for individuals), about the amounts of Rewards payable to the Customer
 or refundable by the Customer, and other information about the Loyalty Program;
- engage third parties (TPP) for information exchange and technical interaction with the Operator under the Loyalty Program. Charging third parties (TPP) with the performance of obligations does not relieve the Issuer from liability to the Subjects for the performance hereunder;
- terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program in accordance with the Regulations;
- post the information about the Loyalty Program (including the information about Promotions and terms of participation therein, about Goods and terms of their purchase) on its own resources, including on the Internet;
- exercise other rights provided for by the Regulations and the laws of the Russian Federation.

3.5.2. Accedence of Credit Institution to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) as Issuer

A credit institution intending to accede to the Regulations as an Issuer must meet the following criteria:

- have a valid banking license of the Bank of Russia;
- be an active Direct / Indirect Participant of Mir (if the purchase of Goods with Mir Cards is implemented for individuals);
- be a valid SBP participant under the Faster Payments System Operational and Clearing Regulations (if the purchase of Goods using SBP is implemented for individuals);
- have contractual relations with individuals for the performance of transactions with Mir Cards and/or using SBP.

The procedure for a credit institution's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as an Issuer is defined in the *Mir Loyalty Program Standard*. *Credit Institution or the Bank*

P.147 Page 68 of 170

of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between *Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program* on the Portal.

Providing inaccurate, outdated or incomplete information may result in the inability to register in the Loyalty Program, participate in the Loyalty Program, and may also constitute grounds for limiting access to the Bank Profile.

A credit institution acceding to the Regulations as an Issuer means:

- a confirmation that at the time of accedence to the Regulations the credit institution has read and understood the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and found no obstacles to the participation in the Loyalty Program;
- credit institution's acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, without any exceptions and/or limitations.

In case if a credit institution has previously acceded to the Regulations as Issuer with regards to supporting Customer's Mir Card transactions, then, when the Issuer first credits the Reward accrued for the Promotion providing for purchase of Goods using SBP to any of the Customers, such an Issuer is deemed to have confirmed in full its interaction with the Customer for both Mir Card and SBP transactions and its full acceptance of all Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards without any exceptions and/or limitations.

In case if a credit institution has previously acceded to the Regulations as Issuer with regards to supporting Customer's SBP transactions, then, when the Issuer first credits the Reward accrued for the Promotion providing for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards to any of the Customers, such an Issuer is deemed to have confirmed in full its interaction with the Customer for both Mir Card and SBP transactions and its full acceptance of all Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards without any exceptions and/or limitations.

3.5.3. Accedence of the Bank of Russia to the Regulations (Registration in the Loyalty Program) as Issuer

The procedure for the Bank of Russia's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as an Issuer is defined in the Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution or the Bank of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between *Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program* on the Portal.

The Bank of Russia acceding to the Regulations as Issuer means:

P.147 Page 69 of 170

- a confirmation that at the time of accedence to the Regulations the Bank of Russia has read and understood the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and found no obstacles to the participation in the Loyalty Program;
- the Bank of Russia's acceptance of all the terms and conditions of the Regulations, including Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, without any exceptions and/or limitations.

3.5.4. Changing Issuer Credentials

In case of changes in the credentials registered in the Loyalty Program, as well as any other changes that may significantly affect the Issuer's or Operator' execution of the Regulations, the Issuer must make the appropriate changes to the registration form on the Portal.

3.5.5. Bank Profile

To gain access to the Bank Profile, the Issuer provides the Operator with the application about contact persons in accordance with the Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution or the Bank of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program.

The Bank Profile is accessed based on successful Issuer Authentication using login and password for the Bank Profile provided by the Operator.

In case of unauthorized access of third parties to the information about password and/or the Bank Profile, the Issuer must immediately signal this via the Portal / communication channels determined by the Operator.

The Issuer must make sure that only the Issuer and/or Issuer's authorized persons use the Bank Profile. The use of the Bank Profile by Issuer's authorized persons does not release the Issuer from liability to Subjects from the execution of these Regulations, as well as the obligation to store their data in a way that prevents access to it by unauthorized persons, from the obligation to take measures to maintain confidentiality, prevent unauthorized use and protect the Bank Profile from unauthorized access by unauthorized persons.

If the Issuers loses the login and/or password, the Issuer can request new password by filling out a corresponding form on the Website.

The Bank Profile allows for the information exchange with the Operator, use of services provided to the Issuer by the functionality of the Bank Profile.

The Operator shall have the right to:

P.147 Page 70 of 170

- deny an Issuer access to the Bank Profile if the Issuer violates the Regulations;
- restrict the Issuer's access to all or some functions of the Bank Profile;
- make changes to the Bank Profile without prior notice to the Issuer.

If the Issuer ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program, the Operator will block the Issuer's access to the Bank Profile from the date the Issuer ceases to participate in the Loyalty Program.

3.5.6. Issuer's Assistance in Individuals' Accedence to the Regulations and Mir Cards Registration in the Loyalty Program

The Issuer is entitled to assist the Operator when individuals accede to the Regulations and register Mir Cards in the Loyalty Program according to the procedure defined herein.

When assisting the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations, the Issuer must (with the exception of cases where the Issuer assists the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations and Mir Cards registration in the Loyalty Program when individuals use other products and services of the Operator) obtain the individual's prior consent (consent) for personal data processing, including personal data transfer to the Operator, to ensure the participation of the individual in the Loyalty Program, as well as obtain the individual's prior consent to receive messages from the Operator regarding the Loyalty Program, the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes in the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners, information about any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users, by sending text / MMS messages to a mobile phone number and via the Internet, including to the email address, push notifications. At the Operator's request to the Issuer, such individual' consent must be provided by the Issuer to the Operator within the time frame stipulated in the request. In case of failure to obtain the individual's consent or failure to provide the individual' consent at the Operator's request, the Issuer may be held liable under Section 8 hereof.

The Issuer also shall guarantee that, in cases where the Issuer assists the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations and Mir Cards registration in the Loyalty Program, individuals meet the requirements for Customers set forth by the Operator in Subsection 1.2 hereof.

The procedure for interaction between the Issuer and the Operator when the individual notifies the Issuer of their refusal to accede to the Regulations (register in the Loyalty Program) is determined in the Mir Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution or the Bank of Russia Registration in the Loyalty Program as Issuer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Issuer and Operator Under the Loyalty Program.

P.147 Page 71 of 170

3.5.7. Termination of Issuer's Participation in the Loyalty Program

The Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program can be terminated on the following grounds:

- at the initiative of the Operator. The Operator is entitled to stop the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program, including in the following cases:
 - the revocation of the Issuer's banking license by the Bank of Russia;
 - the Issuer violating the requirements of the Regulations, the laws of the Russian Federation;
 - failure to fulfill and/or improper fulfillment by the Issuer of its obligations to the Subjects;
 - damage to the Operator's goodwill, including establishing facts of claims from other Loyalty Program Participants, obtaining adverse information about the Issuer from competent authorities and/or publicly accessible sources;
 - suspension and/or termination of the Issuer's participation in Mir.

If the Operator decides to terminate the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Operator notifies the Issuer thereof, specifying the reason and date of termination of the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program via the Portal. The Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program is terminated from the date specified in the Operator's notification.

• **at the Issuer's initiative.** The Issuer is entitled to unilaterally decide to terminate the participation in the Loyalty Program. If such a decision is made, the Issuer must notify the Operator thereof via the Portal not later than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the date of the potential termination of participation in the Loyalty Program.

During the business day following the day on which the Operator decides to terminate the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program / receives from the Issuer a notice of termination of participation in the Loyalty Program, the Operator blocks Customers' ability to register Mir Cards issued by the Issuer in the Loyalty Program.

Within the period specified by the Operator when making the decision to terminate the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program or not later than forty-five (45) calendar days before the date of termination of Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program at the Issuer's initiative, the Operator unilaterally removes from the Loyalty Program Mir Cards of Issuer's Customers previously registered in the Loyalty Program.

P.147 Page 72 of 170

Before the date of termination of the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Issuer must perform all of its obligations, financial and otherwise, incurred towards other Subjects during the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program.

The termination of the Issuer's participation in the Loyalty Program does not release the Issuer from obligations arising in connection with the participation in the Loyalty Program.

The Issuer that supports both SBP and Mir Card transactions of the Customer is also entitled to reduce the scope of participation in the Loyalty Program. To reduce the scope of its participation in the Loyalty Program, the Issuer must send a corresponding notification to the Operator via the Portal. The interaction to reduce the scope of its participation is similar to the interaction provided for in this paragraph hereof.

P.147 Page 73 of 170

4. Confidentiality

Confidential information is understood to mean the information access to which is restricted under the laws of the Russian Federation, the requirements of the Partner, Bank, Operator and/or Regulations, insider information, as well as any other information belonging to the Subject regardless of the form of its provision, transferred by the Disclosing party to the Receiving party, except for information about Promotions, including their conditions.

The Receiving party shall not, without the written consent (permission) of the Disclosing party, disclose or otherwise transfer the confidential information to third parties, except as required by the laws of the Russian Federation and the Regulations, as well as if the confidential information was lawfully disclosed by a source other than the Disclosing party without any confidentiality obligations.

A Subject undertakes to ensure confidentiality of information used and received under the Loyalty Program.

The Partner, Bank, Operator are entitled to, without prior written consent of the Disclosing party, at their own discretion and as reasonably required, transfer confidential information to their employees who have a need-to-know and are cleared to access confidential information, while remaining responsible for the actions (omissions) of their employees and other persons who gained access to confidential information.

The Receiving party shall be responsible for any disclosure of confidential information, as well as for any unauthorized use of confidential information caused by the Receiving party.

The receiving Party shall indemnify the disclosing Party for any damages incurred as a result of the confidential information disclosure or unauthorized use that occurred due to its fault.

The Customer, Partner, Bank agree that the Operator's processing and storage of information, including for the purposes of the information and analysis findings (reports) generation and use do not violate their rights with respect to such information and confidentiality requirements.

The Customer, Partner, Bank undertake not to disclose any information regarding the availability and/or the content of software, technical and other solutions used in the Loyalty Program to any third party without prior written consent of the Operator.

In the event of the termination of the Disclosing party's participation in the Loyalty Program, as well as at any time upon the Disclosing party's request, the Receiving party must return to the Disclosing party, against a handover certificate, all previously received confidential information held by the Receiving party and by any persons to whom such confidential information had been disclosed under the Regulations. Such information must be returned within five (5) business days of receipt of the Disclosing party's return notice. If it is impossible to transmit such confidential information, the Receiving party must destroy it and provide the disclosing Party with a destruction certificate (if the Receiving party is a Partner or a Bank) within five (5) business days of receipt of the Disclosing

P.147 Page 74 of 170

party's notice of confidential information destruction. If confidential information cannot be returned and/or destroyed within the above period, this period shall be changed as agreed by the Parties.

In case of termination of participation in the Loyalty Program for any reason, the non-disclosure obligations shall survive for five (5) years starting from the date of termination of participation in the Loyalty Program.

Despite the above provisions, the Operator is entitled to process confidential information of a Customer, Partner, Bank that terminated their participation in the Loyalty Program until they fulfill all of the obligations that arose during their participation in the Loyalty Program, as well as to comply with the laws of the Russian Federation.

P.147 Page 75 of 170

5. Exclusive Rights to Intellectual Property and Their Use Rules

Exclusive rights to corporate names, trademarks and/or service marks, commercial designations and other intellectual property used by the Partner, Bank or Operator, belong to their copyright holders. Exclusive rights to the Operator's Platform and other software used by the Subjects to implement and manage the Loyalty Program belong to the Operator.

The Subject does not acquire exclusive rights to intellectual property posted by another Subject on the Website, SBP Website, in the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, on the Portal or in the Mobile Application. Any information contained on the Website, SBP Website, in the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, on the Portal or in the Mobile Application may not be construed as granting, directly or indirectly, the right to use the intellectual property without the written consent of the copyright holder, except as provided for hereby.

The Partner and the Bank must:

- submit to the Operator for approval all materials created by them independently (or
 on their behalf), which have a reference to or mention the name of the Loyalty
 Program and/or other means of identification of the Loyalty Program and/or the
 Operator;
- use any means of identification of the Loyalty Program and/or the Operator and/or the Partner and the Bank only with the prior written consent of the Operator and/or the Partner and the Bank, where the absence of prohibition shall not constitute consent (permission);
- immediately cease any placement and use of means of identification of the Loyalty Program and/or the Operator and/or the Partner and the Bank in case of termination of participation in the Loyalty Program or upon first written request of the Operator and/or Partner and the Bank.

The Bank and Partner grant the Operator free of charge for the period of their participation in the Loyalty Program the right to use their corporate names, trademarks, and service marks, logos, as well as commercial designations, to inform the general public of the Bank's and Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program, and there is no need to enter into any licensing agreements. The Operator is also entitled to use the corporate name of the Bank assisting the Operator in individuals' accedence to the Regulations and registration of Mir Cards in the Loyalty Program according to the procedure defined herein, when sending to the individual's mobile phone number a text message containing the password to access the Customer Profile on the Website, to inform the individual about the terms of participation in the Loyalty Program. The period of granting the rights to use the intellectual property must not exceed the term of the copyright holder's rights to the property.

P.147 Page 76 of 170

The Bank's permission to use the Trademark (service mark) under the rightholder's control granted within the participation in Mir constitutes the Bank's consent to the use of its trademarks and service marks to inform the general public about the Bank's participation in the Loyalty Program.

In cases where the Partner, the Bank use trademarks and/or service marks, commercial designations and corporate names of third parties, they must ensure that their use by the Operator is coordinated with the copyright holder. If during such use the intellectual property rights of third parties are violated, the Bank and Partner undertake to settle all claims of third parties and indemnify the Operator for any losses incurred in relation therewith at their own cost and expense.

In order to inform the general public about Promotions, about participation and terms of the Loyalty Program, the Subject is entitled to use the intellectual property posted on the Website or in the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, on the Portal or in the Mobile Application, or provided for in the corresponding Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee, exclusively by publishing and/or posting them on its official Website, in its social media accounts, as well as in advertising and information materials.

In order to inform the general public about Promotions, the Operator can provide the Bank with information materials about Promotions. The Bank is entitled to use these information materials exclusively by publishing and/or posting them on its official Website, in its social media accounts. The Bank shall be responsible for the use (posting) of the materials about Promotions. If during such use the intellectual property rights of third parties are violated, the Bank undertakes to settle all claims of third parties and indemnify the Operator for any losses incurred in relation therewith at their own cost and expense. The procedure for the Bank to use these information materials is determined in the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Standard. The Use of Materials About Promotions.

By acceding to the Regulations, the Customer acquires the right to use the Mobile Application subject to an ordinary (non-exclusive) license held by the Operator, free of charge, for the entire term of the exclusive right of the Operator throughout the Russian Federation, limited to the right to launch, install and use it in accordance herewith. The accedence to the Regulations is considered confirmation of the familiarization and consent of the Customer, Partner, Bank with the procedure for the use of materials posted on the Website, in the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, on the Portal and/or in the Mobile Application.

P.147 Page 77 of 170

6. Personal Data

For the purposes of execution of the Regulations, the Partner and the Bank exchange with the Operator the personal data of their representatives (employees and other authorized representatives (contact persons)), Customers (hereinafter, PD Subjects), required to execute the Regulations. Each party undertakes to comply with the requirements of the laws of the Russian Federation related to the personal data security and processing, including confidentiality and protection of personal data during processing, and does not consider the transfer of personal data of PD Subjects an order.

The Partner and the Bank must:

- ensure compliance with the requirements of the laws of the Russian Federation related to personal data security and processing;
- upon the Operator's request, within five (5) business days provide evidence of there being legal grounds for the PD Subjects' personal data processing, including collection and transfer to the Operator and other persons, for the purposes of execution hereof.

The Partner and the Bank guarantee to the Operator that they lawfully process, collect, and transfer the PD Subjects' personal data to the Operator and third parties for the purposes of compliance with the Regulations.

The Operator processes the PD Subjects' personal data in accordance with the NSPK JSC Policy of Personal Data Processing and Protection posted on the information resource on the Internet at http://www.nspk.ru/about/processing-of-personal-data/, and these Regulations.

When registering in the Loyalty Program, an individual (Customer) provides the Operator with the following personal data:

- full name (in Russian);
- full name (in Latin characters);
- sex;
- date of birth (ddmmyyyy);
- email address;
- phone number (mobile);
- Mir Card details (PAN);
- information about transactions with a Mir Card and/or using SBP, including those performed before the date of accedence to the Regulations;
- identifiers in Third Party Services;
- access codes and the information about the use of the Lounge access service.

P.147 Page 78 of 170

As part of the execution hereof, the Operator can additionally request from the Customer the following data:

- place of birth;
- details of the proof of identity (Russian passport, other document), including: series,
 number, issuing authority, date of issue, subdivision code;
- residential address / domicile address, as well as actual residence address;
- information about tax authority registration certificate (Taxpayer Identification Number);
- bank details, including: Customer's account number; name of credit institution (bank), bank identification code (BIK) and bank's correspondent account.

Under the Loyalty Program an individual (representative of the Partner, Bank) provides the Operator with the following personal data:

- full name (in Russian);
- email address:
- phone number (mobile, landline);
- job title;
- company name.

By acceding to the Regulations, the PD Subject agrees that the Operator is entitled to process their personal data for the following purposes:

- individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer;
- card registration in the Loyalty Program;
- implementation of terms of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program;
- implementation of terms of the Customer's participation in marketing activities and promotions for Mir Cardholders and SBP users;
- providing the Customer with the information about the Loyalty Program,
 Promotions, advertising and other information, including from Partners for Mir
 Cardholders or SBP users, information about any marketing activities and
 promotions for Mir Cardholders or SBP users;
- processing of letters, inquiries, Requests, other communications from PD Subjects and Subjects;
- communication with PD Subjects, including sending responses, notifications, decisions, inquiries and other information related to the implementation hereof;

P.147 Page 79 of 170

- resolution of disputes, disruptions and emergencies, including system crashes;
- ensuring that the Subjects fulfill the terms of the Promotion;
- settlement by the Bank or the Operator;
- resolving disputes between Subjects;
- comparing personal data to confirm their accuracy and allow their verification by third parties as provided for by the applicable laws of the Russian Federation;
- improving the quality of services rendered by the Operator and the convenience of their use;
- evaluation and analysis of the Loyalty Program;
- conducting statistical, marketing and other studies and surveys;
- generating and using the information and analysis findings (reports), developing and managing services and customer programs, organizing marketing events and promotions for Mir Cardholders and SBP users;
- provision of the Lounge access service at airports, railway stations, ports terminals,
 bus terminals;
- fulfillment of requests of government authorities, including federal, public authorities of the constituent entities of the Russian Federation and local government bodies;
- fraud prevention;
- enforcement of legislation and other statutory regulation.

A PD Subject is entitled to request to limit the processing of their personal data for the purpose of the Operator's marketing activities. If the PD Subject's request is received to limit the processing of their personal data for the purpose of marketing activities, the Operator is entitled to refuse to provide the PD Subject with the Operator's Services under the Loyalty Program.

Under these Regulations, the PD Subjects' personal data processing is understood to mean any acts (interactions) with the personal data, with or without the use of automation facilities, including collection, recording, systematization, accumulation, storage, refinement (updates, alterations), extraction, usage, transfer (provision, access granting), depersonalization, blockage, deletion, annihilation of personal data.

By providing the personal data, the PD Subject gives consent to the Operator to process and use their personal data for the purposes determined by the Regulations up to the date of termination of the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program and/or termination of the employment relationship between the Partner or the Bank and their representative. Further processing (including archive storage) of PD Subjects' personal data is done under the laws of the Russian Federation.

P.147 Page 80 of 170

The PD Subject can revoke consent by sending to the Operator a written notice in accordance with Federal Law No.152-FZ *On Personal Data* dated July 27, 2006. Notification address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184. Personal data is deleted no later than ten (10) business days from the receipt of the request by the Operator, unless otherwise provided for by the laws of the Russian Federation. After the request processing, the PD Subject is notified of the processing of the personal data being ceased and it being deleted. From the date of the PD Subject's personal data deletion from the internal database of the Loyalty Program the Customer's participation in the Loyalty Program is terminated.

The PD Subject agrees to the transfer of their personal data and/or the Operator's right to entrust the processing of their personal data to persons whose information is available on the information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru (hereinafter, the 'List of persons') in cases where such transfer (entrusting) is done in the interests of the Customer within their participation in the Loyalty Program (including in accordance with the purposes of Customer personal data processing defined above) and in any marketing activities and promotions for Mir Cardholders and SBP users, as well as to improve the quality of services provided under the Loyalty Program, convenience of their use and to develop new products and services of the Loyalty Program, provided that the third party will transfer and further process such personal data under the laws of the Russian Federation. The Operator is entitled to unilaterally change the List of persons at any time. The Operator posts changes to the List of persons on the information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru. All changes made by the Operator to the List of persons become effective at the date of posting on the information resource on the Internet at: https://vamprivet.ru.

By acceding to the Regulations, the Customer confirms that they have read the provisions of Federal Law No.152-FZ *On Personal Data* dated July 27, 2006, and understood the rights and obligations within personal data protection.

P.147 Page 81 of 170

7. Force Majeure

The Subjects are exempt from the liability for partial or complete non-fulfillment / improper fulfillment of their obligations as defined by the Regulations if such non-fulfillment / improper fulfillment is a result of force majeure circumstances.

The force majeure circumstances include events that are beyond the Subjects' control and for the occurrence of which the Subjects are not responsible, such as wars and armed conflicts, prohibitive acts and actions by state bodies.

In the event of force majeure circumstances hampering the fulfillment of the Subjects' obligations, the period of fulfillment of such obligations by the Subjects is extended for the duration of such circumstances, as well as the time required for the elimination of their consequences.

Loyalty Program Participants must immediately notify the Operator of the occurrence of force majeure circumstances by any available means and immediately send a written notice via any of the available communication channels (Customer Profile / Partner Profile, Portal, mail, email etc.). The notice must contain the information about the nature of the circumstances and, where possible, the information allowing to assess their impact on the possibility of fulfillment by the Loyalty Program Participants of their obligations under the Loyalty Program.

If the force majeure hampers the fulfillment of the Operator's obligations, the Operator is entitled to post a corresponding notice for all Loyalty Program Participants on the Website and/or send it in writing via any of the available communication channels (Customer Profile / Partner Profile, Portal, mail, email etc.) to the address of a separate Loyalty Program Participant.

The occurrence of force majeure circumstances and the period of their duration must be confirmed by the relevant state agency that is responsible for stating (certifying) such circumstances.

Should the Subject fail to send or fail to send the notice in a timely manner, it must compensate the other Subjects for the losses incurred by them and is not entitled to invoke the force majeure circumstances.

Upon the termination of the above circumstances the Loyalty Program Participant that was not able to fulfill its obligations due to force majeure must notify the Operator thereof in writing within three (3) business days after their termination.

P.147 Page 82 of 170

8. Responsibilities

Subjects are liable for failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) their obligations in accordance with these Regulations, the Mir Payment System Regulations, agreements concluded between Loyalty Program Participants, the laws of the Russian Federation.

The Subjects' liabilities for breach of their obligations are allocated in the following way: the Operator shall:

- is liable to Loyalty Program Participants for failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) its obligations;
- must compensate Loyalty Program Participants for documented damages.

The Operator is not responsible for any losses caused to Loyalty Program Participants as a result of:

- illegal actions of third parties aimed at breaching the information security or normal operation of the Operator's Platform;
- the termination of the Promotion in cases specified in the Regulations;
- failures in the operation of the Website, Mobile Application, caused by code errors, computer viruses and other extraneous code fragments in the Website and Mobile Application software, except through the fault of the Operator;
- the absence (failure, loss etc.) of Internet connection between the Loyalty Program Participants' hardware and the Operator's Platform;
- measures taken by authorized public authorities affecting the Website and Mobile
 Application operation and/or the hardware that supports it;
- the implementation of state regulation (or regulation by other authorities) of business activities of commercial organizations on the Internet and/or limitations by these subjects, making it difficult or impossible to fulfill the obligations of the Loyalty Program Subjects;
- other cases resulting from actions (omissions) of Internet users and/or other subjects aimed at degradation of the overall situation with the use of the Internet and/or computer hardware that existed at the time of the Loyalty Program Participant's accedence.

The Operator shall not be liable for:

failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) the obligations of the Partner to pay /
provide a Reward to a Customer and/or of the Customer to refund the Reward
amount under the Loyalty Program;

P.147 Page 83 of 170

- failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) the obligations to pay other fees provided for by the Regulations and Fees;
- failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) the obligations to pay / provide a Reward to a Customer if such failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment) is caused by actions / omission of the Bank of Russia, its subdivisions, the Issuer, the Acquirer, the Operator's settlement agent or other third parties;
- the use of the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile, Portal, Mobile Application by persons not authorized by Loyalty Program Participants;
- the registration of a Mir Card that is invalid or the use of which to perform transactions is restricted;
- failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment) by the Operator of its obligations under the Regulations, if such non-fulfillment is caused, among other things, by failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment) by the Loyalty Program participants of obligations to notify the Operator of changes in credentials in the registration form submitted to accede to the Regulations, as well as the information registered in the Loyalty Program (registration data), to make the corresponding changes to the registration form in the manner provided for by the Regulations. All responsibility and risks associated with the failure to fulfill (improper fulfillment of) the obligations by the Loyalty Program Participant shall be borne by the Loyalty Program Participant.

P.147 Page 84 of 170

Loyalty Program Participants:

- are liable to Subjects for their actions (omissions), including actions (omissions) of third parties authorized (engaged) by them under the Loyalty Program, including the violations of the Regulations arising through the fault of the Loyalty Program Participant or third parties authorized (engaged) by them;
- must reimburse the Subjects in full for documented damages caused by actions (omissions) of the Loyalty Program Participant;
- must pay a fine to the Operator should the Operator send the corresponding notification.

In case of failure to pay / provide a Reward to a Customer due to non-fulfillment (improper fulfillment) by the Partner of its obligations:

- to ensure payment for Goods and settlement related to payment / provision of the Reward through the Acquirer that approved the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program / agreed to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program;
- to provide the Operator, for the purpose of arranging a Promotion / changing the conditions (description) of the Promotion, with the information about the Card Acceptor ID Code and the Card Acceptor Terminal ID or the Partner ID in SBP (Legal ID) and the Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID) in the manner stipulated hereby;
- to update the information about the Card Acceptor ID Code and the Card Acceptor Terminal ID or the Partner ID in SBP (Legal ID) and the Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID) registered in the Loyalty Program;
- to notify the Operator of changes in credentials in the registration form submitted for the purposes of accedence to the Regulations, as well as information registered in the Loyalty Program (registration data);
- or the obligations to make the corresponding changes to the registration form in the manner determined by the Regulations,

the Partner must pay the Customer a fine in the amount of unpaid / not provided Reward increased by the amount of tax calculated from the amount of unpaid / not provided Reward. When paying the fine, the Partner must ensure that the specified amount of the personal income tax is withheld and transferred under the laws of the Russian Federation.

In case of failure to pay / provide a Reward to the Customer due to the failure of the Acquirer to perform (properly perform) its obligations provided for by the Regulations, the Acquirer must pay P.147

Page 85 of 170

the Customer a fine in the amount unpaid / not provided Reward increased by the amount of the personal income tax calculated from the amount of unpaid / not provided Reward. When paying the fine, the Acquirer must ensure that the specified amount of the personal income tax is withheld and transferred under the laws of the Russian Federation.

The Partner guarantees to the Operator that the information posted on the Website, Portal, Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile or in the Mobile Application complies with the requirements of the laws of the Russian Federation, including laws on advertisement, and/or does not violate third party rights. In all cases, the person who determined the content of such information and initiated its publication is liable for posting on the Website, in the Customer Profile / Partner Profile / Bank Profile or in the Mobile Application the information that does not comply with the laws of the Russian Federation and/or violates third party rights. In particular, the Operator does not verify the information posted by any of the Loyalty Program Participants for compliance with the laws of the Russian Federation and/or third party interests. Loyalty Program Participants agree that they must independently perform such verification.

The Operator does not act as an advertiser, advertising producer or advertising distributor with regards to any information posted on the Website or distributed via the Website by any of the Loyalty Program Participants (including posting the information about Promotions and participation therein, the Goods and terms of their purchase).

Loyalty Program Participants represent (warrant):

- the Partner, the Bank (each of the experts involved in the interaction provided for by the Regulations) has the expertise required for the timely fulfillment of its obligations provided for by the Regulations in a qualitative manner;
- should the Partner, the Bank be required to have appropriate licenses (permits, admissions) under the laws of the Russian Federation to fulfill the obligations provided for by the Regulations, the Partner, the Bank (their experts) shall hold the required valid (current) licenses (permits, admissions);
- no third parties are entitled to prevent the Customer, the Partner, the Bank from fulfilling their obligations under the Regulations;
- the Partner, the Bank are a duly incorporated legal entity / sole proprietor, have full legal capacity, and are established in perpetuity;
- the Partner, the Bank carry on business in full compliance with the laws of the Russian Federation;
- the Partner, the Bank were not incorporated shortly before acceding to the Regulations, hold property and tangible assets required for its business and fulfillment of its obligations hereunder;

P.147 Page 86 of 170

- the Partner, the Bank pay taxes, non-zero social charges; conduct real business aimed at gaining of profit; pursue a business goal when closing transactions;
- the Partner, the Bank have human resources to the extent and with expertise required for the timely fulfillment of their obligations hereunder in a qualitative manner;
- the Partner, the Bank, when engaging third parties to fulfill the obligations hereunder, must exercise due diligence when selecting such counterparties, must comply with the laws of the Russian Federation, including the requirements of civil, tax and labor legislation, when closing and settling transactions involving counterparties;
- any information about the Loyalty Program (including the information about Promotions and terms of participation therein, about Goods and terms of their purchase) posted on resources of Banks and Partners, including on the Internet, fully complies with the information posted on the Website or in the Mobile Application.

If, after the Loyalty Program Participant accedes to the Regulations, the non-compliance / invalidity / unreliability of the above guarantees (representations) is revealed, which would entail any adverse consequences for the Operator, related to claims from tax and regulatory authorities, including *inter alia* claims against counterparties engaged by the Partner or the Bank, such Loyalty Program Participant shall be obliged to pay a fine to the Operator at the Operator's request in the amount of fines and/or costs and/or losses incurred by the Operator due to such violation (non-compliance / invalidity / unreliability of guarantees (representations)). The Operator's claim must be paid by the Loyalty Program Participant within the period stipulated in such claim.

The Partner, the Bank hold the required rights to their own or third party materials, documents, information used for fulfilling the obligations provided for hereby (including *inter alia* rights to intellectual property and means of identification). Should third parties bring any claims against the Partner or the Bank, resulting from violation of any third party rights to such materials, documents, information (including rights to intellectual property and means of identification), the Partner or the Bank undertakes to settle these claims at its own cost and expense. The Operator is entitled to demand full compensation for all damages (including lost profits) incurred by the Operator due to violation of such rights. The Operator's claim must be paid by the Partner or the Bank within the period stipulated in such claim.

In case of violation of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards by the Bank and/or the Partner, as well as in cases of failure to rectify the violations of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards detected by the Operator within the timeframe set by the Operator, the Operator is entitled

P.147 Page 87 of 170

to demand fines and take other action against such Loyalty Program Participants. The Operator shall be entitled to unilaterally and absolutely establish the enforcement actions.

The Loyalty Program provides for the following fines:

- for violating any provision of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards:
 - first violation of a provision of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards RUB 50,000;
 - second violation of the same provision of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards within twelve (12) months of the first violation RUB 250,000;
 - third violation of the same provision of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards within twelve (12) months of the first violation RUB 500,000;
 - fourth and all subsequent violations of the same provision of the Loyalty Program Regulations and Standards within twelve (12) months of the first violation RUB 1,000,000.

In case of violation of the requirements of Subsection 3.5.6 of the Regulations by the Issuer, the Issuer shall be obliged to pay a fine to the Operator at twice the amount of fines and/or costs borne by the Operator and the Operator's officials due to the absence of consent (prior consent) specified in Subsection 3.5.6 of the Regulations, namely, an individual's prior consent (consent) for personal data processing, including personal data transfer to the Operator, to ensure the participation of the individual in the Loyalty Program, as well as the individual's prior consent to receive messages from the Operator regarding the Loyalty Program, the Promotions held by the Operator and/or Partner, changes in the conditions of the Promotions and other information, including information from Partners, information about any marketing events and promos for Mir Cardholders and SBP users, by sending text / MMS messages to a mobile phone number and via the Internet, including to the email address, push notifications, within five (5) business days from the date of receipt of request (claim) by the Issuer.

When making a decision to exact a fine or take another action, the Operator is entitled to take into account the type and frequency of the violation, the nature of damage (including financial) incurred by the Loyalty Program Subjects, and the Loyalty Program Participant's ability to rectify the violation, as well as the consequences thereof. Should action be taken against the Loyalty Program Participant, the Operator shall send a notice containing the following information to the Participant:

- corrective action;
- reasons for taking corrective action against the Loyalty Program Participant;
- fine to be collected:

P.147 Page 88 of 170

- bank details for payment of fine;
- remedy deadlines.

The Loyalty Program Participant paying a fine does not exempt it from the obligation to rectify the violation.

The Operator sends to the Loyalty Program Participant the notice via the channel determined by the Operator for interaction with this Loyalty Program Participant, with further sending of the original notice in hard copy.

The Participant shall pay the fine within five (5) business days from the date the notice was sent by the Operator.

Should the Loyalty Program Participant disagree with the detected violation, it shall have the right to send a written objection to the Operator containing a substantiation of the Participant's position within thirty (30) calendar days from the receipt of the notice of violation from the Operator. No objection sent by the Loyalty Program Participant shall release it from the liability to pay the fine. The Operator shall review the Loyalty Program Participant's objection for at least fifteen (15) business days from the date of its receipt by the Operator. If the Operator makes a favorable decision following the review of the Loyalty Program Participant's objection, the amount of the fine collected shall be returned to the Loyalty Program Participant within ten (10) business days from the date of the favorable decision.

P.147 Page 89 of 170

9. Governing Law. Dispute Resolution Under the Loyalty Program

These Regulations are governed by the laws of the Russian Federation.

The Subjects shall attempt in good faith to resolve all disputes and disagreements arising out of provisions of the Regulations or in connection with the performance of the provisions of the Regulations as soon as practically possible by way of negotiations.

All disputes, disagreements, and claims (hereinafter referred to as 'Disputes') arising out of or in connection with the present Regulations, including their violation, suspension, repudiation, or invalidation, are resolved as per the procedure established by the present Section.

Customer Requests are processed under Subsection 3.2.8 hereof.

When resolving Disputes, the non-breaching party may claim full compensation for actual damages from the breaching party.

Disputes between the Subjects shall be resolved out of court. Disputes related to entering into, interpretation, implementation, and termination of the System Regulations shall be resolved by the Parties amicably. If an agreement is not reached during the above negotiations, an interested Party shall send the other Party a written claim signed by its authorized person. The claim shall be sent via communication means recording its sending (by mail, by telegraph, etc.) and receipt, or it shall be handed out to the other Party against receipt. Documents justifying the claims provided by the interested Party and documents confirming the signatory's authority shall be attached thereto. The specified documents shall be provided as duly certified copies. The claims sent without documents confirming the signatory's authority shall be deemed not provided and shall not be subject to consideration. The receiving Party shall consider the received claim and notify the interested Party in writing of the results within twenty (20) business days upon the claim receipt.

If the dispute is not resolved out of court, as well as if the response to the claim is not received within the period specified above, the dispute shall be submitted to the Moscow City Arbitration Court.

The results of legal proceedings must be communicated in writing to the Operator by the party that initiated the legal proceedings within ten (10) business days from the effective date of the court ruling.

P.147 Page 90 of 170



10. Anti-corruption Clause

Each Party (a Party in this Section shall be understood to mean the Operator, the Partner, the Acquirer, the Issuer), when fulfilling its obligations under the Regulations, shall not be entitled and shall cause its affiliated persons (related parties), employees and/or intermediaries not to be entitled, directly or indirectly, to offer and/or pay money and/or other valuables to the employees and representatives of the other Party with the purpose of gaining any advantages related to the activity in the System. For compliance herewith, neither Party shall perform actions treated as bribery, influence peddling, abuse of functions, and actions violating the laws applicable to the Party and the international anti-money laundering acts. If a Party has reason to suspect a violation of these requirements by another Party, it shall notify the Party thereof in writing. In a written notice, the Party shall cite the facts or submit evidence, confirming or suggesting that the other Party has violated or may violate the provisions of this Section. If the risk of corruption has been identified, in accordance with the Regulations, the corresponding Party shall, within seven (7) business days from the receipt of the notice, notify the other Party of the measures taken to eliminate such risks, providing proper evidence.

P.147 Page 91 of 170

Appendix 1. The Cash Back for Mir Cardholders Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Cash Back – a type of Reward accrued with reference to Item 2.5of this Appendix; a financial incentive in the form of partial return of funds to the Customer, which they spent on the purchase of Goods under a Promotion with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. The *Cash Back for Mir Cardholders* Program is based on providing the Customer with a financial incentive in the form of partial return of funds to the Customer, which they spent on the purchase of Goods under a Promotion with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program.
- 2.3. The *Cash Back for Mir Cardholders* Program is implemented by the Operator or the Partner holding the corresponding Promotions.
- 2.4. The terms of Promotions under the *Cash Back for Mir Cardholders* Program, including the terms of the Customer's participation in the Promotion, are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations and this Appendix in the Promotion Rules.
- 2.5. The amount of Cash Back depends on the amount of reward points accrued. Reward points for Operator and Partner Promotions are determined in accordance with the procedure for calculation of the Reward amount defined by the Loyalty Program Fees and/or the conditions of the Operator and Partner Promotion and are accrued to the Cumulative Card. 1 (one) reward point = 1 (one) Russian ruble.
- 2.6. The Cash Back amount calculated based on the accrued Reward points is credited to the Customer using details of the valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program and used for the purchase of Goods.
- 2.7. If the Partner is unable to credit the Cash Back to the Customer under the Partner Promotion, the Partner charges the Operator with making the payment. The Operator is then entitled

P.147 Page 92 of 170

to demand that the Partner refunds the amount paid, and the Partner undertakes to fulfill such a demand within the time frame specified by the Operator. The Operator sends the demand to the Partner's email address or via any other channel determined by the Operator.

3. Cash Back Accrual and Payment

- 3.1. The Cash Back amount cannot be lower than the values set in the Loyalty Program Fees.
- 3.2. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the following Cash Back accrual conditions may be stipulated, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed on any day of the week / certain days of the week;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed at any time of the day / certain time of the day;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a Co-badged Mir Card;
 - The amount to which Cash Back is accrued for a payment transaction with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program can be limited to a certain amount;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program: any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator's Platform);
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program: first; second; first two; second and third; and the like;
 - other terms aimed at boosting Customer activity when using the Operator's Platform, the Operator's Services and/or Mir Cards under a Promotion;
 - the list of purchase of Goods transactions with a Mir Card for which the Cash Back is not paid.
- 3.3. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the Operator may also stipulate the following Cash Back accrual conditions, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program in any category (industry (hereinafter, 'category')) / selected by the

P.147 Page 93 of 170

- Customer / determined by the Operator (the type of category (industry) and/or MCC is determined by the Promotion Rules);
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed in a category during a certain period / the entire Promotion term;
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty
 Program performed at any Merchant / Merchant selected by the Operator;
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed at a certain (minimum) volume during a certain period.
- 3.4. The Cash Back is credited to the Customer under the following conditions:
 - The Customer is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
 - The Customer joined the Promotion (in accordance with Subsection 3.2.7 of the Regulations);
 - The Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program. There are no restrictions on performance of transactions with such card (e.g., on payment with a Mir Card on the Internet). When performing a purchase of Goods with a Co-badged Mir Card, the Cash Back is accrued only to the extent technically feasible by the Operator;
 - The Goods are purchased during the Promotion (i.e., the Promotion is neither terminated nor suspended at the time when the Goods are purchased with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program);
 - other conditions as set by the Promotion.
- 3.5. The amount of Cash Back for a purchase of Goods transaction performed with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program is communicated to the Customer via the Customer Profile. The Customer independently tracks the information about the amount of Cash Back.
- 3.6. The Cash Back is paid under the Regulations, this Appendix and Promotion Rules not earlier than **three** (3) **business days from** the date of purchase of Goods under a Promotion (unless other period and procedure for Cash Back accrual are set by the Operator's Promotion).
- 3.7. The Cash Back is not paid when Goods are returned, including in case of a Product-dependent Promotion when returning Goods and other products (works, services) paid for by the Customer with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program at the same time as purchasing Goods, unless otherwise provided for by this Appendix or the Promotion Rules.
 - 3.8. When returning a part of Goods:

P.147 Page 94 of 170

- if the conditions of the Promotion determine Cash Back as a percentage of the cost of Goods, the Cash Back is paid in the amount determined by the conditions of the Promotion, for a part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer. If the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer does not comply with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion, the Cash Back is not paid;
- if conditions of the Promotion provide for a fixed Cash Back, the Cash Back is paid in the amount determined by the Promotion Rules only if the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer complies with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion;
- unless otherwise provided for by this Appendix or the Promotion Rules.

4. Cash Back Refund

- 4.1. The Cash Back is refunded in accordance with the following terms, unless otherwise provided for by this Appendix or the Promotion Rules.
 - 4.1.1. When returning Goods:
- 4.1.1.1. In case of a full refund (returning Goods in full), the Cash Back is not payable, and the Cash Back paid for such Goods is fully refundable to the Operator / Partner (hereinafter, 'Cash Back amount refund').
 - 4.1.1.2. In case of partial refund (returning a part of Goods):
 - if the conditions of the Promotion determine Cash Back as a percentage of the cost of Goods, the Cash Back amount paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator for the part of Goods that was returned by the Customer. If the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer does not comply with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion, the amount of Cash Back paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator in full;
 - if conditions of the Promotion provide for a fixed Cash Back, the amount of Cash Back paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator only if the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer does not comply with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion.
- 4.1.2. In cases where the Cash Back is credited upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions or when the Cash Back is credited due to an erroneous accrual (hereinafter, the 'Unjustified Cash Back payment'), the Cash Back must be refunded to the Operator / Partner in full (in part) by the Customer having received the Unjustified Cash Back payment in the absence of the P.147

 Page 95 of 170

grounds established by the Regulations, Promotion Rules and the laws of the Russian Federation. Under the laws of the Russian Federation, the Unjustified Cash Back payment is construed as unjustified enrichment of the Customer.

The amount of Cash Back refundable under this Item is determined based on the amount of the Unjustified Cash Back payment: in case of unjustified accrual of the full Cash Back amount, such amount is refundable in full; in case of unjustified accrual of a part of the Cash Back amount, the Cash Back is refunded in the amount equal to the Unjustified Cash Back payment.

- 4.2. The Operator informs the Customer of the Cash Back amount to be refunded via the Customer Profile.
- 4.3. The Cash Back amount, including in case of erroneous accrual of Cash Back or accrual of Cash Back upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, is refunded by the Issuer debiting the Cash Back amount (in full or in part) from the Customer's bank account or decreasing the Customer's e-money balance by the Cash Back amount (in full or in part). Then, the Acquirer / credit institution providing banking services to the Operator transfers the Cash Back amount (in full or in part) to the bank account of the Partner (unless the agreement between the Acquirer and the Partner stipulates another procedure for settlement related to the Cash Back amount refund) / Operator (unless the agreement between the Operator and the credit institution providing banking services to the Operator stipulates another procedure for settlement related to the Cash Back amount refund).
- 4.4. If the Issuer cannot debit the Cash Back amount to be refunded (in full or in part), including in case of erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, from the Customer's bank account or decrease the Customer's e-money balance by the Cash Back amount to be refunded (in full or in part), the Customer must reimburse the Issuer for expenses related to the Cash Back amount refund within **three (3) business days from** the date of Goods (part of Goods) return.
- 4.5. The Customer undertakes to reimburse the damages related to the Cash Back amount refund.

5. Product-dependent Promotion

5.1. When conducting a Product-dependent Promotion, the Partner must comply with the procedure of interaction between the Partner and the Operator established by the *Loyalty Program Standard. Regulations of Operational and Technological Interaction Between Operator and Partner Under the Loyalty Program for Mir Cardholders*, including in terms of providing the Operator with information confirming:

P.147 Page 96 of 170

- the purchase of Goods;
- the return of Goods (part of Goods) or other products (works, services) paid by the Customer with a Mir Card at the same time as purchasing Goods.

The Partner fulfills the obligation to provide this information during the term of the Product-dependent Promotion, as well as the following fourteen (14) calendar days. Upon expiry of the fourteen days, the Partner must provide this information at the Operator's request (sent via the Partner Profile / email address specified in the application for the Merchant's accedence to the Regulations) within the period set in the request and in accordance with the procedure of interaction between the Partner and the Operator established by the Operator.

In case of non-performance (improper performance) of the obligation to provide this information by the Partner:

- The Partner must pay the Customer the Cash Back in the maximum amount set by the conditions of the Product-dependent Promotion for a transaction with a Mir Card in general;
- the Cash Back amount is not refunded to the Partner in accordance with the procedure described in Item 4 of this Appendix.

P.147 Page 97 of 170

☆ NSPK

Appendix 2. The Cash Back for SBP Users Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Cash Back – a type of Reward accrued with reference to Item 2.5 of this Appendix; a financial incentive in the form of partial return of funds to the Customer, which they spent on the purchase of Goods under a Promotion using SBP.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. The Cash Back for SBP Users Program is based on providing the Customer with a financial incentive in the form of partial return of funds to the Customer, which they spent on the purchase of Goods under a Promotion using SBP, including using e-money, with the exception of anonymous electronic payment facilities (without Customer identification).
- 2.3. The *Cash Back for SBP Users* Program is implemented by the Operator holding the corresponding Promotions.
- 2.4. The terms of Promotions under the *Cash Back for SBP Users* Program, including the terms of the Customer's participation in the Promotion, are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations and this Appendix in the Promotion Rules.
- 2.5. The amount of Cash Back depends on the amount of reward points accrued. Reward points for Operator and Partner Promotions are determined in accordance with the procedure for calculation of the Reward amount defined by the Loyalty Program Fees and/or the conditions of the Operator and Partner Promotion and are accrued to the Cumulative Card. 1 (one) reward point = 1 (one) Russian ruble.
- 2.6. The Cash Back amount calculated based on the accrued Reward points is credited to the Customer's bank account or, if provided for by the conditions of the Operator Promotion, using details of the valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program. If the Customer has several accounts

P.147 Page 98 of 170

opened with an Issuer, the Issuer can credit any of the accounts at its discretion. The Operator does not govern the crediting of the account opened with the Issuer.

- 2.7. For the Cash Back to be accrued under the *Cash Back for SBP Users* Program, the Customer shall ensure on their own that crediting of funds (Cash Back) via SBP to the Customer's bank account is allowed. The Operator shall not be liable for failure to pay the Cash Back to the Customer due to the Issuer not having the Customer's permission to credit funds (Cash Back) via SBP to the Customer's bank account. The Customer shall on their own obtain the information on how to ensure that crediting of funds (Cash Back) via SBP to the Customer's bank account with the corresponding Issuer is allowed.
- 2.8. The Customer, by participating in Promotions under the *Cash Back for SBP Users* Program, gives consent to the Operator to use the information about transactions performed via SBP to the extent necessary for Cash Back calculation and accrual, for processing Requests from Customers and for other purposes as set out in Section 6 hereof.
- 2.9. Cash Back is accrued to the Customer only for those SBP transactions that were performed directly using Customer's bank accounts opened with the Issuer.
- 2.10. If the Partner is unable to credit the Cash Back to the Customer under the Partner Promotion, the Partner charges the Operator with making the payment. The Operator is then entitled to demand that the Partner refunds the amount paid, and the Partner undertakes to fulfill such a demand within the time frame specified by the Operator. The Operator sends the demand to the Partner's email address or via any other channel determined by the Operator.

3. Cash Back Accrual and Payment

- 3.1. The Cash Back amount cannot be lower than the values set in the Loyalty Program Fees.
- 3.2. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the following Cash Back accrual conditions may be stipulated, among others:
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed on any day of the week / certain days of the week;
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed at any time of the day / certain time of the day;
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value;

P.147 Page 99 of 170

- the amount to which Cash Back is accrued for an SBP purchase transaction can be limited to a certain value;
- for SBP purchase of Goods transactions: any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible on the Operator's Platform);
- for SBP purchase of Goods transactions: first; second; first two; second and third; and the like;
- other terms aimed at boosting Customer activity when using the Operator's Platform, the Operator's Services and/or SBP under a Promotion;
- the list of SBP purchase of Goods transactions for which the Cash Back is not paid.
- 3.3. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the Operator may also stipulate the following Cash Back accrual conditions, among others:
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions in any category (industry (hereinafter, 'category')) / selected by the Customer / determined by the Operator (the type of category (industry) and/or MCC is determined by the Promotion Rules);
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed in a category during a certain period / the entire Promotion term;
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed at any Merchant / the one determined by the Operator;
 - for SBP purchase of Goods transactions performed at a certain (minimum) volume over a certain period.
 - 3.4. The Cash Back is credited to the Customer under the following conditions:
 - the Customer is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
 - the Customer joined the Promotion (in accordance with Subsection 3.2.7 of the Regulations);
 - the Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for using SBP. There are no restrictions on transaction performance using SBP;
 - the Goods are purchased during the Promotion (i.e., the Promotion is neither terminated nor suspended at the time when the Goods are purchased using SBP);
 - other conditions as set by the Promotion.
- 3.5. The amount of Cash Back for an SBP purchase of Goods transaction is communicated to the Customer via the Customer Profile. The Customer independently tracks the information about the amount of Cash Back.

P.147 Page 100 of 170

3.6. The Cash Back is paid under the Regulations, this Appendix and Promotion Rules within **one** (1) **business day from** the date the Operator receives the information about purchase of Goods under a Promotion (unless a different period and procedure for Cash Back accrual are set by the Operator's or Partner's Promotion).

4. Cash Back Refund (If Technically Feasible)

- 4.1. The Cash Back is refunded in accordance with the following terms, unless otherwise provided for by this Appendix or the Promotion Rules.
 - 4.1.1. When returning Goods:
- 4.1.1.1. In case of a full refund (returning Goods in full), the Cash Back is not payable, and the Cash Back paid for such Goods is fully refundable to the Operator / Partner (hereinafter, 'Cash Back amount refund').
 - 4.1.1.2. In case of partial refund (returning a part of Goods):
 - if the conditions of the Promotion determine Cash Back as a percentage of the cost of Goods, the Cash Back amount paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator for the part of Goods that was returned by the Customer. If the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer does not comply with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion, the amount of Cash Back paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator in full;
 - if conditions of the Promotion provide for a fixed Cash Back, the amount of Cash Back paid is refundable to the Partner / Operator only if the cost of the part of Goods that was not returned by the Customer does not comply with the conditions of Cash Back accrual and payment provided for by the Promotion.
- 4.1.2. In cases where the Cash Back is credited upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions or when the Cash Back is credited due to an erroneous accrual (hereinafter, the 'Unjustified Cash Back payment'), the Cash Back must be refunded to the Operator / Partner in full (in part) by the Customer having received the Unjustified Cash Back payment in the absence of the grounds established by the Regulations, Promotion Rules and the laws of the Russian Federation. Under the laws of the Russian Federation, the Unjustified Cash Back payment is construed as unjustified enrichment of the Customer.

The amount of Cash Back refundable under this Item is determined based on the amount of the Unjustified Cash Back payment: in case of unjustified accrual of the full Cash Back amount, such amount is refundable in full; in case of unjustified accrual of a part of the Cash Back amount, the Cash Back is refunded in the amount equal to the Unjustified Cash Back payment.

P.147 Page 101 of 170

- * NSPK
- 4.2. The Operator informs the Customer of the Cash Back amount to be refunded via the Customer Profile.
- 4.3. The Cash Back amount, including in case of erroneous accrual of Cash Back or accrual of Cash Back upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, is refunded by the Issuer debiting the Cash Back amount (in full or in part) from the Customer's bank account or decreasing the Customer's e-money balance (in full or in part). Then, the Acquirer / credit institution providing banking services to the Operator transfers the Cash Back amount (in full or in part) to the bank account of the Partner (unless the agreement between the Acquirer and the Partner stipulates another procedure for settlement related to the Cash Back amount refund) / Operator (unless the agreement between the Operator and the credit institution providing banking services to the Operator stipulates another procedure for settlement related to the Cash Back amount refund).
- 4.4. If the Issuer cannot debit the Cash Back amount to be refunded (in full or in part), including in case of erroneous accrual or accrual upon Customer's failure to comply with the Promotion conditions, from the Customer's bank account or decreasing the Customer's e-money balance by the Cash Back amount to be refunded (in full or in part), the Customer must reimburse the Issuer for expenses related to the Cash Back amount refund within **three (3) business days from** the date of Goods (part of Goods) return.
- 4.5. The Customer undertakes to reimburse the damages related to the Cash Back amount refund.

P.147 Page 102 of 170

NSPK

Appendix 3. The *Bonus* Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Bonus Point – a type of Reward, a notional unit accrued to the Customer as a result of the Customer's purchase of Goods using a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, or other actions aimed at participation in Promotions, development of the Loyalty Program and other products and services of the Operator.

Bonus Account – an entry in the Customer Profile generated to reflect information about the number of Customer Bonus Points.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. The *Bonus* Program is based on the system for accumulating Bonus Points accrued to the Customer as a result of the Customer performing purchase of Goods transactions under a Promotion using a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, or other actions aimed at participation in Promotions, development of the Loyalty Program and other products and services of the Operator.
- 2.3. The *Bonus* Program is implemented by the Operator or the Partner holding the corresponding Promotions.
- 2.4. The procedure, amount and usage of Bonus Points are defined in accordance with this Appendix, the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 2.5. Bonus Points are accrued and paid under the procedure established by the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 2.6. The option to accumulate and use Bonus Points is granted to the Customer with all valid Customer's Mir Cards registered in the Loyalty Program, or all Customer's bank accounts used for SBP purchases, regardless of their number. Each Customer has but one Bonus Account.

P.147 Page 103 of 170

2.7. Bonus Points conversion rate is defined by the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.

3. Terms of Bonus Accrual

- 3.1. The Customer is entitled to collect and accumulate Bonus Points in accordance with the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 3.2. The terms and procedure for crediting Bonus Points to the Customer's Bonus Account are determined by the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 3.3. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the following Bonus accrual conditions may be stipulated, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, performed on any day of the week / certain days of the week;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, performed at any time of the day / certain time of the day;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty
 Program or using SBP, performed for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value;
 - the amount to which Bonus Points are accrued for a purchase of Goods transaction with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP can be limited to a certain amount;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP: any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator's Platform);
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP: first; second; first two; second and third; and the like;
 - the conditions for rounding the amount of purchase of Goods transaction with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP for the purposes of Bonus Points accrual;
 - other terms aimed at boosting Customer activity when using the Operator's Platform, the Operator's Services, Mir Cards and/or SBP under a Promotion;

P.147 Page 104 of 170

- the list of purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP for which the Bonus Points are not paid / not provided.
- 3.4. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the Operator may also stipulate the following Bonus Points accrual conditions, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP in any category (industry (hereinafter, 'category')) / selected by the Customer / determined by the Operator (the type of category (industry) and/or MCC is determined by the Promotion Rules);
 - for purchase of Goods transactions performed with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP in a category during a certain period / the entire Promotion term;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions performed with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP at any Merchant / Merchant selected by the Operator;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions performed with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP at a certain (minimum) volume during a certain period.
 - 3.5. Bonus Points are credited to the Customer under the following conditions:
 - the Customer is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
 - the Customer joined the Promotion (in accordance with Subsection 3.2.7 of the Regulations);
 - the Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program. There are no restrictions on performance of transactions with such a card (e.g., on payment with a Mir Card on the Internet);
 - the Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for using SBP. There are no restrictions on transaction performance using SBP;
 - the Goods are purchased during the Promotion (i.e., the Promotion is neither terminated nor suspended at the time when the Goods are purchased with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP);
 - other conditions as set by the Promotion.
- 3.6. The amount of Bonus Points to be credited to the Customer is communicated to the Customer via the Customer Profile. The Customer independently tracks the information about the amount of Bonus Points.

P.147 Page 105 of 170

- 3.7. Bonus Points are accrued in accordance with the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 3.8. The Operator is entitled to unilaterally deny the Customer the accrual of Bonus Points, debit the Customer Bonus Account or cancel the Customer Bonus Account, including in the following cases: if the performed Purchase of Goods transactions are related to the Customer's business activity; the Program Regulations are violated; the Operator's or the Partner's Promotion Rules are violated; Bonus Points were accrued by mistake.
- 3.9. In case of return of Goods purchased under the corresponding Promotion, the Operator is entitled to write off the Bonus Points received under such Promotion from the Customer's Bonus Account. The balance of the Customer's Bonus Account can be negative.
- 3.10. Donating, selling, exchanging, transferring and otherwise transacting Bonus Points between the Customer and third parties are prohibited. If such actions of the Customer are revealed, the Operator reserves the right to cancel the Customer's Bonus Account.
- 3.11. Bonus Points cannot be transferred from one Bonus Account to another. If such actions of Customers are revealed, the Operator reserves the right to cancel the Customers' Bonus Accounts.

4. **Use of Bonus Points**

- 4.1. The Customer is entitled to use Bonus Points independently, at their own discretion, within the Operator's and/or Partner's options and offers provided for by the Promotion Rules of the Operator or the Partner, or third parties, if provided for by the Operator's Promotion Rules, posted in the specialized section on the Website or the Customer Profile, except as specified in Items 3.10 – 3.11 of this Appendix.
- 4.2. Bonus Points received by the Customer under this Appendix cannot be used by way of conversion into other types of Rewards, unless otherwise provided for by the Partner's or Operator's Promotion Rules.
- 4.3. Bonus Points accrued to the Customer Bonus Account must be used within twentyfour (24) months from the date of their accrual, unless otherwise determined by the Partner's or Operator's Promotion Rules.

Page 106 of 170 P.147

Appendix 4. The *Prize* Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Prize – a type of Reward, a Customer incentive in cash or in kind within the Loyalty Program participation.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. The *Prize* Program is based on providing the Customer with an incentive in cash or in kind within the Loyalty Program participation.
- 2.3. The *Prize* Program is implemented by the Operator or the Partner holding the corresponding Promotions. The *Prize* Program is implemented by holding Promotions within SBP exclusively by the Operator.
 - 2.4. The Prize in kind cannot be replaced with its cash equivalent.
- 2.5. The terms of Promotions under the *Prize* Program, including the terms of the Customer's participation in the Promotion, types of Prize, the procedure and terms of its provision are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations and this Appendix in the Promotion Rules.
- 2.6. The Prize in cash is provided to the Customer using details of the valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program and used for the purchase of Goods.
- 2.7. The Prize in cash within SBP Promotions is credited to the Customer's account used to perform the purchase of Goods transaction. The crediting of the SBP Participating Bank account is not governed by the Operator.

P.147 Page 107 of 170

NSPK

3. Prize Provision Conditions

- 3.1. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the following Prize provision conditions may be stipulated, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed on any day of the week / certain days of the week;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed at any time of the day / certain time of the day;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value;
 - for purchase transactions with a Co-badged Mir Card;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program: any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator's Platform);
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program: first; second; first two; second and third; and the like;
 - for purchase of Goods transactions performed using SBP, including those performed on any day of the week / certain days of the week, at any time of the day / certain time of the day, for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value; purchase of any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator's Platform), first / second / first two / second and third / and the like;
 - other terms aimed at boosting Customer activity when using the Operator's Platform, the Operator's Services and/or Mir Cards under a Promotion;
 - the list of purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program for which the Prize is not provided.
- 3.2. When formulating the Promotion Rules, the Operator may also stipulate the following Prize provision conditions, among others:
 - for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program in any category (industry (hereinafter, 'category')) / selected by the Customer / determined by the Operator (the type of category (industry) and/or MCC is determined by the Promotion Rules);

P.147 Page 108 of 170

- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed in a category during a certain period / the entire Promotion term;
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed at any Merchant / Merchant selected by the Operator;
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program performed at a certain (minimum) volume during a certain period;
- for purchase of Goods transactions performed using SBP, including in any / Customer-selected / Operator-defined category (the category type is defined by the Promotion conditions), in a category during a certain period / the entire Promotion term, at any Merchant / Merchant defined by the Operator, at any / certain (minimum) volume during a certain period, through any means of payment using SBP / certain means of payment using SBP.
- 3.3. The Customer is provided the Prize under the following conditions:
 - The Customer is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
 - The Customer joined the Promotion (in accordance with Subsection 3.2.7 of the Regulations);
 - The Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program. There are no restrictions on performance of transactions with such card (e.g., on payment with a Mir Card on the Internet). When performing a purchase of Goods with a Co-badged Mir Card, the Prize is provided only to the extent technically feasible by the Operator;
 - The Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for using SBP. There are no restrictions on receiving the Prize in cash (direct deposits) via SBP;
 - The Goods are purchased during the Promotion (i.e., the Promotion is neither terminated nor suspended at the time when the Goods are purchased with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP);
 - other conditions as set by the Promotion.
- 3.4. To receive the Prize under the Promotion within SBP, the Customer must independently ensure the permission to receive the Prize in cash (direct deposits) via SBP.
- 3.5. The information about the Prize is communicated to the Customer via the Customer Profile. The Customer independently tracks the information about the Prize.

P.147 Page 109 of 170

- * NSPK
- 3.6. In case of return of Goods purchased under the corresponding Promotion, the Operator / Partner is entitled not to take such transactions into account for the calculation and provision of the Prize.
- 3.7. For the provision of a Prize, the Customer may be requested to provide additional information (including a copy of the Russian passport with Customer's passport details (full name, date of birth, as well as series, number, date of issue, issuing authority, and residence address (with postal code) in the Russian Federation), information about the actual residence address, a copy of the Tax registration certificate (INN), other documents and/or information required to receive the Prize) that the Customer must provide within the period specified in the Promotion Rules. If by the end of the period of the Promotion the Prize cannot be delivered to the Customer due to reasons beyond the control of the Operator or the Partner, the Prize is considered unclaimed. The unclaimed Prize cannot be claimed in the future, and no monetary compensation will be paid. If the Customer fails to provide the requested information, the Operator or Partner may deny the Customer the provision of the Prize.
 - 3.8. The Customer bears their own costs related to the receipt of the Prize.

P.147 Page 110 of 170

Appendix 5. The *Discount* Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Discount – a type of Reward, a reduction of the cost of Goods/Services as a result of the Customer's purchase of Goods using a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, or other actions aimed at participation in Promotions, development of the Loyalty Program and other products and services of the Operator.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1 An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2 The *Discount* Program is based on the system for granting a discount to a Customer as a result of the Customer performing purchase of Goods transactions under a Promotion using a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP, or other actions aimed at participation in Promotions, development of the Loyalty Program and other products and services of the Operator.
- 2.3 The *Discount* Program is implemented by the Partner holding the corresponding Promotions.
- 2.4 The procedure, time frames and amount of the Discount are defined in accordance with this Appendix, the Partner's Promotion Rules.

3. Discount Accrual Conditions

- 3.1 The Customer is entitled to receive the Discount in accordance with the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 3.2 The time frames and procedure for providing the Customer with the Discount are defined by the Partner's Promotion Rules.
- 3.3 When formulating the Promotion Rules, the following Discount granting conditions may be stipulated, among others:

P.147 Page 111 of 170

- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty
 Program or using SBP, performed for any amount of money / for an amount of money not less than a certain value;
- the Discount amount for a purchase of Goods transaction with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP can be limited to a certain value;
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP: any goods (works, services) / certain goods (works, services) (types, groups thereof etc.) / certain number of goods (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator's Platform);
- for purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP: first; second; first two; second and third; and the like;
- the conditions for rounding the amount of purchase of Goods transaction with a
 valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP for the purposes of
 receiving the Discount;
- other terms aimed at boosting Customer activity when using the Operator's Platform, the Operator's Services, Mir Cards and/or SBP under a Promotion;
- the list of purchase of Goods transactions with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP for which the Discount is not provided.
- 3.4 The Customer is provided with the Discount under the following conditions:
 - The Customer is an active participant of the Loyalty Program;
 - The Customer joined the Promotion (in accordance with Subsection 3.2.7 of the Regulations);
 - The Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program. There are no restrictions on performance of transactions with such a card (e.g., on payment with a Mir Card on the Internet);
 - The Goods purchased under a Promotion are paid for using SBP. There are no restrictions on transaction performance using SBP;
 - The Goods are purchased during the Promotion (i.e., the Promotion is neither terminated nor suspended at the time when the Goods are purchased with a valid Mir Card registered in the Loyalty Program or using SBP);
 - other conditions as set by the Promotion.

P.147 Page 112 of 170

☆ NSPK

Appendix 6. The Service Program

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Service – a Customer's access to a set of services provided by the Partner or the Operator.

2. General Provisions

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer is deemed confirmation of the Customer having properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. The *Service* Program features access to a set of services provided to the Customer by Partners or the Operator.
- 2.3. The procedure for the provision and use of the *Service* Program is determined by the Operator's or Partner's Promotion Rules.

P.147 Page 113 of 170

NSPK

Appendix 6.1. The Mir Pass Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations Program (Mir Pass)

1. Terms and Definitions

The terms and definitions used in this Appendix are understood to have the following meanings (regardless of their number, case, etc.):

Mir Pass Lounge Access Service at Airports, Railway Stations (Mir Pass) (hereinafter, Lounge Access Service or Mir Pass Service or the Service) – a service enabling Issuers to provide Customers with access to Lounges at airports, railway stations as a privilege. Customers may also be given other privileges, e.g., the option to visit Premium Lounges at airports, the option to get a Discount when paying the bill at a Restaurant, the option to get a Discount on taxi rides or transfer services, the option of a fast track channel at airports (flight check-in, baggage drop-off at dedicated counters and priority passport lanes), luggage wrapping. These privileges are granted against presentation of an Access Code under the Service, if the Issuer includes this option in the contract entered into by and between the Issuer and the Customer. The up-to-date list and information about Lounges/Restaurants/places where other privileges can be obtained under the Service (name, location etc.) posted https://vamprivet.ru/business-lounge/ and/or https://mirpass. are at: vamprivet.ru/business-lounge/.

Lounges – dedicated premises at airports, railway stations and other transportation facilities available for Customers to visit under the Lounge Access Service, as well as other accommodations intended for temporary stay of Customers and their Guests.

USIA ID – an identifier of Customer information within the registry of the Federal State Information System 'Unified System of Identification and Authentication Within the Infrastructure Providing Information and Technological Interaction of Information Systems Used for the Provision of State and Municipal Services in Electronic Form' (USIA) that a Customer uses to access the Lounge Access Service. For the Lounge Access Service provision, USIA ID and Access Code must belong to the same Customer.

Guest – a person (persons) accompanying a Customer to an airport and/or Lounge. Guests can obtain privileges in the form of Lounge Visits and fast track channel at airports (flight check-in, baggage drop-off at dedicated counters and priority passport lanes) only together with the Customer.

Commercial Biometric System (hereinafter, 'CBS') – any accredited organization that authenticates Customers using the unified biometric system vector and/or USIA ID and that acceded

P.147 Page 114 of 170

to the offer of NSPK JSC to enter into the Agreement on information and technological interaction for the purposes of authentication of individuals using the GIS IBS Vector.

Access Code – a unique identifier provided by the Issuer to the Customer and entitling the Customer to access Lounges and/or other privileges (should the Issuer provide the Customer with the option), using the identifier under the Service. The Access Code consists of a unique 16-digit number and an activation code.

Lounge Operator – any third party or organization that owns and/or operates Lounges accessed using Access Codes.

Restaurant Operator – any third party or organization that owns and/or operates a Restaurant (Restaurants) accessed using Access Codes.

Check-in Desk Operator – any third party or organization that checks in the Customer and their Guest for a flight at an airport using Access Codes.

Baggage Wrap Operator – any third party or organization that provides the Customer with the luggage wrapping service accessed using Access Codes.

Supplier – any third party or organization that has a contractual relationship with Lounge Operators, Restaurants, Baggage Wrap Operators, Check-in Desk Operators, Taxi Operators.

Restaurant – a food outlet located at an airport in the Russian Federation, wherein a Customer can get a Discount when paying the bill upon presenting their Access Code.

Discount – a reduction of the original price of an item at a Restaurant or a reduction of the original taxi fare when the Customer presents their Access Code when paying the bill at the Restaurant or the fare in a taxi. A Customer may use several Restaurant Discount units during a single visit to a Restaurant. The information about the amount of the Discount is posted in the Customer Profile of the Loyalty Program.

Taxi Operator – any third party or organization that provides the Customer with the service of transportation to or from an airport or a train station, at a fare, accessed using a promotion code posted in the Customer Profile of the Loyalty Program.

QR Code (Quick Response Code) – a type of matrix barcodes (or 2D barcodes) presenting information for quick recognition using technical equipment to be used in the Lounge Access Service implementation. The QR Code contains information about the Access Code.

P.147 Page 115 of 170

2. General Provisions

NSPK

- 2.1. An individual's accedence to the Regulations (registration in the Loyalty Program) as a Customer or by entering Customer data specified in Item 3.2 of this Appendix in the Customer Profile in any manner specified in Item 3.2 of this Appendix is deemed confirmation that the Customer has properly read, understood and accepted this Appendix.
- 2.2. Within the Service, the Operator ensures the information exchange between all parties involved in the provision to the Customer of the Lounge Access Service and/or other privileges (by the Customer, the Issuer, CBS, the Supplier, the Lounge Operator, the Restaurant, the Taxi Operator, the Check-in Desk Operator, the Baggage Wrap Operator etc.); under the agreement entered into by and between the Issuer and the Customer, the Issuer provides the Customer with the Access Code entitling the Customer to access Lounges and to get other privileges (should the Issuer provide the Customer with the option) using this identifier under the Service; the Supplier ensures technical capacity for recognition of QR Codes and Access Codes at airports and railway stations, and, in addition, ensures that the Access Code and USIA ID belong to the same Customer; the Lounge Operator renders services to the Customer at the Operator's Lounges; the Restaurant renders services to the Customer at the Restaurant; the Check-in Desk Operator renders services to the Customer during fast track at airports (flight check-in, baggage drop-off at dedicated counters and priority passport lanes); the Baggage Wrap Operator renders baggage wrapping services to the Customer; the Taxi Operator renders transportation services to the Customer; CBS authenticates the Customer using USIA ID and transmits the authentication information to the Supplier. The Operator shall not be liable for the information received from the Issuer, the Supplier, CBS or the Customer under the Service. The Operator shall not be liable for services rendered to Customers under the Service and for the quality thereof.
- 2.3. The procedure and conditions of the Service provision are defined by this Appendix, agreements entered into by and between the Issuer and the Customer, the Operator and the Issuer, the Operator and the Supplier, the Operator and CBS, CBS and the Supplier, and other agreements governing the implementation of the Lounge Access Service.
- 2.4. The Operator does not charge the Customer for the Lounge Access Service and other privileges provided within the Service. The fee for access to Lounges and/or other privileges under the Service is paid by the Customer to the Issuer, or by the Customer to the Supplier, or by the Customer to the Check-in Desk Operator / Baggage Wrap Operator / Taxi Operator in cases and under agreements entered into by and between the Customer and the corresponding person.

P.147 Page 116 of 170

3. Procedure and Conditions of the Service Provision

3.1 The Customer accedes to the Service based on and with the use of the Access Code provided to the Customer by the Issuer. The Customer can accede to the Service only after receiving the corresponding notification from the Issuer.

3.2 To accede to the Service:

• the Customer independently enters their first and last name (using Latin characters) and the Access Code in the Customer Profile;

or

- the Issuer is entitled, subject to the corresponding Customer's consent, to transmit to the Operator the Customer data, namely, their first and last name (in Latin characters) and the Access Code, for the Operator to enter this data into the Customer Profile. The Issuer must obtain the Customer's consent to personal data processing, including the transfer of personal data to the Operator, for the purposes of the Customer's accedence to the Service. At the Operator's request, the Customer's consent must be provided by the Issuer to the Operator within the time frame stipulated in the request.
- 3.3 The Operator, upon verifying the data provided in accordance with Item 3.2 of this Appendix, entitles the Customer with the Service and, based on the Access Code, generates the QR Code that the Customer can subsequently use to visit Lounges and to get other privileges (should the Issuer provide the Customer with the option). For each Access Code, a unique QR Code is generated and posted in the Customer Profile. The QR Code can be saved on the Customer's mobile device. The information about the QR Code is communicated to the Customer via the Customer Profile. The Customer independently tracks the information about the QR Code. If, following the data verification, the Customer is denied the Service provision, the Customer must contact the Issuer who provided the Access Code.
- 3.4 After acceding to the Service, the Customer is provided with the option of using USIA ID for the Service implementation. Should the Customer intend to use this option, the Customer shall provide the Operator with consent to the Operator's use of USIA ID, to the Operator obtaining Customer information from USIA, namely, information on the registration of biometric personal data, on the status of consent to the processing of biometric personal data, on USIA ID.

The Customer may provide the Operator with consent to the use of USIA ID under the Service only if the following conditions are met:

P.147 Page 117 of 170

- the Customer's biometric personal data is registered in USIA and was not deleted from USIA;
- the Customer provided to USIA consent to the processing of biometric personal data, and such consent was not revoked;
- the Customer provided to USIA consent to the transfer of the unified biometric system vector, and such consent was not revoked;
- the Customer provided the Operator with consent to use and transfer USIA ID to third parties (CBS and the Supplier), and such consent was not revoked.

The information about the result of linking USIA ID to the Service and the status of such linking is available in the Customer Profile.

- 3.5 The Operator transfers the QR Code and/or USIA ID to the Supplier via communication channels determined by the Operator to provide the Service to Customers.
- 3.6 The Operator transfers USIA ID to CBS via communication channels determined by the Operator to provide the Service to Customers.
 - 3.7 The Customer, for the Service provision to be granted access to Lounges, shall:
 - present the Lounge Operator with the QR Code (or the Access Code) and their boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location). The terms of access to Lounges before/after the departure/arrival date indicated on the boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location) are determined by the corresponding Lounge Operator and are checked by the Customer independently. Should the Customer fail to present the QR Code (the Access Code) or their boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location), they will be denied the Service provision to access Lounges;

or

• to the extent technically feasible, use USIA ID in the Lounge by scanning their facial features at the Lounge entrance and present their boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location). The terms of access to Lounges before/after the departure/arrival date indicated on the boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location) are determined by the corresponding Lounge Operator and are checked by the Customer independently. When using USIA ID, the Customer is granted the opportunity to independently select an Access Code to access a Lounge (to the extent technically feasible and if the Customer has several Access Codes). Should the Customer fail to authenticate when using USIA

P.147 Page 118 of 170

ID or fail to present their boarding pass (or a similar document, depending on the Lounge location), they will be denied the Service provision to access Lounges. Should the Customer fail to authenticate when using USIA ID, they shall be entitled to use another method of accessing Lounges specified in this Item of this Appendix.

The Service to access Lounges is provided exclusively to Customers and guests accompanying them. The limitations surrounding the option of being granted access to Lounges are posted at https://vamprivet.ru.

- 3.8 The Customer, for the Service provision to get a Discount when paying the bill at a Restaurant, presents the Restaurant with the QR Code (or the Access Code) and the verification code before paying the bill, and decides on their own on the number of Discount units to use to pay the bill at the Restaurant (the number of Discount units that can be used to pay the bill at the Restaurant is limited to the number of Discount units provided to the Customer by the Issuer). Should the Customer fail to present the QR Code (the Access Code), they will not be given a Discount when paying the bill at the Restaurant. The Discount when paying the bill at the Restaurant is provided exclusively to the Customer.
- 3.9 To implement the Service to get a Discount on a taxi ride, the Customer independently activates the promotion code by clicking the appropriate button in the Customer Profile of the Loyalty Program. The promotion code activation period is limited.
- 3.10 To implement the Service to receive the baggage wrapping service, the Customer presents to the Baggage Wrap Operator the QR Code (the Access Code) and the verification code to purchase this service, as well as independently determines the number of privilege units to use (the number of privilege units that can be used for the baggage wrapping service is limited to the number of privilege units that the Issuer provides to the Customer and depends on the number of baggage units to be wrapped). Should the Customer fail to present the QR Code (the Access Code), they will not be given the option to use the baggage wrapping service under the Service. The option to use the baggage wrapping service is provided solely to the Customer. The restrictions to the option to receive the baggage wrapping service when using the Service are posted at https://vamprivet.ru.
- 3.11 To implement the Service to receive the fast track service at airports (flight check-in, baggage drop-off at dedicated counters and priority passport lanes), the Customer presents to the Check-in Desk Operator the QR Code (the Access Code). Should the Customer fail to present the QR Code (the Access Code) or the boarding pass, they will be denied the Service provision.
- 3.12 Only the Operator can make changes to the Customer data provided under the Service in accordance with Item 3.2 of this Appendix based on the information received from the Issuer.
- 3.13 The Operator limits the use of the Service by the Customer based on the information received by the Operator from the Issuer.

P.147 Page 119 of 170

- NSPK
- 3.14 By using the Service, the Customer consents to the transfer of their personal data, namely, their first and last name (written using Latin characters), mobile phone number, Access Code, information about the Service use, to the Supplier to provide the Service to the Customer and to collect information about the Service use by Customers with further generation of Customer information (Customer Profile) on the Supplier's resources. The Customer also consents to the transfer of their Personal Data listed in this Item by the Supplier to the Operator for the Service provision.
- 3.15 By using this Service, the Customer, for the purposes of the Service provision to them, consents to the transfer of their Personal Data, namely, their first and last name (written using Latin characters), mobile phone number, Access Code, information about the Service use, by the Operator to the Issuer. Also by using this Service, the Customer, for the purposes of the Service provision, provides the Issuer with their consent to the processing of the Customer's Personal Data listed in this Item, including the transfer of the Personal Data by the Issuer to the Operator. The processing of the Personal Data in this Item shall mean any action or a series of actions with Personal Data with or without the use of automation facilities, including Personal Data acquisition, recording, systematization, accumulation, storage, refinement (update and alteration), extraction, use, transfer (provision, access granting) to the Operator, depersonalization, blocking, deleting and annihilation.
- 3.16 By using this Service, the Customer consents to the transfer of Customer data by the Operator, namely, USIA ID, to the Supplier and CBS for the Service provision.

P.147 Page 120 of 170

Appendix 7. Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program

1. General Provisions

1.1. Appendix Purpose and Scope

This Appendix to the Regulations (hereinafter, the 'Appendix') defines, in accordance with Subsections 3.3, 3.4.5 of the Regulations:

- participants and stages of the Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program as a Partner;
- participants and stages of registration of an additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program;
- participants and stages of registration of an additional Acquirer in the Loyalty Program;
- participants and stages of the procedure for changing Partner credentials;
- participants and stages of Promotion arrangement under the Loyalty Program;
- participants and stages of the procedure for changing conditions of the Promotion (Promotion description);
- participants and stages of the procedure for suspending the Promotion;
- participants and stages of the procedure for terminating the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program at the initiative of the Partner;
- conditions of Merchant / Partner, Acquirer support by the Operator;
- conditions of the Operator's reporting to the Partner;
- conditions of the Operator notifying the Partner of changes in the Regulations, including the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and (if provided) other documents used in the interaction between the Merchant / Partner and the Operator.

The Operator is entitled to define detailed procedures of interaction between the Merchant / Partner (and/or third parties engaged by it), the Acquirer (and/or third parties engaged by it (TPP)) and the Operator on the issues of this Appendix in corresponding charts and/or internal documents of the Operator.

1.2. Terms and Definitions

In addition to the terms and definitions set forth in Subsection 1.2 of the Regulations, the following terms and definitions are used in this Appendix:

P.147 Page 121 of 170

Promotion Moderation – the Operator's control of the information posted by the Partner on the Promotion page before its publication on the Website, including in cases of changes in the conditions of the Promotion (description of the Promotion) and suspension of the Promotion, for compliance with the requirements of the Regulations, including the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, as well as the laws of the Russian Federation.

Support – the Operator providing information, technical and organizational assistance to a Merchant / Partner or Acquirer.

Authorized Partner – a Partner entrusted with arranging Promotions, changing the conditions (description) of Promotions, suspending Promotions.

Promotion Arrangement – actions aimed at creating a Promotion page in the Partner Profile, Promotion Moderation, and publishing the Promotion page on the Website.

- 1.3. Other Documents, Guidelines that can be Used in Interaction Between Merchant
 / Partner, Credit Institution (Acquirer, Partner's Bank) and Operator
- 1.3.1. Loyalty Program Standard. Loyalty Program Technologies.

P.147 Page 122 of 170

2. Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program

2.1. Participants of Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program

- 2.1.1. The participants of Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program are:
 - Merchant;
 - The Operator;
 - Acquirer.

2.2. Stages of Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program

- 2.2.1. The Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program consists of the following stages:
 - Merchant submitting the set of documents;
 - Operator approving Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program;
 - Acquirer setting up equipment (in case if Partner arranges Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards);
 - Acquirer approving Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program;
 - Merchant holding closed test Promotion (if necessary).

2.3. Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program by Way of Submitting the Set of Documents to the Operator or Filling out the Registration Form on the Website

- 2.3.1. When submitting the documents to the Operator:
 - The Merchant fills out the Merchant Application (**Appendix 1**). The Merchant Application is signed by the Merchant's individual executive body (CEO, director etc.) / sole proprietor or another person authorized to sign the Merchant Application and imprinted with the Merchant's seal;
 - The Merchant or its authorized person sends (submits) to the Operator the original copy of the Merchant Application, Merchant documents (according to the list given in Section 1 of Annex 6 to this Appendix), as well as the original copy of the Permit / Letter of Guarantee (if signed by the person authorized to sign the Permit / Letter of Guarantee enclosing documentary evidence of powers) at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration'. These documents (with enclosures) can be submitted in electronic form in PDF via communication channels determined by the Operator,

P.147 Page 123 of 170

with subsequent submission (sending) of their original copies within **five** (5) **business days from** the date the Merchant sent the electronic documents to the Operator.

- 2.3.2. When filling out the registration form on the Website (to the extent technically feasible by the Operator), the Merchant must do the following in sequence:
 - submit (send) the Application for accedence to the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program
 Regulations by filling out the corresponding Questionnaire to gain access to the
 Partner Profile on the Website. The Application is generated based on and in
 accordance with the proposed fields;
 - get a password to access the Partner Profile. The information about the access
 granted is sent to the email address or mobile phone number indicated in the
 Application. After logging into the Partner Profile using the provided credentials,
 the Partner Profile is deemed generated;
 - fill out the registration form in the Partner Profile. The Merchant notifies the Operator of generating the registration form via the Partner Profile (by sending the generated Registration Form).

The Merchant Application generated by filling out the registration form must be printed. The Application is signed by the Merchant's individual executive body (CEO, director etc.) / sole proprietor or another person authorized to sign such application and imprinted with the Merchant's seal. The Merchant or its authorized person, within **five (5) business days** from the date of the Operator's approval of the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program, submits (**sends**) to the Operator at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration': the original copy of the Merchant Application (if signed by the person authorized to sign such application, - enclosing documentary evidence of powers); the original copy of the Permit / Letter of Guarantee (with attachments; if signed by the person authorized to sign the Permit / Letter of Guarantee, - enclosing documentary evidence of powers).

2.3.3. Documents listed in Items 2.3.1-2.3.2 of this Annex can be provided in electronic form in accordance with Section 11 of this Appendix.

2.4. Operator Approving Merchant's Participation in the Loyalty Program

2.4.1. The Operator, within **ten (10) business days** from the date of submission of the duly filled out Merchant Application / notification by the Merchant of the registration form generation via the Partner Profile, coordinates the Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program:

P.147 Page 124 of 170

- in case of a negative result, generates a notification to the Merchant (via the channel determined by the Operator);
- in case of insufficient information, generates a request to the Merchant (via the channel determined by the Operator) for additional information necessary to coordinate the Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program. In this case, the period of the Operator's coordination of the Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program starts from the date of provision of the requested information;
- in case of a positive result:
 - sends to the Merchant the notification of the Merchant registration in the Loyalty Program at the email address specified in the Merchant Application. The Operator sending this notification is the moment when the Merchant accedes to the Regulations as a Partner. If it was not provided earlier, the password to access the Partner Profile (if accessing it is technically possible) is sent to the Merchant at the email address and mobile phone number specified in Item 1 'Merchant overview' of the Merchant Questionnaire attached to the Merchant Application;
 - sends the Merchant Application to the Acquirer via the channel determined by the Operator (via the Portal under the '_*Loyalty*'/ '_*SBP*' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)).

2.5. Acquirer Approving the Support of Merchant's Participation (Settlement) in the Loyalty Program

- 2.5.1. The Acquirer, within **five (5) business days** from the receipt from the Operator of the Merchant Application, coordinates the support of the Merchant's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program:
 - in case of a negative result, notifies the Operator via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty'/ '_SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible));
 - in case of a positive result, approves the support of the Merchant's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program and notifies the Operator via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty'/'_SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)). If the Acquirer and the Operator interact via the Bank Profile to coordinate the support of the Merchant's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, then the Acquirer, within **five** (5) **business days** from the receipt of the corresponding application in the Bank Profile,

P.147 Page 125 of 170

must click 'Finish' on the display form, check all the proposed boxes and click 'Yes / Approved', which is the moment when the Acquirer approves the support of the Merchant's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program. The Acquirer is entitled to not make a favorable decision; it must notify the Operator and the Merchant thereof by checking the corresponding boxes in the Bank Profile in the corresponding form.

2.5.2. The Operator sends to Acquirers approving the support of the Merchant's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program and planning to arrange Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, after they approve the Merchant's participation in the Loyalty Program, the Partner ID (PID) via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)). The Acquirer, within **ten** (10) **business days** from the date the Operator provides PID, sets up the equipment in accordance with the requirements of the Loyalty Program Standard. Loyalty Program Technologies and notifies the Operator of the completion of equipment setup and readiness to support Partner Promotions via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)).

2.6. Expansion of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

- 2.6.1. A Partner is entitled to expand its participation in the Loyalty Program (e.g., if a Partner acceded to the Loyalty Program earlier for the purposes of arranging Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards only, it may declare its intent to arrange Promotions under the Loyalty Program providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods using SBP, and vice versa).
 - 2.6.2. To expand the scope of participation in the Loyalty Program, the Partner must:
- 2.6.2.1. fill out the Application in the form set out in Annex 4 to this Appendix and sent it to the Operator at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration'. These documents (with enclosures) can be submitted in electronic form in PDF via communication channels determined by the Operator, with subsequent submission (sending) of their original copies within **five (5) business days from** the date the Merchant sent the electronic documents to the Operator;
 - 2.6.2.2. fill out the corresponding form in the Partner Profile (if technically feasible).
- 2.6.3. The Partner application is further considered and approved in accordance with the procedure set out in Items 2.4-2.5 of this Appendix.

P.147 Page 126 of 170

2.6.4. Documents listed in Items 2.6.1-2.6.2 of this Appendix can be provided in electronic form in accordance with Section 11 of this Appendix.

2.7. **Merchant Holding Closed Test Promotion (If Necessary)**

- If necessary, the Operator shall notify the Merchant of the mandatory closed test 2.7.1. Promotion: the Acquirer shall receive a notification via the Portal under the '_Loyalty' / '_SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible); the Partner – at the email address specified in the Merchant Application or via the Partner Profile (if technically feasible).
- 2.7.2. The Operator, within **one** (1) **business day** from the date of the corresponding event during / following the closed test Promotion:
 - notifies the Acquirer of errors and/or the need to repeat the closed test Promotion / successful closed test Promotion via the Portal under the 'Loyalty' / 'SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible);
 - notifies the Partner of errors and/or the need to repeat the closed test Promotion / successful closed test Promotion at the email address specified in the Merchant Application or via the Partner Profile (if technically feasible).

P.147 Page 127 of 170

NSPK

3. Registration of Additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program

3.1. Participants of Registration of Additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program

- 3.1.1. The participants of the registration of an additional Partner trademark in the Loyalty Program are:
 - Partner;
 - Operator.

3.2. Stages of Registration of Additional Partner Trademark in the Loyalty Program

- 3.2.1. The registration of an additional Partner trademark in the Loyalty Program consists of the following stages:
 - Partner submitting the set of documents;
 - Operator approving additional trademark registration in the Loyalty Program;
 - Acquirer setting up equipment (if necessary).

3.3. Partner Submitting the Set of Documents

- 3.3.1. The Partner draws up the Application for additional trademark registration (Annex 2 to this Appendix). The Application for additional trademark registration can be drawn up on paper or by filling out the corresponding form in the Partner Profile. The Application for additional trademark registration is signed by the Partner's individual executive body (CEO, director etc.) / sole proprietor or another person authorized to sign the Application for additional trademark registration and imprinted with the Partner's seal.
- 3.3.2. The Partner or its authorized person sends (submits) to the Operator an original copy of the Application for additional trademark registration and the Permit / Letter of Guarantee (with Appendices; if signed by the person authorized to sign the Permit / Letter of Guarantee enclosing documentary evidence of powers) at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration'. These documents (with enclosures) can be submitted in electronic form in PDF via communication channels determined by the Operator, with subsequent submission (sending) of their original copies within **five (5) business days from** the date the Partner sent the electronic documents to the Operator. The Application specified in this Sub-item can also be generated and sent to the Operator via the Partner Profile, if technically feasible.

P.147 Page 128 of 170

3.3.3. Documents listed in Items 3.3.1-3.3.2 of this Appendix can be provided in electronic form in accordance with Section 11 of this Appendix.

3.4. Operator Approving Additional Trademark Registration in the Loyalty Program

- 3.4.1. The Operator, within **five** (5) **business days** upon receipt of the Application for additional trademark registration from the Partner, coordinates the additional trademark registration in the Loyalty Program:
 - in case of a negative result, generates a notification to the Partner via the channel determined by the Operator;
 - in case of insufficient information, generates a request to the Partner for additional information required to approve the additional trademark registration in the Loyalty Program. In this case, the period of the Operator's coordination of the additional trademark registration in the Loyalty Program starts from the date of provision of the requested information;
 - in case of a positive result:
 - notifies the Partner of the approval of the additional trademark registration in the Loyalty Program at the email address specified in the Merchant Application or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner;
 - if necessary, provides the Acquirer with an additional PID.

P.147 Page 129 of 170

4. Additional Acquirer Assignment to Support the Partner's Participation (Settlement) in the Loyalty Program

4.1. Participants to Additional Acquirer Assignment to Support the Partner's Participation (Settlement) in the Loyalty Program

- Participants to the assignment of an additional Acquirer to support the Partner's 4.1.1. participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program are:
 - Partner;
 - The Operator;
 - Acquirer.

4.2. Stages of Additional Acquirer Assignment to Support the Partner's Participation (Settlement) in the Loyalty Program

- 4.2.1. The assignment of an additional Acquirer to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program consists of the following stages:
 - the Partner submitting the corresponding application;
 - the Operator coordinating the assignment of an additional Acquirer to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program;
 - the Acquirer approving the support of the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program;
 - Acquirer setting up equipment (if necessary).

4.3. **Partner Submitting the Set of Documents**

The Partner draws up the Application for additional Acquirer assignment to support 4.3.1. the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program (Annex 3 to this Appendix). The Partner's Application can be drawn up on paper or by filling out the corresponding form in the Partner Profile. The Application for additional Acquirer assignment to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program is signed by the Partner's individual executive body (CEO, director etc.) / sole proprietor or another person authorized to sign the Application for additional Acquirer assignment to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program and imprinted with the Partner's seal.

P.147 Page 130 of 170

- If the documents are filled out on paper, the Partner or its authorized person sends 4.3.2. (submits) to the Operator the original copy of the Application for additional Acquirer assignment to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program (enclosing documentary evidence of powers) at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration'. These documents (with enclosures) can be submitted in electronic form in PDF via communication channels determined by the Operator, with subsequent submission (sending) of their original copies within five (5) business days from the date the Partner sent the electronic documents to the Operator.
- 4.3.3. Documents listed in Items 4.3.1-4.3.2 of this Appendix can be provided in electronic form in accordance with Section 11 of this Appendix.

4.4. Operator Coordinating the Assignment of an Additional Acquirer to Support the Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

- 4.4.1. The Operator, within **five (5) business days** upon receipt from the Partner of the corresponding Application, coordinates the assignment of an additional Acquirer to support of the Partner' participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program:
 - in case of a negative result, generates a notification to the Partner via the channel determined by the Operator;
 - in case of a positive result:
 - sends the Application for additional Acquirer assignment to support the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program to the Acquirer via the channel determined by the Operator (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty'/ '_SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible).

4.5. Acquirer Approving the Support of the Partner's Participation (Settlement) in the Loyalty Program

- The Acquirer, within five (5) business days upon receipt from the Operator of the 4.5.1. corresponding Partner's Application, coordinates the Partner' participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program:
 - in case of a negative result, notifies the Operator via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the 'Loyalty' 'SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible));

P.147 Page 131 of 170

- in case of a positive result, approves the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program and notifies the Operator via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty'/ '_SBP' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)). If the Acquirer and the Operator interact via the Bank Profile to coordinate the support of the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, then the Acquirer, within **five** (5) **business days** from the receipt of the corresponding application in the Bank Profile, must click 'Finish' on the display form, check all the proposed boxes and click 'Yes / Approved', which is the moment when the Acquirer approves the support of the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program. The Acquirer is entitled to not make a favorable decision on such a Partner application; it must notify the Operator and the Partner thereof by checking the corresponding boxes in the Bank Profile in the corresponding form.
- 4.5.2. The Operator sends to the Acquirer approving the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program and planning to arrange Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of Goods with Mir Cards, after it approves the Partner's participation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program, the Operator's Partner ID (PID) via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_Loyalty' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)).
- 4.5.3. The Acquirer, within **ten** (**10**) **business days** from the date the Operator provides PID, sets up the equipment in accordance with the requirements of the *Loyalty Program Standard*. *Loyalty Program Technologies* and notifies the Operator of the completion of equipment setup and readiness to support Partner Promotions via the channel agreed upon between the Operator and the Acquirer (via the Portal under the '_*Loyalty*' project or the Bank Profile (if technically feasible)).

P.147 Page 132 of 170

* NSPK

5. Changing Partner Credentials

5.1. Participants of Procedure for Changing Partner Credentials

- 5.1.1. The participants of the procedure for changing Partner credentials are:
 - Partner;
 - Operator.

5.2. Operator's Assistance when Making Changes to Partner Account

- 5.2.1. The Operator, subject to the corresponding application from the Partner to make changes to the Partner Account (with the documentary evidence enclosed), is entitled to assist the Partner in making changes to the Partner Account. Notably, the Operator:
 - within **one** (1) **business day** from making changes to the Partner Account, notifies the Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the Partner Account page (as amended) to the Partner for approval) / at the email address specified in the Merchant Application or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner.
- 5.2.2. The Partner, within **three** (3) **business days** of the Operator notifying it of making changes to the Partner Account, approves the Partner Account (as amended):
 - in case of a negative result notifies the Operator of the need to correct the changes made (can also make comments) to the Partner Account via the Partner Profile / via the communication channels determined by the Operator. The Operator makes corrections to the changes in the Partner Account and notifies the Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by resubmitting the Partner Account page (as amended) for Partner's approval) / via email address specified in the Merchant Application or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner. In this case, the term of Partner Account (as amended) approval by the Partner starts from the date of notification by the Operator about corrections to the changes in the Partner Account;
 - in case of a positive result approves changes to the Partner Account and notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile / communication channels determined by the Operator.

P.147 Page 133 of 170

NSPK

6. Promotion Arrangement, Changes to its Conditions (Description), Promotion Suspension

6.1. Promotion Arrangement

6.1.1. Participants of Promotion Arrangement

- 6.1.1.1 The Participants of Promotion arrangement procedure are:
 - Partner² or Authorized Partner;
 - Operator.

6.1.2. Stages of Promotion Arrangement

- 6.1.2.1. The Promotion arrangement consists of the following stages:
 - creating a Promotion page in the Partner Profile (if technically feasible);
 - Promotion Moderation and publishing the Promotion page on the Website.

6.1.3. Creating Promotion Application in Partner Profile

- 6.1.3.1. The Partner / Authorized Partner posts the following information in the corresponding section of the Partner Profile:
 - Promotion conditions;
 - Promotion description.
- 6.1.3.2. Information about the Promotion conditions is posted in accordance with the requirements to the amount of the Reward set forth in the Fees.
- 6.1.3.3. Posting the information about the Promotion conditions / Promotion description also includes entering (providing) the necessary information about Points of sale, including the information about the Card Acceptor ID Code and the Card Acceptor Terminal ID or about the Partner ID in SBP (Legal ID) and the Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID). This information must be sent to the email address determined for interaction with the Operator.

P.147 Page 134 of 170

² The Partner, having charged the Authorized Partner with arranging the Promotion, independently (without involving the Operator) interacts with the Authorized Partner before the moment the Promotion page is posted on the Website, as well as during the Promotion period and upon completion of said period.

6.1.3.4. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **one** (1) **business day** from creation of the Promotion application in the Partner Profile, notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the application to the Operator).

6.1.4. Operator's Assistance in Promotion Arrangement

- 6.1.4.1. The Operator can (at its own discretion) assist the Partner / Authorized Partner in Promotion arrangement. The Operator, within **three** (3) **business days** upon provision of the information required for Promotion arrangement by the Partner, notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the Promotion page for approval) / other communication channels.
- 6.1.4.2. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **one (1) business day** prior to the start of the Promotion, coordinates the Promotion page:
 - in case of a negative result notifies the Operator of the need to make changes (can also make comments) to the Promotion conditions and/or Promotion description (Promotion page) via the Partner Profile / via the communication channels determined by the Operator. The Operator makes changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by resubmitting the Promotion page for approval). In this case, the term of the Promotion page approval by the Partner / Authorized Partner starts from the date of notification by the Operator about the changes to the Promotion page;
 - in case of a positive result, notifies the Operator of approving the Promotion page, after which the Operator publishes the Promotion page on the Website and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner of publishing the Promotion page on the Website via the Partner Profile / communication channels determined by the Operator. From the moment the Promotion page is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

P.147 Page 135 of 170

NSPK

6.1.5. Operator's Assistance When Arranging Promotion is Not Technologically Feasible

- 6.1.5.1. If, for technical reasons, the Partner / Authorized Partner cannot arrange a Promotion independently, the Operator:
 - upon receiving information from the Partner about its intent to arrange the Promotion (including the Promotion conditions and description), performs the necessary actions aimed at creating the Promotion page, including by sending requests to the Partner / Authorized Partner to provide additional information at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / receiving from the Partner / Authorized Partner additional information (including the information about Points of Sale, including the information about the Card Acceptor ID Code and the Card Acceptor Terminal ID or about the Partner ID in SBP (Legal ID) and the Partner's POS ID in SBP (Merchant ID)) via communication channels determined by the Operator;
 - makes a mockup of the Promotion page on paper to be approved by the Partner /
 Authorized Partner by marking the mockup with the "Approved" resolution,
 signing it (with full name) by the Partner's / Authorized Partner's sole executive
 body (director, CEO etc.) or other authorized person (enclosing documentary
 evidence of powers), and certifying it with the Partner's / Authorized Partner's seal;
 - after receiving the Partner's / Authorized Partner's approval (of the Promotion page mockup), publishes the Promotion page on the Website. From the moment the Promotion page is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

6.2. Changing Promotion Conditions (Promotion Description)

6.2.1. The Partner / Authorized Partner makes changes to the Promotion conditions (description) on the Promotion page published on the Website according to the following procedure.

6.2.2. Participants of Promotion Conditions (Promotion Description) Change

6.2.2.1 The participants of the Promotion conditions (Promotion description) change are:

P.147 Page 136 of 170

- Partner³ or Authorized Partner:
- Operator.

6.2.3. Stages of Promotion Conditions (Promotion Description) Change

- 6.2.3.1. The Promotion conditions (Promotion description) change consists of the following stages:
 - making changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile;
 - Promotion Moderation and publishing the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website.

6.2.4. Making Changes to the Promotion Page in the Partner Profile

- 6.2.4.1. In the corresponding section of the Partner Profile, the Partner / Authorized Partner makes changes to:
 - Promotion conditions and/or
 - Promotion description.
 - 6.2.4.2. Changes to the Promotion conditions are made in accordance with the Fees.
- 6.2.4.3. Making changes to the Promotion conditions / Promotion description also includes entering (providing) the necessary information about Points of sale (if such information changes/requires changes).
- 6.2.4.4. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **one** (1) **business day** from making changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile, notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the Promotion page (as amended) for Promotion Moderation).

6.2.5. Promotion Moderation and Publishing the Promotion Page (as Amended) on the Website

6.2.5.1. The Operator, within **three (3) business days** from the Partner / Authorized Partner notifying it of making changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile, performs the Promotion Moderation:

P.147 Page 137 of 170

³ The Partner, having charged the Authorized Partner with making changes to Promotion conditions (description), independently (without involving the Operator) interacts with the Authorized Partner before the moment the Promotion page (as amended) is posted on the Website, as well as during the Promotion period (as amended) and upon completion of said period.

- in case of a negative result notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner of the need to correct the changes made (can also make comments) to the Promotion conditions and/or Promotion description (Promotion page) via the Partner Profile / at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator. The Partner / Authorized Partner makes corrections to changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile and notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile (by resubmitting the Promotion page (as amended) for Promotion Moderation). In this case, the term of Promotion Moderation by the Operator starts from the date the Partner / Authorized Partner notifies it of corrections to the changes made to the Promotion page;
- in case of a positive result:
 - posts the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website;
 - notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner of publishing the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website via the Partner Profile / at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator. From the moment the Promotion page (as amended) is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

6.2.6. Operator's Assistance when Making Changes to Promotion Page

- 6.2.6.1. The Operator is entitled, on behalf of the Partner / Authorized Partner, assist the Partner / Authorized Partner when making changes to the Promotion page. The Operator, within **one** (1) **business day** of making changes to the Promotion page, notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the Promotion page (as amended) for approval).
- 6.2.6.2. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **three (3) business days** of the Operator notifying it of making changes to the Promotion page, approves the Promotion page (as amended):
 - in case of a negative result notifies the Operator of the need to correct the changes made (can also make comments) to the Promotion conditions and/or Promotion description (Promotion page) via the Partner Profile / via the communication channels determined by the Operator. The Operator makes corrections to changes to the Promotion page in the Partner Profile and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by resubmitting the Promotion page (as amended) for approval). In this case, the term of the Promotion page approval by

P.147 Page 138 of 170

the Partner / Authorized Partner starts from the date of notification by the Operator about the corrections to the changes made to the Promotion page;

- in case of a positive result:
 - notifies the Operator thereof. The Operator posts the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner of publishing the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website via the Partner Profile / communication channels determined by the Operator, and the Authorized Partner notifies the Partner, on whose behalf changes to the Promotion page are made, in a manner agreed upon between the Partners. From the moment the Promotion page (as amended) is posted on the Website, the conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

6.2.7. Operator's Assistance When Making Changes to Promotion Page is Not Technologically Feasible

- 6.2.7.1. If, for technical reasons, the Partner / Authorized Partner cannot make changes to the Promotion page independently, the Operator:
 - performs the necessary actions aimed at amending the Promotion page, including by sending requests to the Partner / Authorized Partner to provide additional information at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator / receiving from the Partner / Authorized Partner additional information (including the information about Points of Sale, including the information about Card Acceptor ID Code and Card Acceptor Terminal ID (if such information changes/requires changes)) via communication channels determined by the Operator;
 - makes a mockup of the Promotion page (as amended) on paper to be approved by the Partner / Authorized Partner by marking the mockup with the "Approved" resolution, signing it (with full name) by the Partner's / Authorized Partner's sole executive body (director, CEO etc.) or other authorized person (enclosing documentary evidence of powers), and certifying it with the Partner's / Authorized Partner's seal;
 - after receiving the Partner's / Authorized Partner's approval (of the Promotion page mockup (as amended)), publishes the Promotion page (as amended) on the Website.
 From the moment the Promotion page (as amended) is posted on the Website, the

P.147 Page 139 of 170

conditions (description) of the Promotion on the Promotion page come into force (become effective).

6.3. Promotion Suspension

6.3.1. The Partner / Authorized Partner suspends the Promotion period posted on the Promotion Page published on the Website according to the following procedure.

6.3.2. Participants of Promotion Suspension

- 6.3.2.1 The participants of the Promotion suspension are:
 - Partner⁴ or Authorized Partner;
 - Operator.

6.3.3. Stages of Promotion Suspension

- 6.3.3.1. The Promotion suspension consists of the following stages:
 - entering information about suspension of the Promotion period on the Promotion page in the Partner Profile;
 - Promotion Moderation and publishing the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) on the Website.

6.3.4. Entering Information About Suspension of the Promotion Period on the Promotion Page in the Partner Profile

P.147 Page 140 of 170

⁴ The Partner, having charged the Authorized Partner with performing actions aimed at suspending the Promotion period, independently (without the Operator's involvement) interacts with the Authorized Partner until the Operator is notified by the Authorized Partner of entering the information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page by the Authorized Partner / the Operator assists in entering information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page, as well as during and following the Operator's review of the grounds for Promotion suspension and/or Promotion Moderation / approval by the Authorized Partner of the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) / publication of the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension).

- NSPK
- 6.3.4.1. The Partner / Authorized Partner enters information about the suspension of the Promotion to the Promotion page in the corresponding section of the Partner Profile.
- 6.3.4.2. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **one** (1) **business day** from the date the information about the Promotion suspension is entered on the Promotion page, notifies the Operator thereof, specifying the grounds (reasons) for suspension via the Partner Profile (by sending the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) for Promotion Moderation).

6.3.5. Promotion Moderation and Publishing the Promotion Page (Taking into Account Information About the Promotion Suspension) on the Website

- 6.3.5.1. The Operator, within **five** (5) **business days** from the date of notification by the Partner / Authorized Partner of entering the information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page, reviews the grounds (reasons) for Promotion suspension and performs the Promotion Moderation:
 - in case of a negative result, notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner about the refusal to suspend the Promotion or the need to correct the information about the Promotion suspension entered on the Promotion page (can also make comments) via the Partner Profile / at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator. The Partner / Authorized Partner corrects the information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page in the Partner Profile and notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile (by resending the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) for Promotion Moderation). In this case, the period of Promotion Moderation by the Operator starts from the date the Partner / Authorized Partner notifies it of corrections to the information about the Promotion suspension to the Promotion page;
 - in case of a positive result, publishes the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) on the Website and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile / at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator.

P.147 Page 141 of 170

NSPK

6.3.6. Operator's Assistance When Entering Information About Promotion Suspension on Promotion Page

- 6.3.6.1. The Operator is entitled, on behalf of the Partner / Authorized Partner, assist the Partner / Authorized Partner when entering information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page. The Operator, within **one** (1) **business day** of entering information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page, notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by sending the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) for approval).
- 6.3.6.2. The Partner / Authorized Partner, within **three (3) business days** of the Operator notifying it of entering information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page, approves the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension):
 - in case of a negative result, notifies the Operator about the need to correct the information about the Promotion suspension entered on the Promotion page (can also make comments) via the Partner Profile / communication channels determined by the Operator. The Operator corrects the information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the Partner Profile (by resending the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) for approval). In this case, the period of approval of the Promotion page by the Partner / Authorized Partner starts from the date the Operator notifies it of corrections to the information about the Promotion suspension to the Promotion page;
 - in case of a positive result publishes the Promotion page (taking into account information about the Promotion suspension) on the Website and notifies the Operator thereof via the Partner Profile / communication channels determined by the Operator.

6.3.7. Operator's Assistance When Entering Information About Promotion Suspension on Promotion Page is Not Technologically Feasible

6.3.7.1. If, for technical reasons, the Partner / Authorized Partner cannot independently enter information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page in the Partner Profile, the Promotion period posted on the Promotion page published on the Website is suspended according to the following procedure.

P.147 Page 142 of 170

- 6.3.7.2. The Partner / Authorized Partner submits (sends) a request to the Operator to suspend the Promotion specifying the grounds (reasons) and terms (period) of the supposed suspension via communication channels determined by the Operator.
- 6.3.7.3. The Operator, within **five** (5) **business days** from the date the Partner / Authorized Partner submits the request to suspend the Promotion, reviews the grounds (reasons) and terms (period) of the supposed Promotion suspension, including for valid reasons for suspension, compliance with the requirements of the Regulations, the laws of the Russian Federation, and:
 - in case of a negative result notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof via the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator;
 - in case of insufficient information provided in the Partner's / Authorized Partner's request to suspend the Promotion, sends a request to provide additional information to the Partner / Authorized Partner at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator; In this case, the period of the Operator's review of the Partner's / Authorized Partner's request to suspend the Promotion starts from the date of provision of the requested information via communication channels determined by the Operator;
 - in case of a positive result enters information about the Promotion suspension on the Promotion page on the Website and notifies the Partner / Authorized Partner thereof at the email address specified in the Merchant Application / via communication channels determined by the Operator.

P.147 Page 143 of 170

NSPK

7. Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program at the Initiative of Partner

7.1. Participants of Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

- 7.1.1. The participants of the procedure for terminating the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program are:
 - Partner;
 - Operator.

7.2. Stages of Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

- 7.2.1. The termination of Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program consists of the following stages:
 - Partner submitting Application of participation termination;
 - Operator blocking arrangement of new Promotions and checking for ongoing Partner Promotions;
 - termination of Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program.

7.3. Partner Submitting Application of Participation Termination

- 7.3.1. The Partner executes the Application of participation termination (Annex 5 to this Appendix) on paper. The Application is signed by the sole executive body of the Partner (CEO, Director etc.) / sole proprietor or another person authorized to sign the Application and imprinted with the Partner's seal.
- 7.3.2. The Partner submits (sends) to the Operator the original copy of the Application of participation termination on paper at the address: 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya str., Moscow, 115184, marking the envelope 'Loyalty Program registration'. These documents (with enclosures) can be submitted in electronic form in PDF via communication channels determined by the Operator, with subsequent submission (sending) of their original copies within **five** (5) **business days from** the date the Merchant sent the electronic documents to the Operator.
- 7.3.3. Documents listed in Items 7.3.1-7.3.2 of this Appendix can be provided in electronic form in accordance with Section 11 of this Appendix.

P.147 Page 144 of 170

7.4. Operator Blocking Arrangement of New Promotions and Checking for Ongoing Partner Promotions

- 7.4.1. The Operator, within **five (5) business days** upon receipt of the Application of participation termination:
 - blocks the Partner from arranging new Promotions;
 - checks for ongoing Partner Promotions, and:
 - or more calendar days ago, notifies the Partner and the Acquirer that the Partner's **participation** in the Loyalty Program is **terminated from the moment the Operator sends this notification**, at the email address specified in the Merchant Application, or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner, and via the Bank Profile / the Portal / via communication channels determined by the Operator;
 - if there are no ongoing Partner Promotions, and those expired less than forty-five (45) calendar days ago, notifies the Partner and the Acquirer that the Partner's **participation** in the Loyalty Program is **terminated upon expiry of forty-five (45) calendar days from the termination of all Promotions**, at the email address specified in the Merchant Application, or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner, and via the Bank Profile / the Portal;
 - if there are ongoing Partner Promotions (unless otherwise provided for in the following paragraphs), notifies the Partner and the Acquirer of the date of termination of all Partner Promotions at the email address specified in the Merchant Application, or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner, and via the Bank Profile / the Portal. In this case, on the specified date the Operator unilaterally terminates all of the Partner Promotions (whose period is not expired on the specified date), and the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program terminates after forty-five (45) calendar days from the specified date;
 - if there are ongoing Partner Promotions that were suspended by the Operator in accordance with the Regulations or the period of which was suspended by the Partner in accordance with the Regulations, **terminates** the previously suspended Promotions / Promotion the period of which was suspended by the Partner, and notifies the Partner and the Acquirer of the date of termination of all Partner Promotions at the email address specified in the Merchant

P.147 Page 145 of 170

Application, or using other contact details defined for interaction between the Operator and the Partner, and via the Bank Profile / the Portal. The Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program **terminates after forty-five** (45) calendar days from the specified date.

7.5. Termination of Partner's Participation in the Loyalty Program

- 7.5.1. The moment / date of termination of the Partner's participation in the Loyalty Program at the initiative of the Partner is determined in accordance with Item 7.4.1 of this Appendix.
- 7.6. The Partner is also entitled to withdraw from the support of participation (settlement) by a certain Acquirer. To do this, the Partner must notify the Operator thereof via communication channels determined by the Operator. The Operator's actions with regards to Partner Promotions supported by such Acquirer are similar to the procedure set out by Item 7.4 of this Appendix.

P.147 Page 146 of 170



8. Operator Support of Merchant / Partner, Acquirer

8.1. Operator Support of Merchant / Partner

- 8.1.1. The Partner can generate a request for Support by the Operator:
 - by contacting the Customer Support;
 - by sending a request via communication channels with the Partner determined by the Operator;
- 8.1.2. The Operator, within **five (5) business days** from receipt of the request:
 - in case of insufficient information provided by the Merchant / Partner for request processing, requests additional information from the Merchant / Partner.
 In this case, the period of request processing (reviewing) starts from the date the additional information is provided;
 - provides the Merchant / Partner with information about the results or time frames of request processing.

8.2. Operator Support of Acquirer

8.2.1. The Operator supports the Acquirer in accordance with the conditions of the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program Standard. Credit Institution Registration in the Loyalty Program as Acquirer and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Acquirer, Partner Bank and Operator Under the Loyalty Program.

P.147 Page 147 of 170

9. Operator's Reporting to Partner

- 9.1. The Operator provides reports to the Partner via the Partner Profile (if technically possible).
- 9.2. The Partner, having charged the Authorized Partner with performing actions aimed at arranging Promotions, making changes to Promotion conditions (description), suspending Promotion periods (Promotion management), agrees that the Authorized Partner will be provided with reports addressed to the Partner.

10. Operator Notifying Partner of Changes in the Regulations, Including the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees, and Other Documents Used in Interaction Between Partner and Operator

10.1. The Operator posts changes to the Regulations, including those pertaining to the Loyalty Program Standards and Fees (Subsection 1.3 of the Regulations), on the Website and/or in the Partner Profile (if technically possible).

11. Electronic Document Management

- 11.1. The electronic document management between the Operator and the Merchant (Partner) includes the exchange of the following documents (hereinafter, 'ED'): the Merchant Application (if signed by the person authorized to sign such an application, enclosing documentary evidence of powers); the Permit / Letter of Guarantee (with attachments; if signed by the person authorized to sign the Permit / Letter of Guarantee, enclosing documentary evidence of powers); duly certified copies of Merchant's documents (according to the list given in Section 1 of Annex 5 to this Appendix).
- 11.2. Qualified digital signature (hereinafter, 'QDS') is deemed valid if all of the following conditions are met:
 - qualified certificate is generated and issued by a Trust Service Provider with valid accreditation on the certificate issue date;
 - qualified certificate is valid on the moment of electronic document signing (provided that there is true information on the moment of ED signing) or on the day of validation of the said certificate, if the moment of ED signing is not determined;

P.147 Page 148 of 170

- the ownership of QDS used for ED signing has been verified and the absence of changes made to this ED after its signing has been confirmed;
- QDS is used with due regard for the restrictions (if any) contained in the
 Qualification certificate of the person who signs ED.
- 11.3. The Operator and the Merchant (Partner) must inform one another of:
 - QDS restrictions. Until the receipt of such notification, the Operator and/or the Merchant (Partner) are entitled to consider QDS of the other party (the Operator and/or the Merchant (Partner)) not encumbered with any restrictions, and ED signed by such QDS legally valid;
 - the impossibility to exchange ED signed using QDS in the event of a technical failure of internal systems of the Operator and/or the Merchant (Partner) or ED Operators of the Operator and/or the Merchant (Partner). During such technical failure, the Operator and the Merchant (Partner) exchange documents on paper.
- 11.4. The Operator and the Merchant (Partner) must update their digital key certificates in advance.

P.147 Page 149 of 170

Annex 1 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and **Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program**

1. Form 1 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program **Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock** Company of Legal Entity or Sole Proprietor Established Under the **Laws of the Russian Federation**

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION FOR LEGAL ENTITY'S OR SOLE PROPRIETOR'S (MERCHANT'S) ACCEDENCE TO THE LOYALTY PROGRAM REGULATIONS OF NATIONAL PAYMENT CARD SYSTEM JOINT-STOCK COMPANY

| [the city of] | , 20 |
|--|----------------------|
| | [date] |
| | |
| (full name of the organization / sole proprietor) | , |
| represented by | |
| (title and full name of the authorized person) | , |
| acting pursuant to | |
| (source of authority: Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / Primary State Registration Proprietor certificate / other) | n Number of the Sole |
| hereby accedes as a Partner to the Regulations (under Article 428 of the Civil | Code of the Russian |
| Federation) in accordance with the procedure defined in the Regulations, confi | rms having read and |
| understood the Regulations and accepted all of the terms and conditions of t | the Regulations, and |
| announces the intent to arrange Promotions providing for Reward payment fo | r purchase of Goods |
| (please select): | |
| \square using Mir Cards, | |
| \Box using SBP, | |

P.147 Page 150 of 170

| | ٠. | _ | _ | | |
|---|----|---|---|---|--|
| | N | • | D | к | |
| • | | • | _ | • | |

\square using Mir Cards and SBP.

| Details and contact information: | | | |
|--|----------------------------------|---------------------|-------------|
| Taxpayer Identification Number (INN | J) | | |
| Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | | | , |
| Primary State Registration Number (| OGRN)/Primary State 1 | Registration Number | of the Sole |
| Proprietor (OGRNIP) | | | |
| location: (postal code, region, district | , locality, street, house number | | ; |
| correspondence address: | | | |
| Enclosed: Merchant questionnaire. | | | |
| (title) | (signature) | (full name) |) |
| LS | | | |

P.147 Page 151 of 170

Appendix to Application for Legal Entity's or Sole Proprietor's (Merchant's) Accedence to the

Loyalty Program Regulations of National

Payment Card System Joint-Stock

Company

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

MERCHANT QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Merchant overview

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|---|-------------|
| 1.1 | Organization's full and short name (in accordance with the Articles of Association) / sole proprietor (in accordance with the Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor certificate) | |
| 1.2 | Email address to send a temporary password to access the Partner Profile | |
| 1.3 | Mobile phone number to send a temporary password to access the Partner Profile | <+7 () > |
| 1.4 | Official Website | |
| 1.5 | Exact title of the Manager | |
| 1.6 | Full name of the manager / sole proprietor | |

2. Merchant's contact persons

| No. | Unit | Title | Full Name | Mobile Phone Number <+7 () > | Email Address |
|-----|---------------------------------|-------|-----------|--|---------------|
| 2.1 | Organizational issues (general) | | | | |
| 2.2 | Customer claim management | | | | |

P.147 Page 152 of 170

* NSPK

3. Information⁵ about Authorized Partner⁶

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|--|-------------|
| 3.1 | Authorized Partner's full or short name (in accordance with Articles of Association / Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor certificate) and Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) / Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (OGRNIP) | |

4. Trade name⁷ information

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|------------|-------------|
| 4.1 | Trade name | |
| 4.2 | Trade name | |

5. Acquirer information⁸

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|---|-------------|
| 5.1 | Credit institution's full name (in accordance with Articles of Association) | |
| 5.2 | Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) / Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | |
| 5.3 | Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) | |
| 5.4 | Bank Identification Code (BIC) | |

| | st of my knowledge the above in | |
|---------|---------------------------------|-------------|
| | | |
| (title) | (signature) | (full name) |
| LS | | |

P.147

⁵ Only filled out if Promotions are managed by the Authorized Partner and not the Merchant itself.

⁶ Authorized Partner – a third party (Partner) entrusted by the Merchant to arrange Promotions, make changes to conditions (description) of Promotions, suspend Promotions (**Promotion management**).

⁷ Trademark, service mark, commercial or other designation used for personalizing Goods and/or Merchant's POS (hereinafter, the 'Trade name'). The required number of Trade names can be specified.

⁸ More than one Acquirer can be specified.



2. Form 2 of the Application for Accedence to the Loyalty Program
Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock
Company of Organization Established Under the Laws of Foreign
States, Located Outside the Russian Federation

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION FOR ORGANIZATION'S (MERCHANT'S) ACCEDENCE TO THE LOYALTY PROGRAM REGULATIONS OF NATIONAL PAYMENT CARD SYSTEM JOINT-STOCK COMPANY

| [the city of] | _, 20 |
|--|-----------|
| | [date] |
| | |
| | |
| (full name of the organization) | , |
| represented by | |
| | , |
| (title and full name of the authorized person) | |
| acting pursuant to | |
| (source of authority: Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / other) | |
| hereby accedes as a Partner to the Regulations (under Article 428 of the Civil Code of the | Duccion |
| | |
| Federation) in accordance with the procedure defined in the Regulations, confirms having r | |
| understood the Regulations and accepted all of the terms and conditions of the Regulation | |
| announces the intent to arrange Promotions providing for Reward payment for purchase of | f Goods |
| (please select): | |
| \Box using Mir Cards, | |
| \square using SBP, | |
| □ using Mir Cards and SBP. | |
| | |
| | |
| Details and contact information: | |
| TIN (Taxpayer Identification Number): | , |
| registration number (commercial register number): | , |

P.147 Page 154 of 170

| NSPK 1 | Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company |
|---------------------|--|
| registration coun | try (country of incorporation): |
| registration author | prity name: |
| state registration | date: |
| address: | |
| | (postal code, region, district, locality, street, house number, room/suite number) |
| | (postal code, region, district, locality, street, house number, room/suite number) |
| phone number: _ | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| email: | |
| bank details: | (bank name, Bank Identification Code (BIC), correspondent account, settlement account No.) |
| | |
| Enclosed: Merch | nant questionnaire. |

(signature)

(full name)

(title)

L.S.

P.147 Page 155 of 170

Appendix to the Application for the **Organization's (Merchant's) Accedence to the Loyalty Program Regulations of National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company**

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

MERCHANT QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Merchant overview

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|--|-------------|
| 1.1 | Organization's full and short name | |
| 1.2 | Organization's official Website | |
| 1.3 | Email address to send a temporary password to access the Partner Profile | |
| 1.4 | Mobile phone number to send a temporary password to access the Partner Profile | <+7 () > |
| 1.5 | Exact title of the Manager | |
| 1.6 | Full name of the Manager | |
| 1.7 | Area where the Merchant operates | |

2. Merchant's contact persons

| No. | Unit | Title | Full Name | Mobile Phone Number <+7 () > | Email Address |
|-----|---------------------------------|-------|-----------|--|---------------|
| 2.1 | Organizational issues (general) | | | | |
| 2.2 | Customer claim management | | | | |

P.147 Page 156 of 170

* NSPK

3. Information⁹ about Authorized Partner¹⁰

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|--|-------------|
| 3.1 | Authorized Partner's full or short name (in accordance with Articles of Association / Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor certificate) and Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) / Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (OGRNIP) | |

4. Trade name¹¹ information

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|------------|-------------|
| 4.1 | Trade name | |
| 4.2 | Trade name | |

5. Acquirer information¹²

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|---|-------------|
| 5.1 | Credit institution's full name (in accordance with Articles of Association) | |
| 5.2 | Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) / Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | |
| 5.3 | Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) | |
| 5.4 | Bank Identification Code (BIC) | |

| I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge the above information is accurate. | | | |
|--|-------------|-------------|--|
| (title) | (signature) | (full name) | |
| L.S. | | | |

P.147 Page 157 of 170

⁹ Only filled out if Promotions are managed by the Authorized Partner and not the Merchant itself.

¹⁰ Authorized Partner - a third party (Partner) entrusted by the Merchant to arrange Promotions, make changes to conditions (description) of Promotions, suspend Promotions (**Promotion management**).

¹¹ Trademark, service mark, commercial or other designation used for personalizing Goods and/or Merchant's POS (hereinafter, the 'Trade name'). The required number of Trade names can be specified.

¹² More than one Acquirer can be specified.

3. Form of the Permit to Use Trademark (Service Mark) Under the Rightholder's Control / Letter of Guarantee

To be drawn up on the letterhead (if available)

Attention of NSPK JSC Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) 1147746831352 Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) 7706812159

> 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya Street Moscow, 115184

PERMIT TO USE TRADEMARK (SERVICE MARK) UNDER THE RIGHTHOLDER'S CONTROL

| | | , 202_[date] |
|----------------------------|--|---|
| | Identification Number (INN) State Registration Number of the Sole Prop | , Primary State Registration rietor (OGRNIP) , |
| (OGRN) / Prima | erchant, its Taxpayer Identification Numbery State Registration Number of the Sole P | r (INN), Primary State Registration Number Proprietor (OGRNIP), location) |
| authorized representative: | | |
| | | horized by the Merchant to use trademarks ice marks)) |
| source of authority | | |
| | • | ttorney / Primary State Registration Number rietor certificate / other) |

hereby grants National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company (NSPK JSC), as well as Banks listed at https://vamprivet.ru/bank/ the right to use the following trademark:

| Item No. | Number of the certificate of trademark (service mark) | Trademark (service mark) |
|-------------|---|-----------------------------|
| | | |

to be posted on advertising and information materials used in Promotions organized by NSPK JSC or the Rightholder by posting such advertising and information materials on Websites https://sbp.nspk.ru, in the *Privet!* Mobile Application, official social media

P.147 Page 158 of 170

groups of Mir Payment System and SBP, newsletters, as well as any resources of Banks who are partners of the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program, including on the Internet. The right to use is granted, among other things, to inform the general public about the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program (a set of measures aimed at strengthening the appeal of Mir Cards, Services of NSPK JSC, as well as encouraging the active use of Mir Cards when purchasing Goods and popularizing the purchase of Goods via SBP), about the participation in the Loyalty Program and Promotions of the Rightholder, as well as to be posted on advertising and information materials of NSPK JSC free of charge throughout the Russian Federation until a written notice of termination of this Permit is submitted by the Rightholder.

| The Rightholder allows using the trademark as follows: | | |
|--|---------------|--|
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| (full name and title) | (signature) | |
| | L.S. (if any) | |

P.147 Page 159 of 170

* NSPK

Forms of Letter of Guarantee

To be drawn up on the letterhead (if available)

Attention of NSPK JSC Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) 1147746831352 Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) 7706812159

| | | 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya Street Moscow, 115184 |
|-----------------------------|---|--|
| | Letter of Guarantee | |
| | | |
| (Tax | payer Identification Number (INN) | , Primary State Registration |
| | te Registration Number of the Sole Proprieto | |
| place of business: | |) (hereinafter, the Rightholder) |
| | rchant, its Taxpayer Identification Number (I y State Registration Number of the Sole Prop | |
| authorized representative _ | (full name and title of the | authorized person) |
| | (run nume une ente en | uamonizo porson) |
| source of authority | | |
| source of authority | (Articles of Association / Power of Attor of the Sole Proprieto | |
| hereby confirms the follow | ing: | |
| 1. It holds the exclusiv | ve right to the logo and gives consen- | t to National Payment Card System |
| Joint-Stock Company (NSI | PK JSC) and Banks listed at | |

to be posted on advertising and information materials used in Promotions organized by NSPK JSC or the Rightholder by posting such advertising and information materials on Websites https://sbp.nspk.ru/, in the *Privet!* Mobile Application, official social media groups of Mir Payment System and SBP, newsletters, as well as any resources of Banks who are partners of the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program, including on the Internet. The right to use is granted, among other things, to inform the general public about the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program (a set of

P.147 Page 160 of 170

☆ NSPK

measures aimed at strengthening the appeal of Mir Cards, services of NSPK JSC, as well as encouraging the active use of Mir Cards when purchasing Goods and popularizing the purchase of Goods via SBP), about the participation in the Loyalty Program and Promotions of the Rightholder, as well as to be posted on advertising and information materials of NSPK JSC free of charge throughout the Russian Federation until a written notice of termination of this Letter of Guarantee is submitted by the Rightholder.

- 2. If the designation used for personalizing goods and/or services of the Rightholder is registered by the Federal Service for Intellectual Property, the Rightholder undertakes to provide a written Permit to use trademark (service mark) under the rightholder's control.
- 3. guarantees to indemnify and hold NSPK JSC harmless against all claims and actions of third parties related to the use of the designation used for personalizing goods and/or services. All claims and actions of third parties shall be settled by the Rightholder at its own cost and expense.

| (full name and title) | (signature) |
|-----------------------|-------------|
| | L.S. |
| | (if any) |

P.147 Page 161 of 170



To be drawn up on the letterhead (if available)

Attention of NSPK JSC

Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) 1147746831352 Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) 7706812159

> 11, Bolshaya Tatarskaya Street Moscow, 115184

Letter of Guarantee

| | | , 202_ [date] |
|---------------------------|--|-------------------------------|
| | , a person authorized to dispose of the exclusive payer Identification Number (INN) atte Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (OGRNIP) | _, Primary State Registration |
| - | erchant, its Taxpayer Identification Number (INN), Primary | |
| (OGRN) / Prima | ry State Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (OGR) | VIP), location) |
| authorized representative | | |
| | (full name and title of the authorized po | erson) |
| | | |
| source of authority | | |
| | (Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / Primary S the Sole Proprietor certificate / or | · · |

hereby guarantees that National Payment Card System Joint-Stock Company and Banks listed at https://vamprivet.ru/bank/ lawfully use the following trademark:

| Registration number | Trademark (service mark) | Grounds for Merchant's Trademarks (Service Marks) Use |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| | | |
| | | |

to be posted on advertising and information materials used in Promotions organized by NSPK JSC or the User by posting such advertising and information materials on Websites https://vamprivet.ru, in the *Privet!* Mobile Application, official social media groups of Mir Payment System and SBP, newsletters, as well as any resources of Banks who are partners of the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program, including on the Internet. The right to use is granted, among other things, to inform the general public about the NSPK JSC Loyalty Program (a set of measures aimed at strengthening the appeal of Mir Cards, services of NSPK JSC, as well as encouraging the active use of Mir Cards when purchasing Goods and popularizing the purchase of Goods via SBP), about the participation in the Loyalty Program and Promotions of the User, as well as to be posted on advertising and

P.147 Page 162 of 170

information materials of NSPK JSC free of charge throughout the Russian Federation until a written notice of termination of this Letter of Guarantee is submitted by the User.

| The User also undertake | s to comply with all rights and requirements of the Rightho | older of |
|-------------------------------|--|----------|
| trademark No | (full corporate name of the trademark Rightholder, F | Primary |
| State Registration Number (C | OGRN)/Primary State Registration Number of the Sole Pro | oprietor |
| (OGRNIP)) and to settle any | and all claims of the Rightholder at its own cost and expen | se, and |
| indemnify NSPK for the losses | incurred due to the breach of the warranties envisages by this | Letter. |
| The trademark can be u | sed as follows: | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| (full name a | and title) (signature) | |

P.147 Page 163 of 170

Annex 2 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF ADDITIONAL PARTNER TRADEMARK IN THE LOYALTY PROGRAM

| THE LOTAL IT I ROGRAM | |
|--|-----------|
| | , 20 |
| | [date] |
| | |
| | |
| (Partner name) | |
| (Partner's Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) and Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) / Primar Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (OGRNIP)) | ry State |
| represented by | |
| | , |
| (title and full name of the authorized person of the Partner) acting pursuant to | |
| | |
| (source of authority: Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / Primary State Registration Number of the Proprietor certificate / other) | e Sole |
| We hereby ask you to register in the Loyalty Program additional trademark(s) of the Pa | rtner (as |
| enclosed). | |

1. Trade name¹³ information

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|------------|-------------|
| 1.1 | Trade name | |
| 1.2 | Trade name | |

P.147 Page 164 of 170

¹³ Trademark, service mark, commercial or other designation used for personalizing Goods and/or Merchant's POS (hereinafter, the 'Trade name').

☆ NSPK

2. Acquirer information

| No. | Parameters | Information |
|-----|---|-------------|
| 2.1 | Credit institution's full name (in accordance with Articles of Association) | |
| 2.2 | Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) / Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | |
| 2.3 | Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) | |
| 2.4 | Bank Identification Code (BIC) | |

| I hereby certify that to the | best of my knowledge the above i | information is accurate. |
|------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------|
| | | |
| (title) | (signature) | (full name) |
| L.S. | | |

P.147 Page 165 of 170

Annex 3 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION FOR ADDITIONAL ACQUIRER ASSIGNMENT TO SUPPORT THE PARTNER'S PARTICIPATION (SETTLEMENT) IN THE LOYALTY PROGRAM

| | | , 20 |
|--|--|---------------------------------------|
| | | [date] |
| | (Partner name) | |
| ` | tner's Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) and Primary State Registra Registration Number of the Sole Proprietor (O | , , , , , |
| | (title and full name of the authorized person of the | ne Partner) |
| acting | g pursuant to | |
| (soi | urce of authority: Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / Primary Proprietor certificate / other) | State Registration Number of the Sole |
| partic provic <u>us</u> <u>us</u> | ereby seek the approval of the additional Acquirer assi- ipation (settlement) in the Loyalty Program (as per attacheding for Reward payment for purchase of Goods (<i>please sele-</i> ting Mir Cards, ting SBP, ting Mir Cards and SBP. 1. Acquirer information | ment) when arranging Promotions |
| No. | Parameters | Information |
| 1.1 | Credit institution's full name (in accordance with Articles of Association) | |
| 1.2 | Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) / Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | |
| 1.3 | Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) | |
| 1.4 | Bank Identification Code (BIC) | |
| | I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge the above | information is accurate. |
| | (title) (signature) | (full name) |

P.147 Page 166 of 170

L.S.

Annex 4 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION FOR EXPANSION OF PARTNER'S PARTICIPATION IN THE LOYALTY PROGRAM

| (city |) | , 20 |
|--------------|---|---------------------------------------|
| | | [date] |
| | | |
| | | |
| | (Partner name) | |
| | (Partner's Taxpayer Identification Number (| INN)) |
| repres | sented by | IIVIV)) |
| - Pro- | | |
| | (title and full name of the authorized person of the | ne Partner) |
| acting | g pursuant to | |
| | | |
| (soi | urce of authority: Articles of Association / Power of Attorney / Primary S Proprietor certificate / other) | State Registration Number of the Sole |
| We he | ereby notify you of our intent to arrange Promotions providing | g for Reward payment for purchase |
| of Go | ods (please select): | |
| \square us | ring Mir Cards, | |
| | ing SBP, | |
| 1. | Acquirer information | |
| No. | Parameters | Information |
| 2.1 | Credit institution's full name (in accordance with Articles of Association) | |
| 2.2 | Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) / Tax Registration Reason Code (KPP) | |
| 2.3 | Primary State Registration Number (OGRN) | |
| 2.4 | Bank Identification Code (BIC) | |
| | I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge the above i | nformation is accurate. |
| | (title) (signature) | (full name) |
| | (auc) (signature) | (tuit italile) |

P.147 Page 167 of 170

L.S.

Annex 5 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and **Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program**

To be drawn up on the organization's letterhead (if available)

APPLICATION OF TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION IN THE LOYALTY PROGRAM AT THE PARTNER'S INITIATIVE

| [the city of] | | , 20 |
|--|---|---------------------------------|
| | | [date] |
| | | |
| | | |
| | (Partner name) | |
| | (rattiet name) | |
| (Part | ner's Taxpayer Identification Number (INN) |) |
| represented by | | |
| | | |
| (title and | full name of the authorized person of the Par | rtner) |
| acting pursuant to | | |
| | | |
| (source of authority: Articles of Asse | ociation / Power of Attorney / Primary State Proprietor certificate / other) | Registration Number of the Sole |
| We hereby notify you of termina | tion of participation in the Loyalty Pr | ogram due to |
| | | |
| (reason for | termination of participation in the Loyalty Pr | rogram) |
| | | |
| | | |
| (title) | (signature) | (full name) |
| L.S. | | |

P.147 Page 168 of 170

Annex 6 to Merchant Registration in the Loyalty Program as Partner and Certain Terms of Interaction Between Partner and Operator Under the Loyalty Program

Section 1. List of Merchant's Documents

A sole proprietor provides:

Copies of the documents of the sole proprietor listed below:

| 1 | Individual's proof of identity |
|---|---|
| 2 | Power of Attorney signed by the sole proprietor for the right to enter into a respective agreement on behalf of the sole proprietor (if the agreement is signed on behalf of the sole proprietor by its representative pursuant to the Power of Attorney) |

A legal entity established under the laws of the Russian Federation provides:

Copies certified by the legal entity (signature and seal / using QDS):

| 1 | Duly issued Power of Attorney for the right to enter into the corresponding agreement (if the agreement is signed on behalf of the legal entity by its representative pursuant to the Power of Attorney) |
|---|---|
| 2 | Agreement on delegation of authority of the sole executive body of the legal entity to a commercial entity (management company) or a sole proprietor (manager) (in case of delegation of the specified authority with attachment of a decision of the participants/shareholders of the legal entity on delegation of authority of the sole executive body of the legal entity to the commercial entity (management company) or the sole proprietor (manager)) |

An organization established under the laws of foreign states, located outside the Russian Federation, provides:

Copies of documents that must be duly authorized (endorsed with an Apostille), without their authorization (endorsement with an Apostille) in cases provided for by international agreements of the Russian Federation. Copies of documents shall be provided with a notarized translation into the Russian language, including those certified using QDC:

| 1 | Certificate of Incorporation of the new Business Entity (incorporation certificate) |
|---|---|
| 2 | Document confirming tax registration (if any) |
| 3 | Document confirming the election or appointment of the head of the legal entity: Resolution of the Founder, Minutes of the Meeting of Founders (shareholders/participants) or an extract therefrom, contract with the head or an extract therefrom, Orders of Appointment |
| 4 | Duly issued Power of Attorney for the right to enter into an agreement (if the agreement is signed on behalf of the legal entity by its representative pursuant to the Power of Attorney). |

P.147 Page 169 of 170



A representative being a foreign citizen, acting on the basis of the Power of Attorney, shall provide along with the identity document a document that confirms their stay/residence in the Russian Federation (migration card, visa, etc.)

P.147 Page 170 of 170